
 

 
Contact: Samantha Schanzer, Scrutiny Adviser 
Tel: 01633 656656 
E-mail: Scrutiny@newport.gov.uk 
Date of Issue: Monday, 2 October 2023 
  

 
This document is available in welsh / Mae’s ffurflen hon ar gael yn Gymraeg 

 

Agenda 
Overview and Scrutiny Management Committee 
 
Date: Monday, 9 October 2023 
 
Time: 2.00 pm 
 
Venue: Hybrid Meeting / Committee Room 3 
 
To: Councillors P Hourahine (Chair), M Al-Nuaimi, B Davies, G Horton, P Bright, C Baker-

Westhead, S Cocks, M Evans and L James 
 
 
 
Item  Wards Affected 

  
1   Apologies   

 
 

 
2   Declarations of Interest   

 
 

 
3   Minutes of the previous meeting held on 8th September 2023  (Pages 

3 - 8) 
 

 

 
4   Annual Corporate Plan Self-Assessment Report 2022/23  (Pages 9 - 

88) 
 

 

 
5   Strategic Equalities Plan Annual Report 2022-23  (Pages 89 - 130) 

 
 

 
6   Conclusion of Committee Reports   

Following the completion of the Committee reports, the Committee will 
be asked to formalise its conclusions, recommendations and 
comments on previous items for actioning.  
 

 

 
7   Scrutiny Adviser Reports  (Pages 131 - 140) 

a) Forward Work Programme Update (Appendix 1) 

b) Actions Arising (Appendix 2) 

c) Information Reports (Appendix 3) 

 

 

 
8   Live Event    

Public Document Pack



 

 

Click here to watch the Live Event.  
  
 

 
 

https://eur03.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/ap/t-59584e83/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fteams.microsoft.com%2Fl%2Fmeetup-join%2F19%253ameeting_YmY0NGE1MWEtZjFmNy00OTEyLTk4MjUtN2I5NmI0MjMwYzcx%2540thread.v2%2F0%3Fcontext%3D%257B%2522Tid%2522%253A%25222c4d0079-c52c-4bb3-b3ca-d8eaf1b6b7d5%2522%252C%2522Oid%2522%253A%2522cb68c5c2-cd73-45bf-a699-6b46bfa43e3c%2522%252C%2522IsBroadcastMeeting%2522%253Atrue%252C%2522role%2522%253A%2522a%2522%257D%26btype%3Da%26role%3Da&data=05%7C01%7CNeil.Barnett%40newport.gov.uk%7Cfb242e3604c044d4104408dbc358318f%7C2c4d0079c52c4bb3b3cad8eaf1b6b7d5%7C0%7C0%7C638318555772772894%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=wcNVd4znIwok8p3H03kP9L%2BBTufGZV228j1yPXVyxLg%3D&reserved=0


 

This document is available in welsh / Mae’s ffurflen hon ar gael yn Gymraeg 

Minutes 
Overview and Scrutiny Management Committee 
 
Date: 8 September 2023 
 
Time: 10.00 am 
 
Present: Councillors P Hourahine (Chair), M Al-Nuaimi, B Davies, G Horton, P Bright, 

C Baker-Westhead, S Cocks, M Evans and L James 
 

 
In Attendance: Tracy McKim (Head of People, Policy and Transformation), Mark Bleazard 

(Digital Services Manager), Dominic Gibbons (Digital Projects Manager), Tariq 
Slaoui (Information Manager) Councillor Dimitri Batrouni (Cabinet Member for 
Organisational Transformation), Samantha Turnbull (Digital Projects Manager) 

 
Apologies: Rhys Cornwall (Strategic Director for Transformation and Corporate) 
 
 
 
1 Declarations of Interest  

 
None. 
 

2 Minutes of the previous meeting held on 28th July 2023  
 
The minutes of the previous meeting held on the 28th July 2023 were agreed as a true and 
accurate record.  
  
The Committee queried whether there had been an update on the letter to the University.  

         The Head of People, Policy and Transformation (PPT) confirmed that the letter had 
been sent by the Strategic Director for Transformation and Corporate. 

         The Committee requested a copy of the letter.  

The Committee thanked the Head of PPT for the update on training provision and asked 
when the single log on would be put into effect.  

         The Head of PPT noted that there had been work carried out to make the NHS 
training platform more user-friendly and stated that Committee would be given a 
further update in future.  

         The Digital Services Manager stated that the single log on function was currently 
undergoing work but that they were unable to provide a timeframe for completion.  

  
 

3 Annual Digital Report 22-23  
 
Invitees: 
Tracy McKim - Head of People, Policy and Transformation (PPT) 
Mark Bleazard - Digital Services Manager 
Dominic Gibbons - Digital Projects Manager 
Tariq Slaoui - Information Manager 

Page 3

Agenda Item 3



 

 

Samantha Turnbull – Digital Projects Manager  
Councillor Dimitri Batrouni - Cabinet Member for Organisational Transformation 
The Head of PPT introduced the report and the Digital Services Manager gave a summary of 
the report. 
 
 
Questions: 
The Committee complimented the reporting style and version control.  
The Committee queried whether a partner with a good experience with UX had been chosen 
to work on the website redevelopment project. The Committee queried whether the new 
website’s accessibility and usability had also been considered in the brief and whether this is 
something that would be checked regularly.  

         The Digital Services Manager noted the partner was chosen via a procurement 
process that highlighted accessibility, usability and sustainability as a requirement 
and added that they had been pleasantly surprised with the work of the chosen 
supplier.  

         The Head of PPT stated that although the current website was not optimal, it was 
compliant in terms of accessibility. The Head of PPT noted that they had queried 
planned colours to ensure there are accessibility options and added that they would 
be happy to share examples of websites that the project aspirated to reach the 
quality of.  

The Committee noted that the website redevelopment would only be optimal if the 
management and content of the website was kept up to date.  

         The Head of PPT highlighted that they had been working with service areas so that 
experts in that area would be responsible for their respective website content and its 
maintenance.  

         The Digital Services Manager added that technology could be a barrier and that the 
hope was the redevelopment would remove some barriers. 

         The Digital Projects Manager stated that there had been work done regarding 
integration and that some aspects would be automated as they wished for the service 
to be streamlined and more efficient.  

The Committee queried whether service area experts were the best people to oversee what 
information should be included in the website content. 

         The Head of PPT informed committee that the Communications team would still be 
responsible for the website but with specialist assistance from service areas. The 
Head of PPT also highlighted that they were requesting people to join an online forum 
on the website development. 

The Committee queried whether there would be continuity between the app, the mobile 
webpage and desktop webpage and how would these link together.  

         The Head of PPT noted that the redevelopment was focused on the website rather 
than the app but highlighted that there would be a Customer Services review to 
highlight how residents interact and contacted the Council which would inform future 
work. 

         The Digital Services Manager assured Committee that the website would be 
optimised for those accessing it via a mobile device.  

         The Digital Projects Manager confirmed that the optimising the website for mobile 
devices was included within the brief.  

The Committee queried whether data would be collected on how people engaged with the 
Council and would it show the type of device used. 

         The Digital Services Manager noted that it was likely to be included and added that 
the tool was able to see geographical data.  

Page 4



 

 

The Cabinet Member thanked the committee for their questions and stated that the website 
redevelopment was an important project. The Cabinet Member highlighted that integration 
was imperative and added that they were consulting with the public, but systemic learning 
and collecting the right data was important to understand what residents want and need, and 
how NCC can provide that. The Cabinet Member noted that the work being undertaken 
would ensure that Newport is fit for the future. The Cabinet Member welcomed all scrutiny 
and questions to help drive improvement.  
The Committee commended the executive summary and reporting style. The Committee 
noted that the SRS query response times have often been very long or have had complex 
responses and queried whether this could be streamlined. 

         The Digital Services Manager noted that there is a prioritisation system meaning that 
the less major problems would be given a longer response time and added that 
issues can be manually escalated in some cases. The Digital Services Manager 
added that in many cases, issues were resolved prior to the date given.  

         The Digital Projects Manager added that they try to strike a balance between 
managing expectations and addressing issues. 

         The Committee noted that the times seemed too long even in non-essential cases.  
         The Head of PPT noted that the response times had improved but that the reliance 

on technology has grown simultaneously and added that this type of query would be 
picked up in the review in another committee meeting in future. 

The Committee asked whether using third parties to provide training was cost effective and 
the best use of staff time. 

         The Head of PPT noted that after feedback from local authorities, the NHS had 
provided them access to technical files to improve accessibility and usability. The 
Head of PPT stated that they were not prioritising money over the importance of 
training and added that there had been work done on staff training records. The Head 
of PPT noted that there was some in-house training but that external providers were 
inevitable due to the range of training required across the organisation. 

         The Digital Projects Manager noted that the NHS, SRS and the Digital team had 
been working on the single sign in project.  

The Committee noted the roll out of Microsoft Teams phone and queried whether there 
would be a default to audio when using it.  

         The Digital Services Manager noted that employees were now familiar with the chat 
and video call features within Teams. The Digital Services Manager added for 
external calls, the expectation would be audio only and internally, while there was no 
process, it was common practice for audio and video calls. The Digital Services 
Manger noted that a benefit would be that there was not a requirement for a handset.  

The Committee queried how were they going to monitor the effectiveness of the website to 
be able to identify areas that need improvement. The Committee asked whether any areas 
have been identified that require improvement to make the website the more attractive to 
residents in finding information and reporting issues.  

         The Head of PPT stated that work had been undertaken with Customer Services to 
look at customer contact outside of this report which would look at with this. 

         The Cabinet Member noted that the website was not as easy to use as it could be 
which the review would help address.  

The Committee noted that in the move towards digital solutions, it was important to consider 
inclusion and accessibility for residents who were less digitally skilled. The Committee felt 
that some groups may be marginalised by this move and praised the digital skills courses 
and other opportunities provided to the public to address this but asked whether there had 
been data collected on uptake and the demographics of this uptake. 

         The Digital Services Manager noted the importance of digital skills and inclusion and 
stated that partnership work had also been done with external groups in this area.  

Page 5



 

 

         The Digital Projects Manager highlighted the Council’s accreditation in the Digital 
Inclusion Charter and noted there had been a variety of courses provided across 
different locations to ensure accessibility and added that staff had been trained in 
signposting. The Digital Projects Manager added that as well as the courses they had 
been raising awareness at other events such as cost of living events to increase 
visibility. 

         The Digital Services Manager explained to the Committee that there had been 
internal and external partnership working to increase awareness.  

         The Committee noted the importance of monitoring whether the strategies in place 
are working effectively to prevent exclusion.  

         The Digital Services Manager noted the report and strategy would make the work 
being done more visible and allow for scrutiny. The Digital Services Manager stated 
that although they had so far had limited success, it was a new project and annual 
would highlight relevant themes and outcomes.  

         The Digital Projects Manager informed the Committee they aimed to gather and 
report against statistics to provide a benchmark.  

The Committee noted the importance of the digital strategy covering all areas of the Council 
and asked how they had ensured this.  

         The Head of PPT stated that this was the reason for the strategy and explained that 
although it was not a statutory requirement, it allowed for accountability.  

         The Digital Services Manager stated that officers would have been made aware of 
available technology but that it would be down to the service areas to embrace it.   

         The Head of PPT noted that there was a focus on digital skills in an upcoming 
People and Partnerships Plan and highlighted the Digital Champions.  

         The Digital Projects Manager informed the Committee that Digital Champions’ role 
was to help test the use of new technology or strategies prior to roll out as well as 
reporting back on issues to allow the team to find solutions by working backwards.  

         The Digital Services Manager added that there was a plan to enhance the role of the 
Digital Champions. 

Th Committee noted the collaboration between local authorities in the Intelligence Hub 
project and queried whether there was any further scope for collaboration to save resources 
and money.  

         The Head of PPT stated that there was but that the mechanisms would need to be 
worked out. The Head of PPT felt that collaboration between groups within the 
organisation had led to better working.  

         The Cabinet Member explained that data was most useful when taken from large and 
varied data sets and highlighted that collaboration would allow for local authorities to 
provide better services. The Cabinet Member informed Committee that data sharing 
was in place with Monmouthshire and that there was a plan to expand this to further 
local authorities. 

The Committee highlighted that there were residents who did not own a mobile phone or 
laptop and felt that while there was assistance at libraries, that some residents did not want 
to engage with these services.  

         The Digital Services Manager highlighted the importance of digital skills and inclusion 
and stated that while they provide courses and support, there was only a limited level 
of support they could provide.  

         The Digital Projects Manager felt that it was important that digital support could come 
from anyone that a resident encountered when interacting with NCC employees to 
increase confidence and signpost. The Digital Projects Manager noted that a gap in 
training regarding low level skills had been identified and addressed and highlighted 
the importance of signposting. The Digital Projects Manager agreed that they would 
provide information to the Committee on this.   

Page 6



 

 

The Committee asked where they believed the Council would be in a few years regarding 
this Strategy.  

         The Digital Services Manager noted that this was shown in the outcomes within the 
report. The Digital Services Manager informed Committee that these were varied and 
challenging and would be a tool to measure against but highlighted that unforeseen 
challenges would arise.  
 
 

Conclusions: 
         The Committee thanked Officers for the report and commended the reporting style 

and version control.  
         The Committee highlighted the importance of considering inclusion and accessibility 

requirements when developing the website.  
         The Committee highlighted accessibility as an important factor to be considered 

when developing training.  
         The Committee welcomed the Officer’s suggestion to provide examples of websites 

that show the good practice the project is aspiring to deliver.  
         The Committee asked for resources regarding digital inclusion and skills so that they 

could signpost residents to them where appropriate.  
The Committee recommended that a section highlighting the progress made on the website 
redesign, and containing meaningful metrics and information, is included in the next Annual 
Digital Report. The Committee also requested an update on the progress of the website 
redesign in six month’s time. 
 

4 Scrutiny Adviser Reports  
 
a) Actions Arising (Appendix 1) 
The Scrutiny Advisor noted that responses had been chased regarding outstanding actions.  
  
b) Forward Work Programme Update (Appendix 2) 
  
The Scrutiny Advisor informed the Committee that 2 items had been added to the Forward 
Work Programme after the agenda had been published – the People and Culture Plan and 
the Asset Plan.  
  
 

5 Live Event  
 
Click here to watch the recording. 
  
 

 
The meeting terminated at Time Not Specified 
 

Page 7

https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=3D3gqyTG5Qw


This page is intentionally left blank



Scrutiny Report 
Overview and Scrutiny Management 
Committee 
 
Part 1  
 
Date:  September 2023 
 
Subject Annual Corporate Plan Self-Assessment Report 2022/23  
 
Author  Scrutiny Advisor  
 
The following people have been invited to attend for this item: 
 

Invitee: Area / Role / Subject 
 

Cllr Jane Mudd Leader of the Council  
Beverly Owen Chief Executive Officer 
Rhys Cornwall Strategic Director for Transformation and Corporate  
Sally Ann Jenkins Strategic Director for Social Services 
Paul Jones  Strategic Director for Environment and Sustainability  

Section A – Committee Guidance and Recommendations 
 

 
 
2 Context 
 

Background  
 

2.1 The purpose of the Council’s annual Corporate Plan Self-Assessment Report 2022/23 is to assess 
the progress of delivery the Council has made against the Corporate Plan 2022-27 (Well-being of 
Future Generations Act); and the extent to which the Council has met its performance requirements 

1 Recommendations to the Committee

The Committee is asked to consider:

1. The Council’s progress towards achieving its mission statement to deliver an “Ambitious, Fairer 
and Greener Newport for everyone” as part of the Corporate Plan 2022-27. 

2. Whether the Annual Report 22-23 contains sufficient information to monitor the achievement of 
the Wellbeing Objectives and the effectiveness of its governance and performance 
arrangements to deliver the Corporate Plan and its statutory duties.

3. Consideration of report’s Self-Assessment and the supporting action plan to improve 
governance and performance. 

4. Whether it wishes to provide comment and recommendations on the Annual Report 22-23 to 
Cabinet.

Page 9

Agenda Item 4



under the Local Government and Elections (Wales) Act 2021 to support the delivery of the 
Corporate Plan and deliver continuous improvement.  

 
2.2 In November 2022, full Council approved the Council’s  Corporate Plan 22-27. The Corporate Plan 

has 4 Wellbeing Objectives:  
 

1. Economy, Education and Skills – Newport is a thriving and growing city that offers excellent 
education and aspires to provide opportunities for all. 

2. Newport’s Environment and Infrastructure – A city that seeks to protect and enhance our 
environment whilst reducing our carbon footprint and preparing for a sustainable and digital 
future. 

3. Preventative and Equitable Community and Social Care – Newport is a supportive city 
where communities and care are at the heart of what we do. 

4. An Inclusive, Fair and Sustainable Council – Newport City Council is an inclusive 
organisation that places social value, fairness and sustainability at its core. 

 
Each Well-being Objective is supported by several strategic priorities which the Council will be 
delivering over the next 5 years. 

 
2.3 The Self-assessment of performance and progress against the Corporate Plan and its strategic 

priorities is based upon the End of Year (31st March 2023) position reported through the 11 service 
area plans. The Council’s 11 service areas assessed its progress against their objectives, projects 
and actions, which are contributing towards the delivery of the Corporate Plan. 

 
 Each service area presented a detailed overview of their progress to the Council’s Performance 

Scrutiny Committees in July 2023. Feedback from the committees has been considered in the 
production of this report. 

 
2.4 In addition to the service plans, the report refers to other annual statutory / strategic reports 

produced by the Council to assess the performance and progress against key strategic priorities.  
Case studies, assessments and performance information has also been considered in this report.  

 
2.5 This report will also be presented to the Governance and Audit Committee in September 2023, 

followed by Cabinet and Full Council in October 2023.  
 
Previous Consideration of this item 
 
2.6 The Council’s Draft Wellbeing Themes were presented to the committee in September 2022 and 

the Corporate Plan 22-27 was agreed by Council in November 2022.  
 
2.7 This is the first Annual report that the Committee has received since the Corporate Plan 22-27 was 

agreed.  
 
3 Information Submitted to the Committee 
 
3.1 Attached at Appendix A is the draft Annual Corporate Wellbeing Self-Assessment Report 2022-23. 
 
3.2 The report includes:  
 

• An introduction and the purpose of the report 
• Key facts about Newport and Newport City Council  
• Assessment of progress against the 4 Well-being Objectives including achievements and 

challenges, performance measures and key deliverables 2023/24.  
• Assessment of the Council’s Governance and Performance Arrangements 
• Annual Governance Statement and statutory duties  
• Internal audit and external regulatory reports 2022-23 
• Newport City Council’s finance outturn 22/23 
• Newport Council’s involvement and engagement with citizens, businesses and trade unions  Page 10

https://www.newport.gov.uk/documents/Council-and-Democracy/About-the-council/Corporate-Plan-2022-27-FINAL.pdf
https://democracy.newport.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=446&MId=8314&Ver=4&LLL=0
https://democracy.newport.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=130&MId=8181&Ver=4&LLL=0


• Key Newport City Council decisions and achievements 22-23 
• Self-Assessment Actions Update 21/22 
• Conclusion and self-assessment of NCC governance and performance arrangements  
• Actions for improvement 22-23  
• Glossary  
• Links to engage with the Council about this report. 

4. Suggested Areas of Focus 
 
4.1 

  
 
4.2 Wellbeing of Future Generation (Wales) Act  
 

5 Ways of Working Types of Questions to consider: 

What consideration have you given to the long term 
trends that could affect your proposal or; how could 
your proposal impact these trends? 

Long-term 
The importance of balancing short-term 
needs with the need to safeguard the 
ability to also meet long-term needs. 

 
How will the needs of your service users potentially 
change in the future? 

What is the objective (or the desired outcome) of this 
proposal? 

How are you addressing these issues to prevent a 
future problem? 

Prevention  
Prevent problems occurring or getting 

worse. 

How have the decisions, so far, come about? What 
alternatives were considered? 

Integration Are there any other organisations providing similar / 
complementary services? 

The role of the Committee in considering the report is to:

• Assess progression towards achieving the mission statement for an “Ambitious, Fairer and 
Greener Newport for everyone” as part of the Corporate Plan 2022-27. 

• Assess the Council’s performance in 2022/23 against its Wellbeing Objectives as set out in 
the Corporate Plan 2022-27.

• Assess and make comment on:
o How effectively the Council is performing against the performance measures.
o The extent to which any under performance is being addressed and associated risks 

are being mitigated.
o The Self-Assessment and supporting action plan to improve governance and 

performance arrangements.
• Conclusions:

o What was the overall conclusion on the information contained within the report?
o Is the Committee satisfied that it has the relevant information to base a conclusion on 

the performance against the Corporate Plan?
o Do any areas require a more in-depth review by the Committee or other Performance 

Committees?
o Does the Committee wish to make any Comments / Recommendations to the 

Cabinet?

Page 11



Have you consulted with the health board, third 
sector, emergency services, businesses and anyone 
else you think might be impacted? 

Considering how public bodies’ wellbeing 
objectives may impact upon each of the 

well-being goals, on their other 
objectives, or on the objectives of other 

public bodies. What practical steps will you take to integrate your 
project with existing plans and strategies of other 
public organisations to help us all contribute fully to 
the seven national well-being goals? 

Who have you been working with? Why? Who have 
you collaborated with in finding out more about this 
problem and potential solutions? 

How are you co-working with other sectors?  

Collaboration  
Acting in collaboration with any other 

person (or different parts of the 
organisation itself). 

How are you using the knowledge / information / 
good practice of others to inform / influence the 
Council’s work? 

How have you involved the people who are being 
impacted by this decision?  

How have you taken into account the diverse 
communities in your decision making?  

How have you used different / alternative methods to 
reach people and involve them?  

Involvement 
The importance of involving people with 
an interest in achieving the well-being 
goals, and ensuring that those people 
reflect the diversity of the area which the 
body serves. 

How will you communicate the outcome of your 
decision?  

 
 
Section B – Supporting Information  
 
5 Links to Council Policies and Priorities  
 

Well-being 
Objective 

1 – Economy, 
Education and 
Skills 

2 – Newport’s 
Environment and 
Infrastructure  

3 – Preventative 
and Equitable 
Community and 
Social Care 

4 – An Inclusive, 
Fair and 
Sustainable 
Council 

Aims:  Newport is a 
thriving and 
growing city that 
offers excellent 
education and 
aspires to provide 
opportunities for 
all. 

A city that seeks 
to protect and 
enhance our 
environment 
whilst reducing 
our carbon 
footprint and 
preparing for a 
sustainable and 
digital future. 

Newport is a 
supportive city 
where 
communities and 
care are at the 
heart of what we 
do. 

Newport City 
Council is an 
inclusive 
organisation that 
places social 
value, fairness 
and sustainability 
at its core. 

6. Corporate Plan / Service Area Plan – Red / Amber / Green Assessment 
 

RAG 
Assessment Description 

 The delivery against the strategic priority or objective is not on track.  Immediate management 
intervention is required to improve performance and escalation to relevant senior officer group(s). Page 12



 The delivery against the strategic priority or objective is mainly on track with some areas requiring 
management intervention to improve performance and escalation to relevant senior officer 
group(s) 

 The delivery against the strategic priority or objective is achieving and/or succeeding against its 
agreed targets. 

 
Performance Measure Monitoring and Tolerance Assessment 
 
Newport City Council has an agreed 15% tolerance against targets set in service plans. 

RAG 
Assessment Description 

=> 15% Performance is under achieving against target or previous year’s performance.  Immediate 
management intervention and escalation to relevant senior officer group(s) is required. 

< 15% Performance is off target or previous year’s performance but within the agreed 15% tolerance.  
Management intervention and close monitoring by the service area and Directorate is required.  

 Performance measure is achieving or succeeding against its agree target or previous year’s 
performance.  Commentary provided is at the discretion of the service area.  

 
 
7. Background Papers 

 
• The Essentials – Well-being of Future Generation Act (Wales)  
• Corporate Plan 2022-27 
• Director of Social Services Annual Report 
• Annual Safeguarding Report 
• Climate Change Annual Report 
• Information Risk Report  
• Digital Annual Report 
• Strategic Equalities Plan Annual Report (which will be heard in the same meeting). 
• Welsh Language Annual Report 
• PSC – People Service Area End of Year Reviews – 11th July and 25th July 
• PSC – Place Service Area End of Year Reviews – 10th July and 24th July 
 

 
Report Completed: September 2023 

Page 13

http://gov.wales/docs/dsjlg/publications/150623-guide-to-the-fg-act-en.pdf
https://www.newport.gov.uk/documents/Council-and-Democracy/About-the-council/Corporate-Plan-2022-27-FINAL.pdf
https://democracy.newport.gov.uk/documents/s25872/04i%20Director%20of%20Social%20Services%20Annual%20Report%20v1.pdf?LLL=0
https://democracy.newport.gov.uk/documents/s25877/05i%20Interim%20Corporate%20Safeguarding%20Report%20for%2023%20Final%20Draft_SAJ.pdf?LLL=0
https://democracy.newport.gov.uk/documents/s26163/Item%205.1%20-%20CC%20Plan%202022-27%20Annual%20Report%2022-23.pdf?LLL=0
https://democracy.newport.gov.uk/documents/s26161/Item%204.1%20-%20Annual%20Information%20Risk%20Report%202023.pdf?LLL=0
https://democracy.newport.gov.uk/documents/s27350/Item%204.1%20-%20Annual%20Digital%20Report%202022-23%20v0.6%20Report%20only.pdf?LLL=0
https://democracy.newport.gov.uk/documents/s26013/6i-%20WL%20Annual%20Monitoring%20Report%202022-23%20eng.pdf?LLL=0
https://democracy.newport.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=444&MId=8495&Ver=4&LLL=0
https://democracy.newport.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=444&MId=8496&Ver=4&LLL=0
https://democracy.newport.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=445&MId=8487&Ver=4&LLL=0
https://democracy.newport.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=445&MId=8488&Ver=4&LLL=0


This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
DRAFT - Annual Corporate Plan (22-27) Self-

Assessment Report 2022/23 

Page 15



1 www.newport.gov.uk 

 

 

CONTENTS 

 

  

 

Introduction and Purpose of the Report 2 

Key Facts about Newport and Newport City Council  4 

Well-being Objective 1 5 

Well-being Objective 2 14 

Well-being Objective 3 24 

Well-being Objective 4  37 

Self-Assessment of Governance and Performance Arrangements  46 

Annual Governance Statement 49 

Internal Audit and External Regulatory (Audit Wales, Care Inspectorate Wales, 
Estyn) Reports 2022/23  50 

Newport City Council’s Finance Outturn 22/23  52 
Newport Council Involvement and Engagement with citizens, Businesses and 
Trade Unions  

57 

Key Newport Council Decisions & Achievements 22/23 60 
Self-Assessment Actions Update 2021/22  62 
Overall Conclusion and Self-Assessment of NCC Governance and Performance 
Arrangements  67 

Actions for Improvement 22/23  68 
Glossary  71 

Have your Say    72 

Page 16

http://www.newport.gov.uk/


www.newport.gov.uk www.newport.gov.uk 2 

 

 

Introduction and Purpose of the Report 
Welcome to Newport City Council’s annual Corporate Plan Self-Assessment Report 2022/23.  The purpose of this 
report is to assess the progress of delivery the Council has made against the Corporate Plan 2022-27; and the extent 
to which the Council has met its performance requirements under the Local Government and Elections (Wales) Act 
to support the delivery of the Corporate Plan and deliver continuous improvement.   

In November 2022, Newport City Council agreed its five-year Corporate Plan to deliver an ‘Ambitious, Fairer and 
Greener Newport for everyone’. To achieve this goal, the Corporate Plan has four Well-being Objectives that will 
prioritise the Council’s focus over the next five years and contribute towards its longer term vision for Newport over 
the next 20 years: 

Well-being Objective 1 (Economy, Education and Skills) – Newport is a thriving and growing city that offers excellent 
education and aspires to provide opportunities for all. 

Well-being Objective 2 (Environment and Infrastructure) – Newport is a city that seeks to protect and enhance our 
environment whilst reducing our carbon footprint and preparing for a sustainable and digital future. 

Well-being Objective 3 (Quality Social Care and Community Services) – Newport is a supportive city where 
communities and care are at the heart of what we do. 

Well-being Objective 4 – (An Inclusive, Fair and Sustainable Council) – Newport City Council is an inclusive 
organisation that places social value, fairness and sustainability at its core.    

The delivery of this Corporate Plan contributes towards Wales seven Well-being Goals and 5 
Ways of Working set in the Well-being of Future Generations Act.  This Act requires all public 
bodies in Wales to think about the long term impact of our decisions and to work with our 
communities, people and each other to prevent persistent problems such as poverty, health, 
inequality and climate change. 

About Newport 

Newport is situated on the River Usk that has served as a port since medieval times when the first Newport Castle 
was built by the Normans.  In the last 10 years Newport’s population has grown by 9.5% to 159,600 (Census 2021).  
From the industrial revolution, Newport was built on the coal and steel industries, which saw the city becoming one 
of the key ports and a major exporter. Newport is home to some iconic landmarks such as the Transporter Bridge, 
Tredegar House, Belle Vue Park, Rodney Parade, International Conference Centre and the Civic Centre.  Throughout 
the years Newport has welcomed people from across the world to settle and contribute towards the growth and 
success of the city.  Newport also embraces the cultural diversity of the city allowing communities to come together 
to preserve its historic venues, support its music and art scenes, deliver inclusive festivals and events; and celebrate 
religious festivals. 

Purpose of the Report 

The Local Government and Elections (Wales) Act requires all local authorities to self-assess its governance, and 
performance arrangements for the previous reporting year.  This report covers three areas: Self-assessment of 
progress against the Corporate Plan Well-being Objectives (How well are we doing?); self-assessment on the 
effectiveness of its governance and performance arrangements to deliver the Corporate Plan and its statutory duties 
(How do we know?); and an overall Conclusion and improvements (What and how can we do better?). 

The Self-assessment of performance and progress against the Corporate Plan is based upon the End of Year (31st 
March 2023) position reported through the 11 service area plans. The Council’s 11 service areas assessed its progress 
against their objectives, projects and actions which are contributing towards the delivery of the Corporate Plan.  The 
Council will be assessing its progress based upon a Red / Amber / Green assessment.    

Page 17

http://www.newport.gov.uk/
http://www.newport.gov.uk/
https://www.newport.gov.uk/documents/Council-and-Democracy/About-the-council/Corporate-Plan-2022-27-FINAL.pdf
https://www.futuregenerations.wales/about-us/future-generations-act/


www.newport.gov.uk www.newport.gov.uk 3 www.newport.gov.uk 

 

 

Each service area presented a detailed overview of their progress to the Council’s Performance Scrutiny Committees 
in July 2023. Feedback from the committees has been considered in the production of this report. Links to the Reports 
can be found in the table below and a summary of service area performance in the overview of Performance and 
Risk Management arrangements which can be found on page 48. 
 

Performance Scrutiny Report  
(Please click the link) 

Service Area  
(Please click the link) 

People Scrutiny Committee – 11th July 2023 Education Services 
People Scrutiny Committee – 25th July 2023 Adult Services 

Children Services 
Prevention & Inclusion Service 

Place & Corporate Scrutiny Committee – 10th July 2023 Environment & Public Protection 
Housing & Communities 
Infrastructure 

Place & Corporate Scrutiny Committee – 24th July 2023 Finance 
Law & Standards 
People, Policy & Transformation 
Regeneration & Economic Development 

 
In addition to the service plans, the report refers to other annual statutory / strategic reports produced by the Council 
to assess the performance and progress against key strategic priorities and statutory duties.  Case studies, 
assessments and performance information has also been considered in this report and should further information 
be required, links have been provided to the full reports below. 
 

• Director of Social Services Annual Report 
• Annual Safeguarding Report 
• Climate Change Annual Report 
• Information Risk Report  
• Digital Annual Report 
• Strategic Equalities Plan Annual Report (Final to be provided) 
• Welsh Language Annual Report 
• Statement of Accounts (Final to be provided) 
• Annual Governance Statement (Final to be provided) 

 
To inform this assessment throughout this report, we will refer to other annual statutory / strategic reports, External 
Audit and Regulatory work, and progress against recommendations raised in the 2021/22 Annual Well-being Report. 
 
Welsh Local Government Association (Data Cymru) – Online Self-Assessment Toolkit 
and Benchmarking 

In 2022/23 the Welsh Local Government Association (Data Cymru) launched its online Self-Assessment toolkit.  The 
purpose of the toolkit is to enable local authorities to access a standardised set of performance data to support the 
comparison of performance data.  For the purpose of this report, where benchmarking data is available to support 
the Council’s own performance measures, we have provided the Welsh average to enable comparison.  The reader 
of this report should also note: 

• Data for 2022/23 has not been published at the time of drafting this report and therefore 2021/22 data has been 
used where appropriate to enable comparison. 

• Not all performance measures reported by service areas in this report are included in the Self-Assessment 
toolkit.   

 

Page 18

http://www.newport.gov.uk/
http://www.newport.gov.uk/
http://www.newport.gov.uk/
https://democracy.newport.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=444&MId=8495&Ver=4&LLL=0
https://democracy.newport.gov.uk/documents/s25985/Item%204%20-%20Education%20End%20of%20Year%20Report%2022-23%20v2.pdf?LLL=0
https://democracy.newport.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=444&MId=8496&Ver=4&LLL=0
https://democracy.newport.gov.uk/documents/s26084/Adult%20Services%20EOY%20Report%2022-23%20v2.pdf?LLL=0
https://democracy.newport.gov.uk/documents/s26083/Children%20Services%20EOY%20Report%2022-23%20v2.1.pdf?LLL=0
https://democracy.newport.gov.uk/documents/s26146/Prevention%20Inclusion%20EOY%20Report%2022-23%20v1.1.pdf?LLL=0
https://democracy.newport.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=445&MId=8487&Ver=4&LLL=0
https://democracy.newport.gov.uk/documents/s25952/EPP%20End%20of%20Year%20Report%20V2.pdf?LLL=0
https://democracy.newport.gov.uk/documents/s25990/Housing%20Communities%20EOY%20Report%2022-23%20V3.pdf?LLL=0
https://democracy.newport.gov.uk/documents/s25991/Infrastructure%20End%20of%20Year%20Report%2022-23%20v1.1.pdf?LLL=0
https://democracy.newport.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=445&MId=8488&Ver=4&LLL=0
https://democracy.newport.gov.uk/documents/s26109/Finance%20EOY%20Report%2022-23%20v1.pdf?LLL=0
https://democracy.newport.gov.uk/documents/s26108/Law%20Standards%20EOY%20Report%2022-23%20v2.pdf?LLL=0
https://democracy.newport.gov.uk/documents/s26107/PPT%20EOY%20Report%2022-23%20V2.pdf?LLL=0
https://democracy.newport.gov.uk/documents/s26106/RED%20End%20of%20Year%20Report%20V3.pdf?LLL=0
https://democracy.newport.gov.uk/documents/s25872/04i%20Director%20of%20Social%20Services%20Annual%20Report%20v1.pdf?LLL=0
https://democracy.newport.gov.uk/documents/s25877/05i%20Interim%20Corporate%20Safeguarding%20Report%20for%2023%20Final%20Draft_SAJ.pdf?LLL=0
https://democracy.newport.gov.uk/documents/s26163/Item%205.1%20-%20CC%20Plan%202022-27%20Annual%20Report%2022-23.pdf?LLL=0
https://democracy.newport.gov.uk/documents/s26161/Item%204.1%20-%20Annual%20Information%20Risk%20Report%202023.pdf?LLL=0
https://democracy.newport.gov.uk/documents/s27350/Item%204.1%20-%20Annual%20Digital%20Report%202022-23%20v0.6%20Report%20only.pdf?LLL=0
https://democracy.newport.gov.uk/documents/s26013/6i-%20WL%20Annual%20Monitoring%20Report%202022-23%20eng.pdf?LLL=0
https://www.data.cymru/data/self-assessment-performance-data


www.newport.gov.uk www.newport.gov.uk 4 

 

 

Key Facts and Challenges faced by Newport and 
Newport City Council in 2022/23 
Below is a summary of key facts and information about Newport but also some of the challenges faced by Newport 
in 2022/23.  Figures as of 31st March 2023.  

 

  
Population 159,600  

9.5% Population Growth since 2001 
(Census ’21) 

5,941 Staff (inc teaching staff) in 
Newport City Council 

57 Schools in Newport 

 
 

 

61,246 (provisional) NCC CO2 

emissions (2022/23) 
376  

Children Looked After 
443 

People in Temporary 
Accommodation 

   
3,757 children with 

Additional Learning Needs 
26.6% (5,842) 

Free School Meals* 
(PLASC Jul ’23 All school settings) 

4.8% (3.1km) 
Principal A Roads in Poor Condition 

   
£19.5m 23/24 Medium Term 

Revenue Plan Savings 
607 

No. Adults supported to live in 
residential care 

801 
No. people supported to live 

independently at home with a care 
& support package 

 

CO2 

Page 19

http://www.newport.gov.uk/
http://www.newport.gov.uk/


www.newport.gov.uk www.newport.gov.uk 

 

 

www.newport.gov.uk 5 

Well-being Objective 1 – Economy Education and Skills 
Newport is a thriving and growing city that offers excellent education and aspires to 
provide opportunities for all.  

No Strategic Priority RAG 
Assessment 

Well-being Objective 1 Overall Assessment  

1 Newport will have a robust economic strategy and replacement Local Development Plan to support 
sustainable economic growth and strong placemaking across Newport’s communities.  

 

2 Lead and collaborate to attract major investment into the city and support our local entrepreneurs to 
thrive and bring prosperity to Newport’s communities.  

 

3 Re-vitalise its city centre and wider communities to benefit families, businesses, and visitors.   
4 Become a destination that celebrates cultural diversity, heritage and delivers elite sporting events.   
5 Develop education facilities that support future generations to achieve their potential and positively 

contribute to their communities.  
 

6 
Work towards eliminating education inequality faced by young learners that are from disadvantaged, 
Black, Asian, and Minority Ethnic backgrounds, low-income households, and/or have additional learning 
needs.  

 

7 Increase the number of Welsh speakers in Newport by improving access to Welsh education, supporting 
businesses, and promoting the Welsh language.   

 

8 Become a living wage city helping people out of poverty and provide opportunities to retrain, learn new 
skills and find long-term work. 

 

 
Summary of Achievements and Challenges in 2022/23 
 

 
At the end of 2022/23 the Council has reported an amber status against Well-being Objective 1. The Council has 
continued to make good progress in the delivery of key regeneration, economic and education developments.  
However, the Council faces a range of challenges in relation to its assets and school buildings in particular, and in 
increasing visitor numbers to Newport back to pre-pandemic levels.  The last three years has also been a challenging 
time for Newport’s economy, education and schools through the uncertainty of Brexit, Covid-19 Pandemic and now 
the cost of living crisis.  It is important to understand that many of the challenges and decisions fall outside of the 
control of Newport City Council. But it is important that we are able to respond and provide a voice for the businesses, 
schools, learners and people who need support and provide opportunities across the city and wider region.  

Key Achievements 2022/23  Key Challenges 2022/23 
• Delivery key regeneration projects including Mercure 

Hotel, Central Library & Museum.  
• Long term sustainability school finances, buildings and assets 

to meet the needs of communities. 
• No schools in special measures at the end of 22/23 with 

Newport High school and Malpas Church in Wales Primary 
school coming out of special measures.  

• Improving visitor figures to Newport to pre-pandemic levels. 

• Delivery of Ysgol Gwent Is Coed school redevelopment 
through Communities for Learning programme. 

• To progress key strategies and initiatives from the Corporate 
Plan including Placemaking Plan, Cultural Strategy, and Sports 
Strategy. 

• Delivery of key adult and youth learning through initiatives 
such as Newport Youth Academy, job fairs and Adult 
Learning. 

• Regeneration Projects delivery managing inflationary costs. 

• Aspire alternative learning programme supporting 36 
learners to achieve recognised qualifications.  

• Managing increase demand and provision for children with 
Additional Learning Needs.  

• Led and supported over 30 events across Newport 
including the Food Festival, and Newport Marathon.  

 

Page 20

http://www.newport.gov.uk/
http://www.newport.gov.uk/
http://www.newport.gov.uk/


6 

 

 

Strategic Priority 1 
 
As a local authority, it is a statutory requirement for the Council to replace its current Local Development Plan (LDP) 
which will include policies used to determine all planning applications in Newport, identify land for development and 
enhance the city’s environmental and historical assets.  The delivery of this work will take place over the next three 
years and the Council will be undertaking several consultations at key stages with the public and other stakeholders to 
help inform future decisions. This work will be vital to support sustainable economic growth and development to meet 
the needs of the city and wider region.   
 
Newport City Council is one of 10 local authorities involved with the Cardiff Capital Region (CCR).  The role of CCR is to 
collaborate together to attract major investment, create new jobs, improve transport links and provide private sector 
leverage.  Progress of the CCR to develop a Strategic Development Plan for the region has not progressed as expected 
as a result of the CCR establishing its Corporate Joint Committee arrangements.  It will be expected in 2023/24 for a 
team to be established in CCR and to progress the development of the plan.   
 
Strategic Priority 2 
 
Over the last year, we have seen several regeneration projects completed such as the renovation of Chartist Tower 
into a four star hotel, the Indoor Market and more recently the refurbishment of the Central Library and Museum.  You 
can view the Museum’s latest video here.  In December 2022, the Indoor Market received the Ystadau Cymru Award 
for its work to ensure the Market remains at the heart of the city centre. In 2022/23, following the approval to 
commence the development of the Knowledge Quarter, work started on demolishing the leisure centre and to 
rejuvenate the area to accommodate a new leisure centre and building for Coleg Gwent.  
 
Work also commenced on the development of the new Transporter 
Bridge Visitor Centre and despite increasing inflationary costs, the 
Council was able to secure additional funding from the Heritage Lottery 
Fund.  As part of the Council’s Corporate Plan, work has commenced on 
developing a new Placemaking Plan for the City Centre which will 
provide a long-term, targeted framework for regeneration, 
refurbishment and investment across the city centre.  
 
In the last 10 years, Newport has seen the growth in semi-conductor and technology companies locating in the area.  
The Council’s Regeneration & Economic Development team in collaboration with CCR and Welsh Government 
supported KLA in the expansion of their operation at Newport’s Imperial Park, which will act as their European HQ.  
This is an example of how Newport Council is supporting industries to locate and sustain their presence in the city 
providing long term employment opportunities to residents across Newport and South East Wales.  In April 2022, the 
UK Government (UKG) published details of its £2.6bn Shared Prosperity Fund.  Newport was allocated over £27m of 
core funding to deliver over 50 projects / initiatives over the next three years and work will be commencing in 2023/24 
to deliver these projects.  Throughout the year, the Council’s Business Support team also continued to help businesses 
to access advice and financial support through the City of Newport Business Grants.  In total £36k was awarded to 17 
businesses creating a total of 52 new jobs.   
 
Strategic Priority 3 
 
City centres are places where people live, work, learn and play and perform a number of different functions at the 
heart of urban areas.  Like many other small cities in the UK there are many external factors impacting the long term 
sustainability of the city centre such as online shopping and commerce, out of town shopping, the Covid pandemic and 
now the Cost of Living crisis.  Over the last 3 years Newport City Council has offered business rates support to 
businesses and has been developing Grade A office spaces.  In 2022/23 we supported 20,000 sq ft of empty floor space 
brought back into use including Griffin House, a new pool bar at Station Quarter, and the Creative Hub on Commercial 
Street.  There are several strategies that we need to update and implement to support the recovery and regeneration 
of Newport including the city centre.  

Page 21

https://newportrldp.co.uk/
https://www.cardiffcapitalregion.wales/
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=rsp2hAS7gLg
https://www.kla.com/media-room/kla-wales-future-site-groundbreaking
https://www.newport.gov.uk/documents/About-Newport/Shared-Prosperity-Fund/ukspf-regional-investment-plan.pdf


 

 

www.newport.gov.uk 7 

Many of these strategies such as the Placemaking Plan and the Replacement Local Development Plan are still in 
development.  However, we have already started to make progress with the Indoor Market, new hotel and now the 
commencement of the Knowledge Quarter with the development of a new leisure centre and college.   
 
Strategic Priority 4 
 
Following the Covid Pandemic the Council’s visitor performance 
measure has seen a fall in the number of visitors to Newport.   The 
Council is working with partners to bring this back to pre-
pandemic levels. To support this Newport is able to offer a diverse 
range of events across the city to celebrate our culture, heritage 
and sporting events.  In 2022/23, Newport City Council supported 
over 30 events including the return of the Food Festival, Newport 
Marathon, Battle of Britain expedition, Art on the Hill and Small 
Business Saturday as some of the examples.  
In January 2023, the Council and ‘Friends of Newport Ship’ 
reported the completion of a significant milestone in the 
preservation of Newport’s Medieval ship.  As widely reported 
across the BBC, and other major media outlets, this has been a long process collaborating with experts from the Mary 
Rose museum to dry out the timbers.  Over the next year, the Council and its partners are going to be focusing on 
finding a permanent home for the ship to enable visitors to view the ship and experience medieval life in Newport.  
 
As part of the Council’s Corporate Plan, we are also developing the Cultural Strategy and Sports & Recreation Strategy 
which will support the City’s long term vision to embrace and promote the city’s diverse communities and also to 
ensure we are able to offer residents and visitors opportunities to participate in a wide range of sports and activities.   
 
Strategic Priority 5 
 
Newport’s Education service alongside Education Achievement Service (Gwent Education partner) supports one 
nursery, 44 primary schools, nine secondary schools, two special schools and one pupil referral unit.  At the end of the 
academic year 2022/23, the city had no primary, secondary or special schools in an Estyn Statutory category with it 
being the only local authority area in the region not to be in this position.  During the year, Newport High school and 
Malpas Church in Wales Primary school were removed from special measures.  Headteachers, and their staff are to be 
congratulated on their continuous hard work and resilience to achieve this position. 
 
The Council is committed to ensuring schools are able to meet the needs of its pupils, and communities creating safe, 
learning environments which they can all maximise their potential.  At the end of 2022/23, the Council had 6 projects 
in development through the Communities for Learning Programme and Welsh Medium programme.  The maintenance 
of our school estate is a challenge for the Council as evidenced through Millbrook Primary School needing to operate 
in temporary accommodation.  The Council is now working with the school to consider options for a long term solution 
and will announce the future of the school in 2023/24.             

Ysgol Gyfun Gwent Is Coed  
In January 2023, we delivered £18.7m new teaching block through the 
Communities for Learning Programme.  Through the delivery of this project 
the school is now able to offer a full 11-18 Welsh-medium curriculum and 
improved external sports provision which can be used to support community 
use. 
Newport is now able to meet the educational needs of children who are 
seeking Welsh-medium education from nursery to Post-16 removing the 
previous need for out of county provision.  This also supports the Council’s 
Welsh in Education Strategic Plan.   

Page 22

http://www.newport.gov.uk/
https://www.bbc.co.uk/news/uk-wales-64151535
https://www.newport.gov.uk/documents/Schools-and-Education/Newport-City-Council-Welsh-in-Education-Strategic-Plan-2022-2032.pdf


8 

 

 

Strategic Priority 6 
 
Recognising that there are many young learners who require additional support, it is important that schools can enable 
all learners to maximise their potential before entering into Post-16, further education, training and/or employment.  
The Council will be publishing a separate report on Key Stage 4 outcomes to the Council’s Cabinet in October 2023.   
 
Newport continues to perform well with low numbers of young learners not in education, employment and training 
(see performance measures). Schools have seen an increase in the number of learners with additional learning needs 
(ALN) and local authorities including schools are statutorily required to ensure their needs are met.  Last year, Ysgol 
Bryn Derw was expanded from 68 to 96 placements through the creation of a dedicated Foundation Phase Satellite 
base by refurbishing Kimberley Nursery school which became vacant in July 2021.  This meant we were able to provide 
additional specialist education places where mainstream environments are deemed inappropriate; a reduction in the 
number of current and future out of county placements and reduced travel time for those in out-of-county placements.  
In March 2023, the Council launched the ‘Tackling all Aspects of Poverty in Education’ strategy in partnership with 
Children in Wales and all schools.  The strategy is aimed to provide bespoke, targeted and universal approaches to 
tackling all aspects of poverty.  Initiatives being implemented include subsidising school trips, ‘One-million Mentors 
Programme’ offering community based mentoring system through to courses on financial awareness and management 
as part of the curriculum.  In September 2022, through Welsh Government funding, Newport’s primary schools were 
able to offer all pupils in Reception, Year 1 and Year 2 free school meals as well as extending free school meals in 
holiday times to May 2023.   

Llanwern High School – Culture of Cynefin 
 
Llanwern High School received a Professional Teaching Award under the Betty 
Campbell Award category for promoting the contributions and perspectives of Black, 
Asian and Minority Ethnic communities in June 2022. The award recognised their work 
to install a culture of Cynefin, where all members of the school community foster a 
feeling of belonging.   
The school reimagined the curriculum through the lens of diversity, embracing a whole 
school approach where pastoral and academic teams work together to ensure pupils 
authentically experience and celebrate diversity in their education. 
In partnership with the Council, the school also established and developed an 
Education Hub for secondary aged pupils arriving from the Ukraine.  This ensured 
Ukrainian young people were able to receive pastoral care and continue their 
educational development.    

 
Newport City Council has also been collaborating with 3 high schools: Lliswerry High, Llanwern High and John Frost 
through the Aspire programme.  Aspire is an alternative learning programme for pre-16 year olds providing learning 
opportunities to young people in years 10 and 11.  Each school supported 12 young people (36 in total) in 2022/23 
with their education and resulted in: 

• 8 C-F grade in English and Maths G.C.S.E  
• 19 YP achieved L2 Cert in Personal Dev and Employability (Princes Trust) 
• 5 YP achieved L2 Award in Personal Dev and Employability  
• 4 YP achieved L1 Cert in Personal Dev and Employability 

 
Newport Youth Academy has been operating for over five years and has provided opportunities for disadvantaged 
and vulnerable young people to access training, employment and further education.  The Academy in collaboration 
with ACT has supported young people to engage in education and training through innovative and exciting delivery 
programmes.  The case study and videos below, showcases some of the work the Academy has delivered in 2022/23. 

 

Page 23

https://www.gov.wales/professional-teaching-awards-cymru/2022-awards/llanwern-high-school
https://www.newport.gov.uk/en/Schools-Education/Newport-Youth-Academy.aspx


 

 

www.newport.gov.uk 9 

 

 
Strategic Priority 7 
 
Last year the Council launched its new Welsh in Education Strategic Plan and its Welsh Language 5 year Promotional 
Strategy.  Both strategies support the Welsh Government’s goal of a million Welsh speakers by 2050.  Every year the 
Council leads, promotes and participates in many Welsh language events across the city with its schools, communities 
and businesses.  This is in addition to improving the Welsh language skills of council officers as reported in the Council’s 
Welsh Language Annual Monitoring Report. 

We want all Welsh speakers and learners to be able to access 
services through the Welsh language, which we promoted 
through the Mae Geni Hawl video. The Council was also 
involved in key events and work such as: The Welsh for Adults 
services to support and signpost any adult who wants to start 
or increase their Welsh language skills; Welsh language child 
and parent events such as the Cymraeg i Blant sessions, baby 
shower events for expectant parents and reviewing and 
updating the ‘Becoming Bilingual’ information booklet for 
parents.  

Newport City Council also made funding available to support local community groups, organisations and individuals to 
promote, facilitate and increase the use of Welsh language across Newport.  Some of the organisations which benefited 
from the grant included the British Red Cross, Gaer Community Family Learning organisation, Newport Live, and 
Menter Iaith Casnewydd.  Further information can be found in the Council’s annual report linked above.  

Strategic Priority 8 
 
Poverty is a multi-dimensional, complex issue and is impacting more people in Wales.  It is important to note that 
Newport City Council cannot eradicate and/or move people out of poverty alone.  It requires significant leverages from 
UK Government and Welsh Government, our strategic partners across the city and more importantly Newport’s 
communities and individuals to improve their life opportunities.  The last year has been particularly challenging for the 
Council and partners with the cost of living crisis which has seen many households and families struggle to maintain 
their standards of living and meet the rising energy, food and fuel costs.  Throughout this report we cover many areas 
which demonstrate the ongoing work the Council and its partners have been undertaking to support people in 
2022/23.   

This strategic priority focuses on the economic development, training and support which the Council has provided 
people but also our commitment for Newport to be recognised as a ‘Living Wage City’. In collaboration between the 
Council and its partners in the One Newport group, the Council will be progressing this work further in 2023/24 
establishing a Steering group to lead on its development. 

Newport Youth Academy Case Study 
 
Two young learners with the Academy are aspiring sports coaches who have a strong interest in 
football.  Both had been volunteering at local primary schools and wanted to further their 
knowledge and an opportunity to access and complete the Football Association of Wales Football 
Leaders Award.      
Both learners achieved Level 1 Football Leaders Award and provided them with confidence and 
develop their own skills to progress further as football coaches.  There are also videos linked below 
which also showcase some of its key achievements supporting young people: 
Liam’s Interview 
Study with Newport Youth Academy 
 

 

Page 24

http://www.newport.gov.uk/
https://www.newport.gov.uk/documents/Schools-and-Education/Newport-City-Council-Welsh-in-Education-Strategic-Plan-2022-2032.pdf
https://www.newport.gov.uk/documents/Council-and-Democracy/Equalities-and-Welsh-language-/Welsh/5-Year-Promotional-Strategy-2022-2027.pdf
https://www.newport.gov.uk/documents/Council-and-Democracy/Equalities-and-Welsh-language-/Welsh/5-Year-Promotional-Strategy-2022-2027.pdf
https://www.newport.gov.uk/documents/Council-and-Democracy/Equalities-and-Welsh-language-/Welsh/Welsh-Language-Annual-Monitoring-Report-2022-23-eng.pdf
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=FM__2XIt-Nk
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=-UYHcbeBj_U
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=djnfy0L0WHw


10 

 

 

Other examples of how the Council has been supporting young people to gain the qualifications, training and 
employment are highlighted in Strategic Priority 6 above.  

Adult learning is a significant part of the Council’s economic, education and 
community work.  For young people leaving education and/or struggling with 
identifying the career path that is right for them, the Council alongside other 
government departments such as the Department for Work and Pensions support 
people to train, re-skill and find new employment.  

Led by the Council’s Regeneration & Economic Development team and 
collaborating with other services such as Prevention & Inclusion team and One 
Newport group, the Council has 19 job clubs operating across the city.  Two jobs’ 
fairs were delivered in 2022/23 in addition to other events such as Acorn 
Recruitment Day, Linc Cymru, Vital Rail / ARC training and His Majesties Courts and 
Tribunal Service.  In September 2022, Newport City Jobs fair was held at Newport 
Market with 59 employers and partners and over 400 customers in attendance.  
Employers including Newport City Council attending included Pobl, Newport Live, 
Smyths Toys, Stagecoach, Tescos, Celtic Manor Gwent Police and TATA. 

In collaboration with the Department for Work & Pensions / SERCO, Newport Council has been delivering the Restart 
scheme which welcomes all job seekers who have been out of work over a nine month period and receive tailored 1-
2-1 mentoring.  In the last year 130 participants were placed into work with 80 of these achieving their desired 
outcomes.   
Restart Case Study 1 (AR) 
 
AR had not been in paid work since 2015 and was coached 
for 8 months where they thought it was unlikely they would 
get a paid position before retirement.  Working with AR and 
SERCO, AR was coached and supported through a robust 
interview process with Starling Bank.  Following the 
interview process, AR was successful in securing the role 
with Starling Bank and has achieved their desired outcomes.    
 

Restart Case Study 2 (GD) 
 
GD joined the Restart programme not even having their own 
bank account.  Working with GD, their coach helped them set up 
a bank account, develop their CV and right to work 
documentation.   
Prior to coming to the service GD had never succeeded at 
interview and helped coached them to a successful interview at 
Wagamama.  Since obtaining the role, GD has remined in 
employment.  

 

The council’s Adult Community Learning team have been delivering a range of fully accredited ICT and Digital Skills 
courses at St Julian’s Community Learning & Library Centre and the East Neighbourhood Hub in Maesglas. These 
include: Computers Don’t Bite, Stay In Touch – IT in Everyday Life, Stay Safe Online, Internet & E-Mail, Calendars & 
Forms, Stay In Touch using Tablets & Smartphones, Introduction to Word Processing, Introduction to Spreadsheets, 
ICDL Level 1 and ICDL Level 2. Most of these courses only cost £5 and from Sept 2023 digital skills courses and 
Computers Don’t Bite will have no course fee. 
 
Adult Community Learning also offer a range of bespoke courses for community organisations which can be informal, 
non-accredited sessions if required. This includes offering courses in community venues including residential homes 
and housing schemes using laptops and tablets. If a venue can be provided, then these courses are usually free of 
charge. In November and December 2022 free drop-in sessions were held at the University of South Wales (USW) City 
campus where citizens could have a free digital health check and receive assistance from students studying at the 
USW. This was a project part-funded through by the UK Government through the UK Community Renewal Fund and 
was delivered as a partnership with NCC, USW and Welsh Institute of Digital Information (WIDI). Additionally, 
Community Connectors, Libraries and community hub teams signpost the availability of digital skills sessions. First 
point of contact employees such as librarians and hub staff can assist with basic digital queries and signpost citizens. 
Libraries have undertaken a digital skills audit with Digital Communities Wales so as to identify training needs in respect 
of the NCC libraries workforce. 

Page 25



 

 

www.newport.gov.uk 11 

Well-being Objective 1 – Performance Measures 
Performance 

Measure 
22/23 
Actual 

22/23 
Target 

Welsh 
Average* 

2021/22 
Actual 

2020/21 
Actual Commentary 

Number of tourism 
related visitors 
(Jan’22 to Dec’22) 

3.68m 4.67m Not 
Available 2.11m 4.67m 

Performance figures are for Jan – 
Dec 2022.  The target figure 
reflected the 2019, pre pandemic 
visitor number and was considered a 
suitable benchmark to compare the 
rate at which the visitor economy is 
recovering.   
We cannot predict the amount of 
time it will take to recover from the 
various periods of lockdown and 
when factoring in the cost of living 
crisis, escalating energy costs, and 
loss of skilled staff following Brexit, 
and war in Ukraine resulting in the 
loss of hotel rooms for a number of 
months, there were clearly ongoing 
challenges within the sector.  
However, 3.68 million visitor 
numbers is positive and we expect 
to see this improve over the coming 
year as we have extra bed spaces 
through the new Mercure 4 star 
hotel, a growing programme of 
events and conferences at the ICCW 
and the Council’s own events 
programme. 

(New) Number of 
young people aged 
16 to 24 provided 
with employment 
and skills support 
through the Young 
Persons Guarantee 

98* 200 Local 
Measure 

Not 
Available 

Not 
Available 

A full delivery year has not been 
completed for the Young Persons 
Guarantee.    
*Based on a 6 month period the 
performance figure is just short of 
the expected target. 

Percentage of 
young people NEET 
13 

1.4% 1.1% 2.8% 1.1% 2.1% 

Despite Newport not achieving its 
target 1.1%, in comparison to the 
Welsh average, Newport remains 
below the Welsh average of 2.8%.  
As highlighted in the report, we are 
supporting schools; and vulnerable 
and disadvantaged learners with 
pathways so that will not become 
NEET. 

Percentage of 
Young people NEET 
Year 11 

1.3% 1.3% 2.1% 1.3% 1.4% 
Education teams have continued to 
deliver sustained performance in 
this area keep NEET levels low. 

Percentage of 16 - 
18 year olds NEET 2% 2% Not 

Available 2.6% 2.6% 

This measure has improved this year 
thanks to a range of interventions 
and support provided to young 
people across Newport.  

 

Page 26

http://www.newport.gov.uk/


12 

 

 

Performance 
Measure 

22/23 
Actual 

22/23 
Target 

Welsh 
Average* 

2021/22 
Actual 

2020/21 
Actual Commentary 

Percentage of 
Young people 
recorded as 
unknown following 
compulsory 
education 

0.6% 1.1% Not 
Available 1.09% 1.13% 

The performance has improved in 
2022/23.  This has been as a result 
of early intervention and support 
work for young people.   

(New) Percentage 
of schools inspected 
that are in an Estyn 
statutory category. 

0% 5% Not 
Available 

Not 
Available 

Not 
Available 

At the end of the year the Newport 
High School and Malpas Church in 
Wales Primary School were 
removed from special measures.  

(New) Number of 
Permanent 
exclusions per 1,000 
pupils (Academic 
year 20/21) 

0.33% 0.58% Not 
Available 0.55 0.3 

In October 2022, the Welsh 
Government produced statistical 
data detailing national, regional 
and individual performance of 
Local Authorities exclusion data 
for the academic year 2020-21. 
Although this data showed 
Newport was above the Welsh 
average for permanent exclusions 
during 2020-21 with 0.55 per 
1,000 pupils, significant 
improvement has been made 
which can be demonstrated 
through the 2021-22 full Year data 
of 0.33 per 1,000 pupils which is 
reported in 2022-23. 

(New) Percentage 
of young people 
positively 
progressing 
through the Youth 
Academy. 

81% 60% Local 
Measure 

Not 
Available 

Not 
Available 

Target percentage is set by Welsh 
Government as a benchmark for all 
partners delivering on the Jobs 
Growth Wales+ contract. The 
percentages are RAG rated as per 
table below and therefore we 
finished 22/23 rated as Excellent. 

Number of 
businesses 
supported through 
the provision of 
advice and 
guidance. 

231 

No 
Target / 

Compara
tor 

measure 

Local 
Measure 3,922 4,114 

Previous performance figures 
quoted were based on the number 
of businesses supported through 
the distribution of Welsh 
Government funding during the 
Covid period.  The performance 
indicator is therefore being reset. 

(New) Number of 
events supported or 
led by the Council 30 

No 
Target 

(Baseline 
Year) 

Local 
Measure 

Not 
Available 

Not 
Available 

The events team have supported 
over 30 events including strategic 
events such as the Newport 
Marathon, Food Festival and 
Queen’s Platinum Jubilee. 

(New) Amount of 
floorspace brought 
back into use or 
developed / 
redeveloped in the 
City Centre. 

20,000 
sq. ft 

No 
Target 

(Baseline 
Year) 

Local 
Measure 

Not 
Available 

Not 
Available 

Empty space brought back into use 
includes Griffin House and the 
former Trout bar at Newport 
Market, a new pool bar at Station 
Quarter, and the Creative Hub on 
Commercial Street. 

*Welsh Average Data provided if available on Data Cymru Benchmarking or Stats Wales website. 

Page 27



 

 

www.newport.gov.uk 13 

Well-being Objective 1 – 23/24 Key Deliverables 
Below is a summary of some of the key priorities and deliverables Newport City Council will be delivering / 
progressing in 2023/24: 

• Development of key Council strategies including Placemaking Plan, Cultural Strategy, and Sports Strategy. 
• Delivery of the Council’s Shared Prosperity Fund. 
• Consultation at key stages of the Council’s Replacement Local Development Plan. 
• Delivery / progression of key regeneration projects including the Transporter Bridge, and the Leisure and 

Wellbeing Centre.  
• Meaningful progress on becoming a Living Wage City including establishment of a Steering group. 
• Delivery of key Communities for Learning projects across the school’s estate. 
• Ongoing delivery of projects and initiatives to support disadvantaged learners. 
• Delivery of training, support and job fairs to enable people to access training, qualifications and job 

opportunities.   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

Page 28

http://www.newport.gov.uk/


14 

 

 

Well-being Objective 2 – Newport’s Environment and 
Infrastructure 
A city that seeks to protect and enhance our environment whilst reducing our carbon 
footprint and preparing for a sustainable and digital future.  

No Strategic Priority RAG 
Assessment 

Well-being Objective 2 Overall Assessment  

1 Become a net zero carbon council and city through the delivery of the council’s organisational climate 
change plan and local area energy plan.  

 

2 Collaborate and involve developers, communities, and businesses to create buildings for working and 
living in that are sustainable, affordable and enhance the environment.  

 

3 Continue our progress as a world-leader for recycling contributing towards Wales’s net zero waste goal.  
4 To protect and enhance the biodiversity and environment of Newport’s urban and rural communities, 

improving well-being and health. 
 

5 Transform Newport’s highways and transport system to improve air quality and safety. Promote active 
travel across the city and south east Wales region. 

 

6 Collaborate and support investment into a digital infrastructure which will provide equitable access for 
residents and businesses across Newport. 

 

7 Support and champion reputable businesses that comply with environmental and regulatory 
requirements and take action against organisations that do not. 

 

 
Summary of Achievements and Challenges in 2022/23 

 
This Well-being objective is focused on the Council’s work to support the city, its communities, and businesses to meet 
the environmental, infrastructure and digital challenges of the future.  Overall, the Council has made a good start in 
the delivery of this Well-being objective and some notable projects such as the Newport Station Active Travel bridge 
and launch of key strategies such as the Local Area Energy Plan and Digital Strategy demonstrate the intention of the 
Council over the next 5 years.  However, there are also many challenges which the Council needs to tackle such as the 
net zero carbon neutral target by 2030, meeting the Welsh Government’s waste targets and maintaining our highways 
assets and infrastructure.      

Strategic Priority 1 
 
The Welsh Government has set legislation requiring all public sector bodies to be net zero carbon neutral by 2030.  In 
addition to this we also have to ensure the city’s infrastructure enables residents, commuters and businesses to 
become less reliant on cars; enable people to access high speed internet; and have buildings / communities which are 
sustainable, and enhance the city’s environment and communities.

Key Achievements 2022/23  Key Challenges 2022/23 
• Continuing good progress against waste performance 

targets and improvement on graffiti and gum litter 
• Progress towards delivery Net zero carbon by 2030.   

• Delivery of key Active Travel projects including Newport 
Station Active Travel bridge. 

• Affordable and sustainable housing in Newport to meet 
the housing demand needs. 

• Development of the Council’s Digital Strategy. • Continuing deterioration of highways assets, especially 
within the carriageway and bridge asset groups. 

• Continuous work of regulatory services to comply with 
environmental and regulatory requirements. 

 

• Continuing achievements and recognition for the Council’s 
parks and bio-diversity. 

 

• Electric Vehicle procurement, charging points and solar 
panel installations.  

 

Page 29



 

 

www.newport.gov.uk 15 

In 2022/23 the Council commenced delivering against its Climate Change Plan 2022-27.      
Progress against the Plan is reported separately through its annual report, which can be 
accessed here.   In the last year the Council reported a continued reduction with its CO2 
emissions from 78,901 in 2021/22 to 61,246 (Provisional) in 2022/23. Some of the notable 
areas achieved by the Council include: 
• Achievement of Carbon Literacy training and accreditation bronze award across the 

Council’s Cabinet Members, senior leadership team and over half of the Elected 
Members. 

• Installation of solar panels across 4 schools taking the overall number to 39. 
• LED lighting upgrades across 4 secondary and 4 primary schools. 
• 12 electric charging points installed across community car parks. 

However, the report also highlights the significant work that the Council and its partners need to deliver over the next 
7 years to achieve the net zero carbon goal by 2030 as highlighted in Well-being Objective 4. 

In June 2022, the Council’s Cabinet approved the Local Area Energy Plan (LAEP) for Newport which sets out its vision 
for reaching a zero-carbon local energy system by 2050.  The LAEP is a long term Plan and will be delivered in 
collaboration with strategic partners at a local, regional and national level.  Other Council strategies such as the Local 
Development Plan, Climate Change Plan, Digital Strategy will also contribute and support the delivery of this plan.   

Strategic Priority 2 
 
As already noted in Well-being Objective 1, work has commenced on developing the Replacement Local Development 
Plan which will be Newport’s long term assessment of development of the city from 2026.  Throughout the next 3 
years, we will be involving and collaborating with a wide range of stakeholders including residents and businesses to 
develop this Plan.  

As reported in Well-being Objective 3, Newport is facing a challenging housing situation with a lack of affordable and 
temporary accommodation to support households either at risk and/or are homeless.  As Newport City Council does 
not own housing stock, we have to work closely with Registered Social Landlords such as Housing Associations and 
private landlords to deliver affordable and sustainable housing across the city.  We acknowledge the challenge the 
Council and other local authorities across Wales face with reducing the number of empty private properties.  Despite 
the offer of renovation grants and loans to support property owners, it is complex and challenging to encourage owners 
to provide affordable and sustainable properties.    Last year the Council granted permission for 94 new affordable 
units in Newport and secured £24.9m for RSLs to deliver 396 units over the next 5 years.  Newport was also one of six 
flagship areas selected to deliver the Prince of Wales 5 year transformative Homewards programme (see Well-being 
Objective 3, Strategic Priority 5 for more information).   

We acknowledge that it is challenging to deliver more affordable homes to meet the demand and needs of residents 
across Newport which is why in 2023/24 the Council commenced a Housing Programme with the aim to improve the 
delivery of housing and homelessness services to residents, develop more affordable and sustainable homes and 
reduce the number of residents in temporary accommodation and on housing waiting lists.   
 
Strategic Priority 3 
 
The Welsh Government has set a target for zero waste by 2050 and at the end of the financial year 65.2% (provisional) 
of waste produced was either recycled, re-used or composted which is above the Welsh Government current target of 
64%.  The next challenge for the Council is to increase its performance further to meet the future Welsh Government 
target of 70% by 2025.  If the Council does not achieve this target then there is a risk of the Council being fined.  As a 
result, the Council has agreed to implement 3 weekly collections for domestic residual and garden waste and deliver 
service efficiencies.  In 2023/24, the Council will roll out the new service and will report its progress through the service 
plan mid-year review and next year’s annual report.   

Page 30

http://www.newport.gov.uk/
https://www.newport.gov.uk/documents/Strategies/Newport-City-Council-Organisational-Climate-Change-Plan-2022-27.pdf
https://democracy.newport.gov.uk/documents/s26163/Item%205.1%20-%20CC%20Plan%202022-27%20Annual%20Report%2022-23.pdf?LLL=0
https://www.newport.gov.uk/documents/Reports/Newport-Local-Area-Energy-Plan.pdf
https://homewards.org.uk/


 

 

16 

Graffiti Wall Project 
The Council continued its graffiti wall project in 2022/23 working with 
partners and community groups to commission a number of murals to 
improve the local environmental quality of the city.   
 
To date 12 areas across Newport have been enhanced through the 
project including Harlequin Roundabout, Brays Sweet Factory on 
Conway Road, Commercial Street, Glebelands Park and Pill Millenium 
Centre.  With all of the projects, the Council has involved local residents 
and community groups to decide the theme of the art.  The graffiti has 
enhanced the areas and have proven to be very popular with residents 
and local businesses.  
 

 

 
 
Last year, the Council’s Waste and Cleansing team received £20k funding through the Chewing 
Gum task Force grant fund to tackle chewing gum pollution across the city centre.  The funding 
was used to increase the cleansing of gum off the streets and funded gum litter prevention 
work included improved signage across the city centre.  
 
In the last year the Council continued to report strong performance in clearing reported fly-
tipping across the city.  Additionally, the Council’s waste enforcement team recorded 14 
prosecutions or waste duty of care offences and issued 25 fixed penalty notices.  
 
 
Strategic Priority 4 
 
The parks, woodlands, waterways (where Newport City Council is responsible), allotments and open spaces contribute 
towards improving the well-being and health of communities across Newport.   

In 2022/23 Beechwood Park and Belle Vue Park retained their Green Flag and Green Heritage status for the sixteenth 
and fifth year running, respectively. The Green Flag awards are a UK-wide scheme which recognise and reward well-
managed parks and green spaces.  
 
Newport Pollinator Project 
 
One of our ongoing projects delivered in partnership with Buglife and local 
community groups is the Newport Pollinator Project.  The aim of the project 
is to restore pollinator habitats to improve the resilience of ecological 
networks, and raise awareness and inspire people to take action for 
pollinators in their community including some of Wales’ most rare and 
threatened species. This has been coupled with other initiatives such as our 
bee-friendly bus stops, with several installed in 22/23. These shelters serve 
not only to provide habitat for invertebrates, but will also be highly visible 
and serve to raise awareness of the importance of these habitats for 
biodiversity. 
 
For further information you can visit the Council’s website through the link 
here. 
 

 

 

Page 31

https://www.southwalesargus.co.uk/news/23754451.newport-gets-first-graffiti-wall-glebelands-park/
https://www.keepbritaintidy.org/sites/default/files/resource/CGTF%20Year%201%20Annual%20Report.pdf
https://www.keepbritaintidy.org/sites/default/files/resource/CGTF%20Year%201%20Annual%20Report.pdf
https://www.newport.gov.uk/en/Leisure-Tourism/Countryside--Parks/Biodiversity/Biodiversity.aspx


 

 

www.newport.gov.uk 17 

Newport has received Tree Cities of the World status, a programme run by the 
Arbor Day Foundation and the Food and Agricultural Organisation (FAO) of the 
United Nations. The programme is an international effort to recognise cities 
and towns committed to ensuring that their urban forests and trees are 
properly maintained, sustainably managed, and duly celebrated. A total of 168 
cities and towns from 21 countries were recognised in 2022, with Newport one 
of over 50 cities earning the recognition for the first time.  
 
Ash Dieback disease was one of the Council’s Corporate risks due to the significant impact it has on the health & safety 
of residents and property, environmental impacts and the financial cost to remove and re-plant trees.  In 2022/23 a 
significant programme of work along the Monmouthshire-Brecon Canal was completed to manage trees impacted by 
Ash Dieback disease. This work will be followed by other interventions in 23/24 to improve the area around Fourteen 
Locks and address issues with water retention along the canal.  Due to this progress this risk was de-escalated from 
the Corporate Risk Register but will continue to be monitored by the service area. 

NCC and Natural Resources Wales work in partnership with individuals and organisations to identify a number of green 
infrastructure (GI) interventions and nature-based solutions for the heart of the City during 2022. This resulted in a 
Green Infrastructure Feasibility Study that will inform green interventions in the city centre in the future. Some GI 
projects developed in the city centre during 22/23 include new raingardens along the riverfront and the new Devon 
Place Footbridge. 
 
Strategic Priority 5 
 
The Council is responsible for the maintenance and management of the local highway network for the city (not 
including motorways and major trunk roads).  As with all other local authorities in Wales and England, the condition 
of the city’s highways assets has continued to decline with highway investment failing to maintain “steady state” as a 
minimum asset condition, which is monitored via targeted performance indicators and the corporate risk register. The 
council continues to manage the highway assets in accordance with the Highway Asset Management Plan 2019-2023 
which, as a quinquennial plan, is currently under review. In 2022/23, there were improvements to the A467 at 
Rogerstone that provided sections of new vehicle restraint (crash barrier) together with significant carriageway and 
drainage improvements under WG Resilient Roads funding. This was targeted at road safety and climate change 
sustainability as a result of the sites history of surface water flooding.  
 
Newport City Council recognises it is important to work collaboratively with WG, Transport for Wales and CCR to attract 
significant investment to improve the local highway network.  Over the last year, the Council’s Infrastructure team has 
been collaborating with the Burns Delivery Unit to implement the recommendations from the report to improve the 
network across Newport and the region.  The Burns Delivery Board Annual Report can be accessed here.  The Delivery 
Unit has been working on developments including improvements to Newport Central travel (Old Green roundabout), 
and the A48 Cardiff and Newport Active Travel and Bus Corridor.  Through the Council’s involvement with CCR, ongoing 
development is being made with the South Wales Metro across the region.  There is ongoing development to increase 
the number of stations between Newport Cardiff and Bristol which will make it easier for residents to become less 
reliant on using their cars to travel across the region.  Further information can be found here. 

Throughout 2022/23, the Council has been preparing for the Welsh Government default 20mph speed limit 
introduction on 17th September 2023.  To implement the changes, Newport City Council has been drafting new traffic 
regulation orders and amending signage and lines across the city. Further information can be found on the Council’s 
website here.   

The Council’s Active Travel programme has continued to deliver projects that improve the way we can sustainably 
travel across the city. In 2022/23, four projects were completed including Sorrel Drive and, 14 Locks.  The Council’s 
Active Travel team will continue to work with Welsh Government to identify and deliver new Active Travel projects in 
2023/24.Work is underway on the development of a city-wide cycle hire scheme which will include safe storage for 
bikes and continues to work with Newport Live in their delivery of the Welsh Government funded Behaviour Change 
Programme.

Page 32

http://www.newport.gov.uk/
https://treecitiesoftheworld.org/
https://tfw.wales/sites/default/files/2023-02/BSG-RPT%20Chairs%20Annual%20Report%2022-23%20FINAL_0.pdf
https://tfw.wales/projects/metro/south-wales-metro
https://www.newport.gov.uk/en/Transport-Streets/20mph-streets/20mph-streets.aspx
https://treecitiesoftheworld.org/


 

 

18 

In support of a modal shift to sustainable travel, significant improvements have been made to the city’s bus passenger 
shelter infrastructure with a continuation of the shelter replacement programme. This has delivered significant 
improvements to the asset group which has included living roof (bee friendly shelters) together with solar powered 
lighting and passenger information screens. 

Successful school street trials were undertaken at three schools within the city in partnership with Sustrans. The three 
sites trialled were Malpas Church Primary School, St Joseph’s Primary School and Tredegar Park Primary School. Their 
locations facilitated the closing of their roads without impacting on through traffic and had well documented issues 
with school gate congestion. Further roll out of school street trials are planned for 2023/24. 

Active Travel Programme - Newport Station Active Travel Bridge 
 
At the end of the financial year Newport Station Active Travel Bridge was 
officially opened connecting Devon Place to the city centre.  The bridge, funded 
by Welsh Government, was completed in collaboration with Network Rail, Arup, 
Grimshaw and Corderoy, which provided many challenges to build the 
footbridge over a busy station with the requirement to ensure the safe running 
of the railway.  The footbridge replaced the old subway providing residents and 
visitors a safer, more accessible route across the railway line.  The new 
footbridge also provides access for wheelchair users, cyclists and walkers. 
This is one of many successful Active Travel projects delivered by the Council 
and further information can be found through the Council’s website here.   

 

 
The council has available data from both the 2021 and 2022 Air Quality Progress Reports. These reports provide 
information for air quality data captured in those years. In summary, and for both years, monitoring demonstrates the 
annual concentration of nitrogen dioxide is below the air quality objective of 40 µg/m3 in all Air Quality Management 
Areas (AQMA). Whilst the nitrogen dioxide reductions for 2020 were celebrated with a note of caution, due to much-
reduced travel due to pandemic travel restrictions, the reductions for 2021 support the view that the air quality is 
moving towards sustainable compliance. This can be attributed to the ever-increasing use of electric vehicles (EV) 
across the city, increases of EV vehicles in Council and other fleets such as Newport Transport, and other measures to 
encourage reduced use of vehicles in the city and cleaner air. To illustrate the progress; in 2018, of the 82 monitoring 
stations, 26 showed an annual reading in excess of 34 µg/m3, in 2021 this reduced to 5 stations and in 2022 this 
reduced further to 2 stations.   

Strategic Priority 6 
 
Newport’s digital infrastructure is vital to enable residents, businesses and visitors being 
able to access services online, engage in digital transactions and connect through the global 
markets.  As highlighted in Well-being objective 1 it is important that Newport has a digital 
infrastructure which enables high-tech companies such as KLA to locate in Newport as well 
enabling home grown, innovative and creative industries such as the film / tv industries to 
locate in Newport.  To support the Corporate Plan, in March 2023, Newport Council 
launched its new Digital Strategy which has identified as one of its themes ‘Digital 
Infrastructure and Connectivity’.  The Strategy outlines the collaborative work which we 
will do to support invest in new technology to improve networks ensuring residents and 
businesses have access to fast and reliable digital services.  

In 2022/23, the Council went out to tender for a supplier to deliver the Welsh Government’s Local Broadband Fund 
(LBF).  The Outcomes of the LBF will improve the full fibre connectivity and provision of in-building assistive technology 
and telecare services to three council managed residential care homes.  Delivery of the project will complete in 
2023/24.  The Further information on the Council’s digital transformation is reported in Well-being Objective 4.   

Page 33

https://www.newport.gov.uk/en/Transport-Streets/Active-Travel/Active-travel.aspx
https://www.newport.gov.uk/en/Transport-Streets/Pollution-and-noise-control/Air-quality-data-reports.aspx
https://www.newport.gov.uk/en/Council-Democracy/Digital-Strategy/Digital-Strategy.aspx


 

 

www.newport.gov.uk 19 

 
Strategic Priority 7 
 
Newport Council is required to protect the environment and ensure services delivered by businesses meet the 
necessary regulatory requirements such as health & safety and public protection.  The Council’s Public Protection team 
have continued to support businesses to comply with regulations and where non-compliance has been identified, 
taken action.  In 2022/23 the Council’s enforcement team: 
• Illegal Tobacco – 8 premises received 3 month closure orders and seized over 300k of counterfeit cigarettes and 

64,51 kilos of tobacco. Four businesses prosecuted and over £100k frozen assets. 
• Illegal vaping devices – 1,930 illegal vapes seized from 10 shops and 1 shop owner prosecuted. 
• Age restricted sales – 21% of 103 businesses tested sold age restricted items to underage children. 
• Food ingredients – 40% of 449 food standard inspections failed allergen labelling requirements with 4 

prosecutions for unsafe food.  
• Counterfeit goods – 14 investigations undertaken with one investigation resulting in £140k confiscation order and 

another investigation with a £4k fine.  

In October 2022, Newport Dogs Home won gold in two categories at the RSPCA Cymru Pawprints Awards for their 
work with stray dogs and kennel service.  Newport Dogs Home takes in stray dogs found by residents or the council’s 
dog wardens.  The Dogs Home also provides a Re-homing service and offer opportunities for people to become a dog 
fosterer.   

 

 

Page 34

http://www.newport.gov.uk/


 

 

20 

Well-being Objective 2 – Performance Measures 
Performance 

Measure 
22/23 
Actual 

22/23 
Target 

Welsh 
Average* 

2021/22 
Actual 

2020/21 
Actual Commentary 

Percentage of 
principal A roads 
that are in overall 
poor condition 

4.8% 2.3% Not 
Available 2.1% 2.3% 

The condition of the city’s highway 
assets is declining, with asset condition 
continuing to deteriorate year on year. 
This is also reflected in the Council’s 
Corporate Risk Register. Percentage of 

principal B roads 
that are in overall 
poor condition 

4.5% 3.5% Not 
Available 3.1% 4.4% 

(NEW) Number of 
play areas replaced 
or improved 
annually 

4 10 Local 
Measure 

Not 
Available 

Not 
Available 

There have been improvements to the 
play areas planned work with a new 
heavy focus on engagement with 
residents. Significant work to develop 
and implement the engagement plan 
and complete preparatory work was 
carried out in 22/23, with a number of 
interventions being progressed. While 
overall number of interventions may be 
below target, the wider improvement 
programme is on track and results will 
be visible from 23/24 

Percentage of 
significant 
Regulatory issues 
resolved 

91% 95% Local 
Measure 79.3% 78.3% 

This is good performance given that 
22/23 was a year of recovery from the 
impact of the pandemic, some staff 
were still focussed on the Covid 
response until August, standards in 
businesses have been more challenging 
to deal with due to reduced regulation 
during the pandemic, and certain teams 
have carried vacancies through much of 
the financial year. 

(NEW) Number of 
Pocket parks/ rain 
gardens created or 
improved. 

3 4 Local 
Measure 

Not 
Available 

Not 
Available 

This indicator is close to the target, 
majority of the work carried out in 22/23 
will lead to completion of another rain 
garden in early 23/24. 

(NEW) Value of the 
impact service 
actions have on 
returning and 
protecting funds to 
residents 

£257k £300k Local 
Measure 

Not 
Available 

Not 
Available 

This new indicator aims to provide, for 
the first time, a monetary reference to 
the work carried out to protect 
residents. The service area aimed for an 
ambitious target as a starting point, so 
an overall result only 15% short of the 
target is a positive outcome. 

Number of Active 
Travel (AT) 
Journeys 360,057 400,000 Local 

Measure 393,952 280,145 

The decrease was due to Malpas-Bettws 
Canal towpath resurfacing where the AT 
counter was removed for 7-8 months. 
Corporation Rd AT counter had defects 
for part of the year. Pandemic recovery 
led to an overall drop in AT journeys. 

*Welsh Average Data provided if available on Data Cymru Benchmarking or Stats Wales website. 

Page 35



 

 
www.newport.gov.uk 21 

Performance 
Measure 

22/23 
Actual 

22/23 
Target 

Welsh 
Average* 

2021/22 
Actual 2020/21 Actual Commentary 

Percentage of all 
planning appeals 
dismissed. 

71.43% 
(30 / 42) 77% Not 

Available 76.9% 74.1% 

We aim to make good quality 
decisions and have set a target 
above the Welsh Government 
target of 66%.  Planning is often 
subjective in respect of matters 
such as design and Planning 
Committee are entitled to make 
decisions against officer 
recommendation. 

Percentage of Bi-
monthly 
cleanliness 
inspections of 
highways and 
relevant land 

99.6% 97% Not 
Available 98.7% 99.2% 

Improved standard ahead of 
target. 

Percentage of 
Municipal waste 
re-used, recycled 
or composted.  

65.2% 
(45,485 T / 
69,793 T) 

64% 65.2% 
(21/22) 67.1% 67.2% 

This figure is provisional (subject 
to WG validation). Sustained 
performance levels for 22/23. 

Kilograms of 
residual waste 
generated per 
person 

152.25 
kg / 

person 

155 
kg/person 

 
Not 

Available 

155.54 
kg/person 153.24 kg/person 

Improved performance compared 
to previous year and ahead of 
target. 

Percentage of 
municipal waste 
recycled at the 
HWRC 

84% 70% Local 
Measure 82.4% 93.7% 

Improved performance compared 
to previous year and ahead of 
target. 

Average number 
of days taken to 
clear fly tipping 
incidents. 

1.4 
days 
(1,654 
days / 
2,219 
days) 

1.5 days Not 
Available 1.23 days 1.53 days 

Sustained performance levels 
over time, and under target limit. 

Number of events 
held on a range of 
countryside 
biodiversity and 
recycling related 
matters. 

96 45 Local 
Measure 102 0 

Events delivered in line with 
previous year’s figures and well 
ahead of target. 

Percentage of all 
planning 
applications 
determined in 
time. 

66.5% 
(658 / 
989) 

65% Not 
Available 62.4% 67.1% 

Performance is improving steadily 
as the year has progressed despite 
recruitment issues.  Team 
continues to reduce the backlog of 
applications created during the 
prolonged covid period. 

(New) Number of 
programmed 
highway safety 
inspections 
completed on 
time 

100% 90% Local 
Measure 

Not 
Available Not Available 

To ensure the asset condition, 
maintenance requirement and its 
associated risk to the highway 
user is understood, the service 
area undertakes programmed 
inspections of the highway in 
accordance with the councils 
Highway Maintenance Manual. 

Percentage of 
principal C roads 
that are in overall 
poor condition 7.4% 8.8% Not 

Available 5.9% 6.4% 

The condition of the city’s highway 
assets is declining, with asset 
condition continuing to 
deteriorate year on year. This is 
also reflected in the Council’s 
Corporate Risk Register. 

Page 36

http://www.newport.gov.uk/


22 

 

 

Performance 
Measure 

22/23 
Actual 

22/23 
Target 

Welsh 
Average* 

2021/22 
Actual 

2020/21 
Actual Commentary 

(New) Number of 
reactive highway 
safety inspections 
completed on 
time 100% 90% Not 

Available 
Not 

Available 
Not 

Available 

To ensure the asset condition, 
maintenance requirement and its 
associated risk to the highway user 
is understood, the service area 
undertakes reactive inspections of 
the highway in response to 
stakeholder notifications in 
accordance with the councils 
Highway Maintenance Manual. 

(New) Category 1 
Defects 
completed within 
response time 

100% 90% Local 
Measure 

Not 
Available 

Not 
Available 

Defects repaired within 24hrs in 
accordance with the councils 
Highway Asset Management Plan. 

(New) Category 2 
Defects 
completed within 
response time 

89.1% 85% Local 
Measure 

Not 
Available 

Not 
Available 

Defects repaired within 5 days in 
accordance with the councils 
Highway Asset Management Plan. 

(New) Metres (M) 
of new or 
improved Active 
Travel Routes 
completed 

3,710m 500m Local 
Measure 

Not 
Available 

Not 
Available 

Newport Station Active Travel 
Bridge, Sorrel Drive and Fourteen 
Locks. 

(NEW) Percentage 
of businesses that 
were either 
compliant or 
brought into 
compliance 
during the period 

97% 97% Not 
Available 

Not 
Available 

Not 
Available 

First year this performance 
indicator is in use and delivered on 
target which is an excellent result. 

(New) Number of 
new affordable 
housing units 
granted planning 
permission during 
the year. 

94 units 
No Target 
(Baseline 

Year) 

Local 
Measure 

Not 
Available 

Not 
Available 

A new performance indicator.   
Note this figure does not include 
Reserved Matters applications 
where the % of units to be 
affordable was secured at outline 
stage. 

Percentage of 
Food 
establishments 
broadly compliant 
with food hygiene 
standards 

95% 95% 96.4% 
(19/20) 95.5% 96.6% 

Excellent result and target met, 
considering this was a post-covid 
recovery year.  

(NEW) Value of 
the impact service 
actions have on 
regulatory 
criminality 

£1,748m £1.5m Local 
Measure 

Not 
Available 

Not 
Available 

New indicator that shows financial 
impact on public protection 
interventions, with very positive 
results. 

(NEW) Total 
Council Carbon 
Emissions (Tonnes 
of CO2 
equivalent) 

61,246 
CO2e 74,900 Not 

Available 78,900 89,942 

Sustained reduction in carbon 
emissions over time, in line with 
climate change plan. 

*Welsh Average Data provided if available on Data Cymru Benchmarking or Stats Wales website. 

Page 37



 

 

www.newport.gov.uk 23 

Well-being Objective 2 – 23/24 Key Deliverables 
Below is a summary of some of the key priorities and deliverables Newport City Council will be delivering / 
progressing in 2023/24: 

• Continuing delivery of the Council’s Climate Change Plan and Local Area Energy Plan 
• Implementation of the 20mph default speed limit. 
• Continuing the roll out of the 3 weekly bin collection. 
• Delivery of the Active Travel programme and Safe Routes in Communities. 
• First year of delivery of the Council’s Digital Strategy 
• Delivery of new and refurbished parks, play areas and open spaces across Newport.  
• Continuing delivery of affordable and sustainable housing units in Newport. 

 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 

Page 38

http://www.newport.gov.uk/


24 

 

 

Well-being Objective 3 – Quality Social Care and 
Community Services 
Newport is a supportive city where communities and care are at the heart of what we do. 

No Strategic Priority RAG 
Assessment 

Well-being Objective 3 Overall Assessment  

1 
Create sustainable adult, children’s and prevention services through a co-production model with 
providers, service users, and carers to meet our statutory duties, future demands, and eliminate profit 
from children’s social care.  

 

2 Safeguarding our children, young people, vulnerable adults and families so that future generations can 
maximise their potential and have control over their lives.  

 

3 We will support individuals and carers to maintain their independence and support them when they 
need help by providing equitable access to early intervention and prevention support. 

 

4 Strengthening our investment in early intervention and prevention with a range of youth, play and 
community based activities supporting families and individuals to live positive and healthy lives. 

 

5 Reduce the number of people that are and/or at risk of becoming homeless through the provision of a 
holistic housing and preventative multi-agency support services. 

 

6 Newport will be a City of Sanctuary which supports Asylum Seekers, refugees and our global community 
to settle and become part of our community. 

 

7 Promote positive community inclusion and culture by engaging with key stakeholders and communities 
to address issues of anti-social behaviour and crime. 

 

 
Summary of Achievements and Challenges in 2022/23 

 
The progress towards delivering some of the Council’s strategic priorities in social services, housing and homelessness 
have been impacted by the need to manage winter pressures across health and social care, the cost of living crisis such 
as households struggling to meet increases in their mortgage and rental costs, increase cost of food and energy prices.  
Pressures across the Council’s Social Services, Housing & Communities service also have an impact on the Council’s 
financial revenue position as we meet our statutory duties to manage increases in demand, and inflationary cost 
pressures.   These are reflected in some of our performance measures where the resilience to meet these demands is 
challenging.    

Key Achievements 2022/23  Key Challenges 2022/23 
• Youth Services recognised for Bronze Quality Mark.  • Housing and Homelessness demands on the Council and 

impact on other front line services such as Social Services 
and Education. 

• Meeting the demand to support Ukrainian refugees in 
Newport.   

• Eliminate Programme and remove profit from the care of 
children. 

• Establishing Cost of Living Delivery group collaborating 
with health, GAVO, charities and other not for profit 
organisations providing advice and support such as ‘Warm 
Spaces’ during winter period. 

• Stability of social care providers and provision of 
residential / domiciliary care.  

• Development and approval of the Pillgwenlly Master Plan • Pressures on Adult and Children services to meet demand. 
• Expansion of the Council’s Flying Start offer to residents in 

Newport. 
• Improve Safeguarding training provided to Members and 

staff through the roll out of the National Safeguarding 
training standards and ensure compliance. 

 • Prevention & Inclusion grant funding from Welsh 
Government. 

Page 39



 

 

www.newport.gov.uk 25 

In response, the Council has established a new service area (Preventions and Inclusions), and commenced several 
projects / initiatives to find long term solutions and improve our performance and to have more resilient services to 
meet demand.    

Strategic Priority 1 
 
Newport City Council is responsible for delivering Adult, Children and Preventative services for residents across 
Newport. The Council’s Director of Social Services produces an annual report which self-reflects on the achievements, 
and challenges Social Services have faced and looking forward on their priorities for 2023/24.  The full report can be 
found through the link here.  
 
As with many services across the Council, Adults, Childrens and Preventative services collaborate with third sector, 
private and charity organisations to deliver the range of statutory and non-statutory services.  It is also important that 
the voices of individuals, families, and carers are also considered in the delivery our services.  As highlighted above, 
the Council has experienced increasing demand to meet the needs of people with long term and complex care and 
support needs.  Within Adult Services, there has been continuing review of the Adult Services structure and the 
provision of residential and domiciliary care services which is covered further in Strategic Priority 3 below.   

Reablement Service, Adult Services 
Newport Reablement Care Team are based within the Newport Integrated Frailty service. The Team provides short term 
Reablement Care for any adult living in Newport. The aim is to support people to be as independent as possible following a stay 
in hospital or to prevent people being admitted to hospital. 
During the past twelve months the Reablement Care team support staff have continued to visit people in their own home after 
they have been discharged from hospital or become unwell at home and required some support. Initially when someone 
commences support with the team, they may feel very vulnerable and have experienced a loss of confidence. The team have a 
close, professional working relationship working with Frailty falls service, rapid nurses, occupational therapists, 
physiotherapists, mental health nurses, district nurses as well as social workers, NHS staff and GPs. 
At the end of the reablement care support some people are assessed as requiring a more long-term care package and a social 
worker will complete an assessment of needs to put this in place. 
During the past six months 60% of people the care team have supported through reablement were discharged from the service 
as being independent. We regularly receive compliments from people, or their relatives and they often individually name staff. 

 
Within Children services co-production in the context of complex family situation is often challenging but the Council’s 
role is to navigate those complexities with the needs of all in mind but the needs of those requiring care support to 
the fore.  One of the biggest challenges and risks the Council faces is the requirement for all Council’s to implement 
the WG policy to eliminate profit from the care of children looked after (fostering and residential placements) by 2027.  
Prior to this Newport Council has already taken steps to increase the number of children residential settings through 
the development of Windmill Farm and Rose Cottage.  In response Newport Council is leading in collaboration with 
the other Gwent local authorities a programme to develop more homes and placements through its own service and 
social enterprises.  However, the Council has experienced challenges over the last year, as existing private sector 
providers are starting to leave the market and reducing the supply of providers and placing the Council at risk of non-
compliance with the Social Services Well-being act.  The Council is working closely with Care Inspectorate Wales, WG 
and other local authorities to prevent this risk. 

Strategic Priority 2 
 
The Council’s Social Services presented its annual Safeguarding Report 2022/23 to the Council’s Cabinet in June 2023.  
The report highlighted and demonstrated how the Council is meeting its safeguarding requirements and that 
safeguarding is everyone’s responsibility.  However, the report highlighted some challenges in ensuring Members and 
officers had completed required safeguarding training, but also how this has been addressed. 

Page 40

http://www.newport.gov.uk/
https://democracy.newport.gov.uk/documents/s25872/04i%20Director%20of%20Social%20Services%20Annual%20Report%20v1.pdf?LLL=0
https://democracy.newport.gov.uk/documents/s25752/Item%205%20-%20Interim%20Corporate%20Safeguarding%20Report%20for%2023%20Final_%20FM.pdf?LLL=0


26 

 

 

As identified in the Annual Governance Statement and Internal Audit reports (reported to Governance & Audit 
Committee), weaknesses were identified in Children Services relating to the financial management of Adoption 
Allowances and Safeguarding of Children’s money (Related to Junior Savings Accounts and Child Trust Funds).  
Improvements are being made with the internal controls and processes in Children Services and further updates will 
be provided in 2023/24.       

In 2022/23, the Council saw increasing numbers of safeguarding referrals to both Children and Adult Services.  Within 
Children Services we received over 11,000 contacts (majority from Police, Health and Education) relating to children 
at risk of harm and abuse.  In Adult Services, 246 investigations were completed (up from 140 in 21/22) of which 92 
resulted in criminal investigations.  All referrals / contacts are managed within a clear framework of understanding risk 
with a need to balance personal determination and recognising risk is rarely a straightforward binary position.   

Safeguarding Hub 
The Safeguarding HUB is the first point of contact for the public and professionals who are making referrals with concerns for 
children who are at risk of significant harm or have care and support needs. The team processes a variety of enquiries ranging 
from requests for information and services through to concerns about the welfare or safety of a young person between the 
ages of 0 – 18 years. 
The HUB is responsible for making initial decisions about what should be done in regard to referrals to Social Services. The Hub 
is extremely busy and processes more than 1,000 referrals a month, ranging from care and support needs to high end child 
protection concerns. The HUB is multi-disciplinary and has close working relationships with partner agencies including, Youth 
Justice Service, Early intervention and Prevention, Adult Safeguarding, Police, Education, health and IDVA’s. Having multi agency 
partners all sat together in one room is invaluable in ensuring that families get the right support at the right time. As we know 
safeguarding is everyone’s business and not just social services. 
There are several positive success stories for the hub, where working together has supported families to feel empowered and 
included in the assessment process. The Hub staff work tirelessly to ensure that families are supported, and children remain 
safe. They work in a strengths-based way, whilst considering the families personal outcomes to exact and maintain change. 

 
Strategic Priority 3 
 
Independent living is important for people to remain living at home and within their communities.  One of the biggest 
challenges is to support people transitioning from hospital care either back into their homes or into a suitable 
residential setting.  The Council has been collaborating closely with Aneurin Bevan University Hospital (ABUHB) to 
improve this process for individuals, but the last year has seen the Council needing to review the pathways available 
and what the Council can deliver and where we need to look at other social enterprises / organisations to support.   

In collaboration between Adult Services and Digital Services, the Council 
launched its SMART home pilot project in Newport Market.  The purpose of 
this is to demonstrate the assistive technologies and to support residents with 
independent living. The service provides individuals and families information 
about how different technology can help people with complex needs such as 
Alzheimer’s, and support with implementing the technology into their homes.    
 
A significant pressure for the Council has been the provision of domiciliary care 
provision where external providers have been unable to offer the support needed for people to live independently at 
home.  At its worse the Council saw up to 1,200 hours not commissioned for one week.  In response and self-reflecting 
the Council worked closely with service providers, individuals and their families and with other teams to reduce this to 
less than 10 hours waiting to be commissioned.  However, the pressures are likely to remain for the foreseeable future 
as inflationary pressures, workforce retention and demands on the service remain.   
 

Page 41



 

 
www.newport.gov.uk 27 

Strategic Priority 4 
 
Early prevention and intervention work with families and communities are vital to prevent long-term impacts on other 
services delivered by the Council and other public sector organisations.  Majority of the Council’s work is delivered 
through WG grants, programmes and initiatives such as Flying Start. In 2022/23 the Prevention & Inclusion team 
successfully brought together a range of services such as Adaptations, Substance Misuse, Youth and Play services, 
Flying Start and Families First. 
 
The service area, which is predominately grant funded, is committed to ensuring service provision is meeting the needs 
of Newport residents and is making a difference to their lives on the issues that matter to them.  However, the financial 
position will be challenging in 23/24 as future grant funding is reviewed by WG.  From 2023/24, Community Connectors 
Carers Officer and the Community Development team will have joined the service area from Adult services to continue 
front-line and work and support to vulnerable residents.    

In 2022/23 the service has been working with partner organisations recommissioning key services in substance misuse 
and Families First programme.  The service area also remodelled its Play services and improved its Youth service offer 
which was recognised with the Bronze Quality Mark for Youth Services. The service area also delivered the phased 
expansion of its Flying Start offer across Newport to a further nine areas, and procurement of an additional 5 childcare 
providers (2 of which are Welsh medium) and integrating its services more closely with health, Adults, Children and 
Education services to improve early intervention pathways. There are many emerging opportunities and challenges 
which the service is facing including the ongoing financial pressures of the grant funding to meet rising costs and are 
collaborating with the Asset Rationalisation programme to examine how communities are using Council buildings and 
services and improving the performance measures used to demonstrate the delivery of the Prevention and Inclusion 
services.      
 
The cost of living crisis, pressures in the housing market, legislation and welfare benefit changes has had significant 
impact on households across Newport with people experiencing increases in their energy, food, rent and mortgage 
costs.  Throughout 2022/23 monthly updates were reported to the Council’s Cabinet on the impact of cost of living 
and the Council’s response.  The Prevention & Inclusion service established a multi-agency ‘Cost of Living Delivery 
group’ collaborating with a broad range of Council, health, third sector partners to deliver initiatives and support 
people struggling with the cost of living.  This ranged from providing grant funding and support to food banks / 
organisations, delivering ‘Cost of Living’ events providing energy, debt, housing and employment / training advice and 
the provision of “warm spaces”.    Using funding from Welsh Government and in collaboration with GAVO, we 
supported 6,466 people across 498 sessions with “Warm Spaces”.   
 
Strategic Priority 5 
 
Housing and homelessness in Newport is a significant pressure for the Council and the Registered Social Landlords.  In 
2022/23 the Council saw increase of 115% of people approaching the Council, with 450 people placed in temporary 
accommodation, an average of 28 people sleeping rough at any one time, and around 10,000 registered on the 
Common Housing Register.  Newport has also reported the highest numbers of rough sleepers in Wales with an average 
of 28 people sleeping rough at any one time.  All of this is impacting the Council’s ability to meet this demand and 
increasing the waiting times for assessment.  The Council’s performance in this area is therefore challenging as a result 
of these pressures.     

In response, the Council’s Housing & Communities team has established a major programme of work which includes 
reviewing the structure of the service, improving systems and processes to improve the efficiency to support and 
signpost people to appropriate services and working with RSLs to increase the number of affordable and sustainable 
housing across Newport.  Already, in 2022/23, the Council was able to distribute £24.9m of Social Housing Grant to 
RSLs to deliver affordable housing which will provide an additional 396 units of accommodation across the next 5 years.  
In June 2023, Newport welcomed Prince William to the city, where it was announced that the city will be one of six 
areas in the UK to launch his Homewards programme to end homelessness. Further progress on how the Council will 
be supporting this work will be reported in 2023/24. 

Page 42

http://www.newport.gov.uk/
https://homewards.org.uk/


28 

 

 

Strategic Priority 6 
 
As a Home Office Dispersal area, Newport City Council has a legal requirement to support Asylum Seekers and refugees.  
Newport City Council and our partners recognise the additional pressures which this has on existing services but we 
also understand that we have a duty of care and safeguarding duties to ensure vulnerable people, especially children 
are supported and not put at risk of exploitation, and criminal activity.    In 2022/23, Newport City Council’s Children 
Services has been leading and sharing best practice on a regional collaboration between Gwent local authorities to 
support Unaccompanied Asylum Seeker Children (UASC) and families seeking refuge.  To meet the demands on the 
Council, we have expanded the capacity of the team to employ an additional support worker, senior practitioner and 
an immigration specialist advisory post.  Additionally, the team has also funded a third sector partner to provide 
support work capacity for the Council and improving sharing of information across the Council’s services to provide 
holistic support.  

The Ukrainian conflict has continued to cause disruption for many Ukrainian families who have been unable to return 
home.  Since the UK and Welsh Government’s commitments to support the Ukrainian conflict and refugees, At the end 
of March 2023 Newport had 118 people living with 56 sponsors in Newport and 40 households living in one Newport 
hotel, 3 households living in Housing Justice Cymru interim accommodation and a further 12 householders living in a 
hotel under the Welsh Government Super Sponsor scheme.  Across Newport’s schools we had 50 Ukrainian learners.  
Newport Council is working closely with the Welsh Government, the third sector and charities to ensure that we are 
able to find longer term secure accommodation for those that are living in the hotels. 
      
Strategic Priority 7 
 
Throughout 2022/23, the Council has led as part of the One Newport Partnership the development of the Pillgwenlly 
Master Plan which was reported to the Council’s Cabinet in May 2023.  Collaborating with partner organisations and 
involving local residents, community leads and local businesses, the Council developed the Master Plan as the key, 
strategic driver to improve the Pillgwenlly.   The Master Plan sets out 5 key work areas: 

1. Improving communication 
2. Fly-tipping and refuse collection 
3. Housing quality and management 
4. Local businesses and community support 
5. Physical environment and green spaces.  

The Master Plan also set out improvements to the Safer Pill group jointly chaired by Gwent Police and the Council.  As 
part of the plan the group will be focusing on the Exploitation of vulnerable people, drug supply, women and children 
and communications and community engagement.  Finally, the Master Plan has also set out 3 Community Ambitions 
to improve green and public areas, better business and shopping offer and environment and mix of community and 
youth facilities.  In 2023/24 the partnership will be implementing the proposals and developing feasibility and costings 
to support the projects and initiatives.  
 
Newport City Council is a lead partner in the ‘Safer Newport’ Community Safety partnership which is engaged with 
preventing and challenging antisocial behaviour, Serious violence and local neighbourhood issues.  The partnership 
includes other partner organisations such as Gwent Police, South Wales Fire and Rescue Service, ABUHB, Public Health 
Wales and Gwent Probation Service. Full information on the Safer Newport activities are outlined in the report 
presented to the Partnership Scrutiny Committee in March 2023.    Some of the activities highlighted by partnership 
include: 

• Community Action Days, assist days and neighbourhood walkabouts with a focus on tackling ASB. 
• School, and community engagement and direct prevention work with families and young people around 

organised crime. 
• Retention of the Purple flag award for the night-time economy in Newport. 
• Working in partnership with Newport BID and Gwent Police to appoint 2 Community Safety Guardians in the 

city centre. Since July 2022, the service responded to 1,052 incidents relating to ASB, violence and support to 
women and girls. 

Page 43

https://democracy.newport.gov.uk/documents/s25666/06%20Master%20Plan%20Cabinet%20report%20May%2023.pdf?LLL=0
https://democracy.newport.gov.uk/documents/s25323/Partnership%20Scrutiny%20Safer%20Newport%20Briefing%20Note%20v0.4.pdf?LLL=0


 

 

www.newport.gov.uk 29 

Well-being Objective 3 – Performance Measures 
Performance 

Measure 
22/23 
Actual 

22/23 
Target 

Welsh 
Average* 

2021/22 
Actual 

2020/21 
Actual Commentary 

(New) Percentage 
of newly eligible 
children 
requesting 
childcare in Welsh 
medium (Flying 
Start) 

0.8% 
(3 / 364) 2% Local 

Measure 
Not 

Available 
Not 

Available 

This area of work is linked to the 
Flying Start expansion programme 
and NCC’s commitment to Welsh 
Governments’ Welsh in Education 
Strategic Policy (WESP) to increase 
Welsh speakers by 2050. WG 
aspiration is for 1 million Welsh 
speakers in Wales by 2050. 
This WESP has a set target of 4%, 
however this needs to be an 
aspirational target whilst we develop 
more Welsh Medium provision 
across the city.  The Welsh Medium 
infrastructure is currently being 
developed.  Ivor Hael Early Years 
provision is complete and waiting for 
CIW registration.  Pill Capel Crescent 
Welsh Medium Early Years provision 
is now complete. The procurement 
process recently undertaken has 
successfully secured a Welsh 
medium provider who will offer 
Flying Start provision and broader 
Early Years provision strategically 
placed to support transition into the 
new primary school.  Ringland Early 
Years provision has also expanded 
and has now become an Education 
provider supporting transition from 
Flying Start. Work force challenges 
are significant within Early Years.  
Recruitment into Welsh speaking 
practitioner posts are challenging.       

Percentage of 
people seeking 
housing assistance 
who are 
determined as 
statutorily 
homeless. 

15.1% 
(341/2,261) 30% Not 

Available 17.6% 21.6% 

As the Housing Transformation Plan 
is delivered, we expect the total 
number decrease in direct 
correlation to homelessness 
prevention and relief outcomes 
increasing.  

The percentage of 
empty private 
properties brought 
back into use. 

0.4% 
(4 / 993) 1.52% Not 

Available 2.02% 0.9% 

Empty properties are a complex 
issue with barriers including 
emotional attachment to properties, 
legal issues. A revised offer to 
property owners will be developed 
and publicised during the first two 
quarters.  This will be combined with 
a reviewed and robust approach to 
enforcement. 

*Welsh Average Data provided if available on Data Cymru Benchmarking website. 

Page 44

http://www.newport.gov.uk/


30 

 

 

Performance 
Measure 

22/23 
Actual 

22/23 
Target 

Welsh 
Average* 

2021/22 
Actual 

2020/21 
Actual Commentary 

The percentage of 
households for 
whom 
homelessness was 
prevented. 

33.6% 
(181 / 539 

cases) 
50% 66.8% 

(21/22) 40.1% 43.5% 

Performance for 22/23 has been 
challenging but since the 
homelessness prevention team 
was created in quarter 3 there has 
been a consistent improvement 
(quarter 4 performance was just 
under 40%), this improved 
performance is anticipated to 
continue. Increasing homelessness 
prevention performance is a key 
priority of the housing 
transformation work.  Further 
interventions will be put into place 
over 23/24 including the 
establishment of a housing advice 
and homelessness prevention task 
force which will ensure effective 
interagency messaging and joint 
work. 

(New) Households 
in temporary 
accommodation 
under 
homelessness 
duties. 

443 360 Not 
Available 

Not 
Available 

Not 
Available 

This figure represents a snapshot 
at the end of quarter 4.  There has 
been an overall increase of 31% of 
households in temporary 
accommodation over the year 
compared to end of 2021/22.  
Almost 60% of people living in TA 
are single adults to whom the 
council owes a statutory duty 
following changes to homelessness 
legislation.  
Reducing the number of people 
living in TA is a key priority for the 
council. A such a fortnightly 
Temporary Accommodation 
reduction group has been 
established and various measures 
are in place or will be rolled out 
across the course of 23/24.  

(New) Number of 
private sector 
dwellings 
improved with 
local authority 
grants or loans. 

2 5 Not 
Available 

Not 
Available 

Not 
Available 

Several applications could not be 
progressed as they posed too great 
a financial risk under the terms of 
the loans. A revised offer to private 
sector owners will be agreed and 
publicised in 23/24 alongside a 
revised and robust approach to 
enforcement. 

Page 45



 

 

www.newport.gov.uk 31 

Performance 
Measure 

22/23 
Actual 

22/23 
Target 

Welsh 
Average* 

2021/22 
Actual 

2020/21 
Actual Commentary 

(New) Percentage of 
households for 
whom 
homelessness was 
relieved. 32.4% 

(381 / 
1,175) 

35% 34.1% 
(21/22) 19% 18.3% 

Performance has improved over 
the course of the year and 
reached 37.27% by the end of 
quarter 4. Initiatives which are 
being currently developed, 
including Leasing Scheme Wales, a 
revised offer to private landlords 
and partnership work with RSLs 
will sustain and build on this 
improvement.   

Percentage of 
significant 
Regulatory issues 
resolved 

91% 95% Local 
Measure 79.3% 78.3% 

This is good performance given 
that 22/23 was a year of recovery 
from the impact of the Covid 
pandemic, some staff were still 
focussed on the Covid response 
until August, standards in 
businesses have been more 
challenging to deal with due to 
reduced regulation during the 
pandemic, and certain teams have 
carried vacancies through much of 
the financial year. 

Total Number of 
first Time Entrants 
(Youth Justice 
Service) 

23 20 Local 
Measure 13 38 

Less is better as we would want to 
see a reduction in first time 
entrants’ and have diverted them 
to other services or earlier 
engagement and prevention 

(New) Number and 
percentage of 
participants with 
improved 
emotional/mental 
wellbeing. 92% 

(315 / 343) 100% Local 
Measure 

Not 
Available 

Not 
Available 

Preventions, Mind and Newport 
Live are the commissioned 
services that deliver this outcome 
within Families First.  
Emotional/mental wellbeing is 
not the primary aim of all families 
that Preventions works with, 
therefore it is not possible to 
reach the target of 100% as the 
total number of cases (343) 
includes other primary needs. 

(New) Number of 
children and young 
people achieving 
national and local 
accreditation with 
Youth Service. 

128 150 Local 
Measure 

Not 
Available 

Not 
Available 

Work is ongoing to increase the 
number of young people 
achieving national and local 
accreditation through Aspire and 
the Youth service.   

(New) Number of 
childcare spaces 
(Flying Start):  
• Medium of Welsh  
• Medium of 

English 

Welsh – 24 
English – 

602 
Total – 626 

Welsh 28 
English 

662 
 

Total - 
690 

Local 
Measure 

Not 
Available 

Not 
Available 

Flying Start has completed a 
procurement process to secure 
additional Welsh medium 
provision, which will increase the 
number of children engaging 
through the medium of Welsh in 
future once formal agreements 
are in place.   

Page 46

http://www.newport.gov.uk/


32 

 

 

 

Performance 
Measure 

22/23 
Actual 

22/23 
Target 

Welsh 
Average* 

2021/22 
Actual 

2020/21 
Actual Commentary 

(New) Quality of 
life for substance 
users is improved 
or unchanged 
between start and 
most recent 
review /exit. 

74% 82% Local 
Measure 

Not 
Available 

Not 
Available 

This KPI is mandate for all 
substance misuse services in 
receipt of Area Planning Board 
funding. This is information direct 
from the WG database and is the 
official source of validated data for 
treatment service providers and 
APBs to monitor and report 
performance against.  
Substance misuse treatment is a 
complex physical and emotional 
process for individuals and the 
Treatment Outcome Profile is 
reviewed once every 3 months and 
therefore is a snapshot at that 
moment where they could be 
dealing with a variety of issues and 
not necessarily representative of 
the full 3-month process. Newport 
reports a higher level of QoL than 
some other areas of Gwent. 

(New) Percentage 
of participants 
whose financial 
situation has 
stabilised or 
improved. 

48.1% 
(165 / 343)  40% Local 

Measure 
Not 

Available 
Not 

Available 

This figure is made up of support 
offered as part of the Families First 
contract provided by Preventions 
(internal NCC service) and Citizens 
Advice Bureau, case studies are 
also available. As above the 
number of total cases will include 
all families, not only those whose 
primary aim was to improve their 
financial situation. 

(New) Number of 
Disabled Facility 
Grants completed 
yearly 

105 90 Not 
Available 78 86 

The performance of the team has 
improved and demonstrates 
ongoing continuous improvement.  

(New) Number of 
Youth Service 
Projects delivered. 6 6 Local 

Measure 
Not 

Available 
Not 

Available 

The number of youth service 
provisions has successfully grown 
over the course of the year 
following a restructure, with the 
aim to establish a city wide offer in 
due course. 

(New) Attendance 
figures at childcare 
provisions (Flying 
Start). 64.6% 60% Local 

Measure 
Not 

Available 
Not 

Available 

The Flying Start programme 
continues to expand and 
engagement with eligible residents 
has improved.  This means more 
parents are taking up available 
childcare spaces. 

Page 47



 

 

www.newport.gov.uk 33 

Performance 
Measure 

22/23 
Actual 

22/23 
Target 

Welsh 
Average* 

2021/22 
Actual 

2020/21 
Actual Commentary 

(New) Percentage 
of places taken up 
in parenting 
groups resulting in 
positive distance 
travelled. 

73.9% 60% Local 
Measure 

Not 
Available 

Not 
Available 

The remodelling of our parenting 
groups has been successful with a 
greater integrated approach across 
P&I.  Utilising the skill set of 
practitioners and in response to 
increasing demand for support the 
parenting group offer and 
engagement has increased. 

(New) Number of 
places taken up on 
community speech 
and language 
group provision. 519 200 Local 

Measure 
Not 

Available 
Not 

Available 

Speech and Language support is an 
intrinsic part of the Flying Start 
offer with specialist practitioners 
available to enhance this offer 
amongst teams. The growth in 
parents taking up childcare offers 
will see more children engaged 
with speech and language groups. 

(New) Percentage 
of individuals who 
engage with 
substance misuse 
services between 
assessment and 
planned ending of 
treatment. 

83.7% 75% Local 
Measure 

Not 
Available 

Not 
Available 

There is a myriad of support 
services in place for those using 
substances and wish to make 
changes to this.  The services are 
robust in engagement and working 
with individuals’ motivation for 
behaviour change. 

(New) Number of 
Information, 
Advice and 
Assistance (IAA) 
contacts made 
with children and 
young people. 

506 No Target Local 
Measure 

Not 
Available 

Not 
Available 

As the Youth Service continues to 
have a greater presence within 
communities and alongside key 
partners, the opportunities to 
engage with more children and 
young people will arise.   

(New) % of cases 
open to the YJS on 
a prevention basis 

67.2% 
(225 / 335) 80% Local 

Measure 66.4% 46.3% 
More is better as we would want to 
see higher levels of cases receiving 
preventative services. 

(New) % of cases 
open to the YJS on 
an out of court 
disposals 

23.3% 
(78 / 335) 80% Local 

Measure 24.1% 38.3% 

Whilst we would want to see a 
reduction in out of court disposals, 
on the whole, this is a preferred 
option instead of a statutory order. 
Target will be reviewed as part of 
the service area 23/24 review. 

(New) % of cases 
open to the YJS on 
a statutory order 8.7% 

(29 / 335) 38% Local 
Measure 8.8% 15.1% 

Less is better as we would want to 
reduce the amount of statutory 
orders cases. Target will be 
reviewed as part of the service area 
23/24 review. 

(New) % of cases 
on remand 

0.9% 
(3 / 335) 1% Local 

Measure 0.7% 0.4% 

Less is better as we would want to 
have no remands cases where 
possible Target will be reviewed as 
part of the service area 23/24 
review. 

(New) % of cases 
re-offending (re-
offending rates) 3.6% 

(12 / 335) 25% Local 
Measure 8.9% 19.3% 

Less is better as we would want to 
see numbers of re-offending cases 
to be as low as possible Target will 
be reviewed as part of the service 
area 23/24 review. 

 

Page 48

http://www.newport.gov.uk/


34 

 

 

Performance 
Measure 

22/23 
Actual 

22/23 
Target 

Welsh 
Average* 

2021/22 
Actual 

2020/21 
Actual Commentary 

(New) % of cases 
open to the service 
with Criminal 
Exploitation (CE) 
/Criminal Sexual 
Exploitation (CSE) 

14.6%  
(49 / 335) 

Baseline 
Year 

Local 
Measure 29.5% 27% 

Less is better as we would want to 
see a reduction in CE or CSE cases. 
Target will be set for 2023/24.  

Percentage of ASB 
incidents resolved 
by wardens 

97.3% 93% Local 
Measure 95% 92.3% 

The service has improved 
performance and team continues 
to improve.  

Number of people 
approaching 
authority for 
statutory housing 
advice and 
assistance. 

2,261 2,000 Local 
Measure 1,830 1,778 

The service is demand-led. There 
has been an increase in the 
numbers of households requesting 
assistance and due to changes to 
statutory ‘priority need’ categories 
and other external factors such as 
the impact of changes to landlord 
and tenant legislation and the cost-
of-living crisis.  

Number of 
employees trained 
in Prevent PVE. 

527 145 Local 
Measure 136 145 

A concerted effort to train staff in 
schools means that the service 
performed very well in this metric.  

Percentage Quality 
Indicators (with 
targets) achieved 
by the library 
service. 

60% 60% Not 
Available 60% 70.3% 

The number of Quality Indicators 
with targets in the WPLS return for 
2022-23 was reduced from 22 to 6. 
As a greater number of the QIs 
retained were based directly upon 
revenue spend, the service met a 
lower overall percentage. 

 

 

Page 49



 

 

www.newport.gov.uk 35 

 

Performance Measure 
22/23 
Actual 

22/23 
Target 

Welsh 
Average* 

2021/22 
Actual 

2020/21 
Actual 

National (AD/002) – The number of 
contacts received by Adult Services where 
advice and assistance was provided during 
the year. 

1,571 No Target Not Available 1,725 1,718 

National (AD/004) – The number of new 
assessments completed for adults during 
the year. 

1,306 No Target Not Available 1,444 1,538 

National (AD/010) – The total number of 
packages of reablement completed during 
the year 

439 No Target Not Available 601 583 

National (AD/011a) – The number 
packages of reablement completed during 
the year that reduced the need for support 

32 No Target Not Available 24 43 

National (AD/011b) – The number of 
packages of reablement completed during 
the year that maintained the need for the 
same level of support. 

64 No Target Not Available 62 95 

National (AD/011c) – The number of 
packages of reablement completed during 
the year that mitigated the need for 
support 

314 No Target Not Available 484 409 

National (AD/011d) – The number of 
packages of reablement completed during 
the year that increased the need for 
support 

29 No Target Not Available 31 43 

National (AD/012) – The number of adults 
with a care and support plan as at 31st 
March. 

2,249 No Target Not Available 1,940 1,861 

National (AD/013) – The total number of 
adults with eligible needs for care and 
support maintained by Direct Payments at 
31st March 

101 No Target Not Available 94 93 

National (AD/023) – The total number of 
reports of adults suspected of being at risk 
where it is necessary for enquiries to be 
made. 

730 No Target Not Available 783 648 

National (AD/024) - No. of Adult Protection 
Enquiries Completed Within Timescale 671 No Target Not Available 745 Not 

Available 
National (AD/020) - The total number of 
reports of an adult suspected of being at 
risk received during the year. 

957 No Target Not Available Not 
Available 

Not 
Available 

(NEW) AD/L001 - Number of Adult 
Professional Safeguarding Concerns raised 
in the year. 

39 No Target Not Available Not 
Available 

Not 
Available 

National CH001- The number of contacts 
for children received by statutory Social 
Services during the year. 

11,024 No Target Not Available 11,311 10,104 

National CH/005b- The number where 
physical punishment by a parent or carer 
was the only factor 

119 No Target Not Available 85 144 

National CH/015- The total number of 
children with a care and support plan at 
31st March 

978 No Target Not Available 945 978 

Page 50

http://www.newport.gov.uk/


36 

 

 

 

Well-being Objective 3 – 23/24 Key Deliverables 
Below is a summary of some of the key priorities and deliverables Newport City Council will be delivering / 
progressing in 2023/24: 

• Continuing delivery of the Eliminate Programme and Housing Transformation Programme 
• Continuing delivery of Unaccompanied Asylum Seeker Children programme.   
• Delivery of the Strategic Needs Assessment for the Community Safety Partnership. 

 
 

Performance Measure 
22/23 
Actual 

22/23 
Target 

Welsh 
Average* 

2021/22 
Actual 

2020/21 
Actual 

National CH/026- The total number of 
children on the child protection register at 
31st March. 

135 No Target Not Available 127 158 

National CH/033- The total number of 
reports of child exploitation received 
during the year 

141 No Target Not Available 122 62 

National CH/036- The total number of 
children removed (de-registered) from the 
child protection register in the last 12 
months 

201 No Target Not Available 207 148 

National CH/037- The number of children 
becoming looked after during the year. 122 No Target Not Available 166 91 

National CH/039 - The number of children 
looked after at 31st March. 376 No Target Not Available 372 378 

Local CH/L002- The number of children 
who ceased being looked after during the 
year. 

113 No Target Not Available 120 92 

National CH/043- The total number of 
children looked after at 31st March who 
have experienced three or more 
placements during the year. 

34 No Target Not Available 50 26 

National CH/045 - The total number of 
children who returned home during the 
year 

49 No Target Not Available 33 36 

National CA/011 - The total number of 
contacts to statutory social services by 
young carers or professionals contacting 
the service on their behalf received during 
the year. 
Provided by Barnardos 

111 No Target Not Available 127 74 

National CH/L004 – Number of Childrens 
Residential Fostering Beds 24 No Target Not Available 22 20 

National CH/L005 – Number of Children in 
care proceedings during the year 73 No Target Not Available 56 44 

Page 51



 

 

www.newport.gov.uk 37 

Well-being Objective 4 – An Inclusive, Fair and Sustainable 
Council  

Newport City Council is an inclusive organisation that places social value, fairness and 
sustainability at its core. 

No Strategic Priority RAG 
Assessment 

Well-being Objective 4 Overall Assessment  
1 Become an inclusive organisation that represents the citizens of Newport, providing equitable 

opportunity for people to succeed and places the citizen at the centre of decision making.  
 

2 Transform our neighbourhood and community services to enable communities to make best use of land 
and property through community asset transfer. 

 

3 Deliver our organisational Climate Change Plan to become a net zero organisation by 2030.  
4 Provide fair access to the council’s in-person and digital services, including digital skills training and 

support. 
 

5 Promote and improve the way in which residents and businesses can interact with the council’s 
democratic process and decision making. 

 

6 Rationalise, protect, and enhance our buildings and assets enabling co-productive working 
environments with our strategic partners, public sector bodies and other organisations. 

 

7 Generate opportunities to build wealth across Newport’s communities through progressive 
procurement of goods and services and other initiatives such as participatory budgeting. 

 

 
Summary of Achievements and Challenges in 2022/23 

 
At the end of the financial year 2022/23, the Council has made a good start in the delivery of Well-being Objective 4.  
Good progress has been made to reduce the gender pay between men and women but we know more can be done to 
improve workforce resilience; and representation across minority ethnic, LGBTQ+ and disabled groups. There are 
significant challenges over the next 5 years to develop a long term sustainable estate to meet our climate change goals 
and the needs of Newport’s communities. This is particularly challenging in the context of challenging budget 
settlements, and the need to transform the delivery of our services.    
 
Strategic Priority 1 
 
The health and well-being of staff is extremely important to the Council.  The People Strategy has been pushed back 
to 2023/24 as we engaged and involve staff in its development.  The performance measures indicate an increase in 
sickness and we recognise further work needs to be undertaken to embed the Wellness at Work policy and improve 
the check in performance across the Council.  The number of women in senior officer positions and Cabinet has 
increased in 2022/23.  But we recognise further work needs to be undertaken to increase the representation of 
minority ethnic, disabled and LGBTQ+ staff.  Below provides further assessment across the strategic priorities in 
2022/23.  

Key Achievements 2022/23  Key Challenges 2022/23 
• Launch of the Council’s new Digital Strategy • Sickness and Check In performance did not achieve its 

intended targets 
• Commencement of the Asset Rationalisation programme • Progress towards delivery Net zero carbon by 2030.   
• Participatory budget programme supporting community 

and charity organisations across Newport.   
• Increasing meaningful public participation in the Council’s 

decision-making processes. 
• Launch of the Council’s Participation strategy • Increasing and supporting the number of staff from 

disabled and minority ethnic communities 
• Gender pay gap closed from 2% (21/22) to 0.4% with 69% 

women occupying highest paid jobs. 
• Delivery of new website and review of customer contact 

Page 52

http://www.newport.gov.uk/


38 

 

 

Newport City Council has a Strategic Equality Plan 2020-24 which outlines the Council’s duties to comply with the 
Equalities Act and also support the Corporate Plan goal to become an inclusive organisation.    The Plan will be 
developed in 23/24. The Council’s annual Strategic Equality Plan 2022/23 report provides further detail of the 
Council’s progress.  In 2022/23, the Council increased its representation in upper pay quartiles and senior officer roles 
and the gender pay gap closed.   The Infographic below highlights some of the headline areas from the 2022/23 annual 
Strategic Equality Plan report. 

 
 

   

4.9% Staff identify as Black 
and Minority Ethnic. 

6.1% leavers Black and Minority 
Ethnic (increase from 4.1% in 21/22). 

2.51% workforce disabled 
(2.52% in 2021/22) 

22.5% of 151 staff left NCC 
declaring disability in 
21/22  

   

 
 

2% workforce identified as 
LGBTQ+ (Increase from 0.13% 
21/22) 

76.9% female workforce Gender Pay Gap (Median) 
closed 2% (21/22) to -0.4% 
(22/23) 

69% women occupy 
highest paid jobs. 

 
Newport City Council is committed to advancing equity for people across all backgrounds and increasing the 
representation of minority ethnic people, disabled people and people who identify as LGBTQ+ to address under-
representation across all levels of the organisation.  The Council’s three staff networks are supporting the delivery of 
this change playing a pivotal role in ensuring their voices were heard, listened and influenced policy and procedure 
changes such as the Wellness at Work policy and employee exit process.  

To deliver the priorities of the Corporate Plan it is important that we are able to provide a package which not only 
provides equitable financial reward but more importantly is flexible to support people in the workplace.  This includes 
flexible working, hybrid working and also other benefits.  The implementation of the People Strategy has been pushed 
back to 2023/24 as we engage and involve staff in its development.   

Sickness absence performance has been challenging, with Covid absences now featured as part of our performance 
reporting.  It is recognised that further work needs to be undertaken by the Council’s Human Resources team to better 
understand the reasons for absences and to assess the impact of the Wellness at Work approach.   This is also the 
same with the ‘Check In’ performance for 2022/23, where significant work has been completed to understand 
performance levels, resulting in changes to the process and wider engagement with staff.  Consequently, the last 
quarter saw an improvement to the check in performance which has continued into 2023/24.   
 
Strategic Priority 2 
 
Three of the Council’s strategic priorities in this objective relates to the long term use of the Council’s assets and to 
also ensure assets remain sustainable for future use by residents, businesses and staff.  Newport City Council owns 
over 400 assets and land across Newport including schools and community centres.  The Council also has a 
maintenance backlog circa £100m and has a commitment to ensure our assets are net zero carbon by 2030. In 2022/23, 
the 5 year Asset Rationalisation programme commenced and is tasked to review and rationalise the use of the Council’s 
estate to ensure buildings and land are effectively used by residents and staff, can meet net zero carbon goals and 
provide social value to the communities they serve.    One of the projects in this programme is to review the use of our 
buildings and land to develop a new Strategic Asset Management Plan.  It is important that we examine and understand 
how these assets are being used by staff and communities, the value and benefits which the assets provide and where 
we can make long term investment to meet the needs now and in the future.  The Corporate Plan also outlines the 
priority to work with community groups and organisations who have the opportunity to own, and maintain assets for 
use by local communities.  

Page 53

https://www.newport.gov.uk/documents/Council-and-Democracy/Equalities-and-Welsh-language-/Strategic-Equality-Plan-2020-2024.pdf


 

 

www.newport.gov.uk 39 

Over the last five years we have seen the community groups such as Maindee Unlimited run key assets such as Maindee 
Library, and Maindee Triangle.  But we want to ensure more groups are able to do this as well and will be looking at 
how we can develop the potential for more Community Asset Transfer over the next 5 years.     
 
Strategic Priority 3 
 
As highlighted in Well-being Objective 2, the delivery of the Climate Change Plan will provide many opportunities and 
challenges to become a net zero organisation by 2030.  As highlighted in the Climate Change annual report, good 
progress has been made towards providing training and development for Members and staff to understand the 
impacts of climate change and what it means for the Council and city over the next 20 years.  Additionally, we have 
continued to improve access for staff and residents to use electric vehicles, alternative transport to commute to work 
and also modal shift of staff being able to work flexibly from home, office and onsite using digital technology.  However, 
we also understand that one of the biggest challenges is how assets such as the Civic Centre, schools and other 
buildings can become net zero carbon by 2030 considering significant costs to retrofit and improve the maintenance / 
insulation.   
 
Strategic Priority 4 
 
As noted in Well-being Objective 2, the Council launched its new Digital Strategy at the end of 2022/23 and reported 
its progress in its annual Digital Report.  The Digital Strategy has several themes focused on ‘Digital Transformation’, 
‘Digital Skills and Inclusion’ and ‘Data & Collaboration’.  Digital Transformation is a key theme for the Council and using 
technology to improve the efficiency and delivery of council services to people and businesses.  In 2022/23 the Council 
delivered several internal projects such Microsoft 365, replacement telephony system using Microsoft Teams Phone, 
Hybrid committee room and meeting rooms.  We also commenced the re-development of our website.  During the 
initial development it was identified that the Council would not be able to achieve its original deadline due to technical 
issues and the resources (external) needed to deliver the project. The outcome of this has been for the Council to 
deliver a revised project plan and to implement a new technical solution, Local Government Drupal, which is used by 
37 councils at the time of this report and for a new website to be available in the first quarter in 2024/25. 

As reported in the performance measures section, customer services reported good performance against its targets 
and has continued to see an increase in the number transactions completed using the online My Council Services app.  
As part of the Council’s transformation work in 2023/24, the Council will be commencing work on examining the 
customer experience and understanding the Council’s strengths and weaknesses towards enabling people to complete 
transactions online, in person and also signposting to other organisations to access the services they need.  Newport 
Council also continued the delivery of the Welsh Government EdTech programme to support individual schools and 
pupils to develop their digital and learning practice. £567k was spent on improving digital access including: 

• 924 digital devices including laptops, PCs, Chromebooks, iPads, Macbooks and iMacs 
• 156 projectors, with 98 of these being laser projectors 
• 165 digital screens 
• 144 sets of speakers 
• 89 webcams 
• 344 class sets of headphones 
 
Strategic Priority 5 
 
One of the Council’s principles in the delivery of the Corporate Plan is that we will consider the views of communities, 
service users and partners in shaping the services we deliver and the places people live and work in Newport.  
Throughout this report we have highlighted where we have engaged with service users, communities and individuals 
in either improving the delivery of key services or developing new policies, or changing the way we deliver our services.  
On page xx of the we have provided an overview of all the consultations Newport Council has delivered in 2022/23, 
where we have engaged with businesses and with Trade Unions.   

Page 54

http://www.newport.gov.uk/
https://www.newport.gov.uk/en/Council-Democracy/Digital-Strategy/Digital-Strategy.aspx


40 

 

 

In May 2022, Newport Council agreed its new Participation Strategy to encourage local citizens to participate in the 
democratic process and decision making. One of the first areas of improvement has been the reintroduction of Ward 
meetings from 2023/24 with at least one meeting to support the budget setting process and another meeting to 
highlight the progress which the council is making against key objectives and projects.    Additionally residents will also 
be provided the opportunity to set their own points of discussion and set agenda to discuss the key matters in their 
own community.     

The Council has taken other steps to promote and improve the way in which residents and businesses can interact 
with the democratic process and decision making.  As part of the budget consultation, rather than a simple 
agree/disagree response, residents were able to give their view on whether they agree with the proposal or support a 
smaller saving or now saving at all.  Furthermore residents were able to rate the relative importance of particular 
savings proposals to others within the draft budget, giving them a richer opportunity to inform budget decisions.  This 
new approach was well received by the Scrutiny committee tasked with oversight of the budget consultation.  

Over the course of 2022/23 the volume of engagement work was increased as Covid restrictions were lifted.  The 
Newport 50+ Forum was reinitiated following a period of suspension during the pandemic.  Survey work undertaken 
using the Citizens Panel and Bus Wifi recommenced as normality returned.  During the 2022 calendar year the Policy 
and Partnership Team ran 40 engagement exercises for the Council and its partners and received over 10,000 
responses from local residents.   
 
Every year the Council reports on its performance relating to Compliments, Comments and Complaints to the Council’s 
Cabinet and Governance & Audit Committee.  In March 2023, the Council’s Cabinet approved the Compliments, 
Comments and Complaints policy which was updated to reflect improvements to the Council’s processes and improved 
processes.  An overview of the Council’s progress against its action plan from 2021/22 is provided on page xx.  And 
further information can be found in the 2022/23 annual report here.  
 
Strategic Priority 6 
 
In Strategic Priority 2 we stated how the Council commenced the Asset Rationalisation programme towards the end 
of 2022/23 to examine the Council’s estate to ensure that the Council has a sustainable and affordable estate to 
support the long term needs of its communities, services and staff.  To deliver the programme, the Council has 
established an officer led programme board which will oversee the delivery of this work.  The initial focus of the Board 
has been on building the evidence to understand how buildings and land are being used alongside our organisational 
needs.  From 2023/24, we will start to see some outcomes from this work as various projects use this data to inform 
decisions on the future use of assets.  This programme will be delivered over the next 5 years and future decisions on 
asset use will be determined by the new Strategic Asset Management Plan.   
 
Towards the end of 2022/23, we commenced work on reviewing the Council’s contract arrangements with its Property 
Services provider, Newport Norse.  The contract will be ending in December 2025 and in preparation the Council will 
be exploring different options and presenting further updates on its progress in 2023/24.   
 
Strategic Priority 7 
 
One of the Council’s strategic priorities is to build wealth across Newport’s communities through progressive 
procurement of goods and services.  In March 2023, the Council’s Cabinet approved the adoption of TOMs (Themes, 
Outcomes and Measures) to unlock social value through its integration into procurement and project management.  
From 2023/24, Newport City Council will use the framework to evaluate future procurement work and to measure the 
Council’s progress in implementing the new framework with six monthly reports presented to Cabinet and will be 
included this report.  In 2022/23 we trialled the use of the TOMs to evaluate procurement tenders with the case study 
below to demonstrate how it supported a tender exercise. 

Page 55

https://democracy.newport.gov.uk/documents/s25232/04%20Cabinet%20Report%20NCC%20Core%20TOMs%20Feb%202023%20Final.pdf?LLL=0


 

 

www.newport.gov.uk 41 

 
In January 2023, Newport City Council collaborated with Aneurin Bevan University Health Board and One Newport 
partners including Gwent Police, GAVO and Newport City Homes to deliver the fourth Participatory Budget 
programme with £300k available to strengthen volunteering and the third sector in Newport.  The core aims of this 
year’s programme was informed by the Council’s Corporate Plan building safer, stronger and more resilient 
communities; improving people’s health, well-being and independence; reducing inequalities, tackling disadvantage 
and supporting our most vulnerable people; tackling the climate and nature emergency; and making Newport a better 
place to live, work and visit.  The premise of the Participatory Budget programme is that people in Newport are involved 
and support the decisions on which organisations and projects will receive the funding. 

Across 4 sessions, 80 projects from across Newport submitted applications with 44 projects securing funding.  530 
people also took part in deciding which projects received funding and covered a range of community projects including 
services for older people; sports and fitness; arts, culture and creative arts; minority ethnic community projects; mental 
health and loneliness.  Following the receipt of the funding, projects were asked to provide the Council an update on 
how the funding has supported their projects and improved their local communities. Below are some links to the videos 
submitted by organisations on how the funding has supported their projects and communities: 

• Forget Me Not Choir  
• Gypsy Stars Choir  
• New Life in the Park Reality Theatre CIC  
• Newport Veterans Hub CIC  
• IQRA Youth Club  

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

Traffic Management Tender (Infrastructure) 
 
In February 2023, the Council’s Infrastructure service area retendered for traffic management to meet legislative requirements 
and because the Council does not have the specialist expertise to deliver the service.  Companies were invited to tender for the 
contract and as part of the evaluation exercise had to submit evidence to support how they meet the Council’s TOMs in addition 
to their tender quotation.  The evidence submitted by the successful company demonstrated how their work contributes over 
£96k per annum of direct social value to Newport through local employment and contributing towards reducing carbon 
emissions such as using electric vehicles and latest energy saving technology with equipment.   

Page 56

http://www.newport.gov.uk/
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=DtWvvW_qi_Q
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=AfJlWbnPoxs&feature=youtu.be
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=TXPwrBR-bVQ
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=JXbOjWB77bQ
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=5B1uIKGDdVI


42 

 

 

Well-being Objective 4 – Performance Measures 
Performance 

Measure 
22/23 
Actual 

22/23 
Target 

Welsh 
Average* 

2021/22 
Actual 

2020/21 
Actual Commentary 

NCC Sickness Days 
Lost.  

12.35days 10.06 days Not 
Available 10.06 days 7.28 days 

19/20 & 20/21 reported a change in 
previous variations on sickness data due 
to the pandemic, and therefore the last 
few years within and coming out of the 
pandemic, normal absence rates 
reduced, although COVID absence, 
which was not part of the reporting at 
that time, is now included in this figure.  
April 22 also saw the Council approve its 
Wellness at Work approach, which 
adopted a more mature approach to 
managing absence.  It is also widely 
reported that absence across sectors 
has increased as we emerge from the 
pandemic, into other crises such as cost 
of living.   
Work is required to understand Council 
absence and further engagement work 
is required in the still embedding 
wellness approach and this has started 
in 23/24.  
(actual 22/23 amended following report 
to Scrutiny from 14.13 to 12.35 which 
includes teaching staff, for consistency 
with previous years) 
 

Percentage of 
managers 
undertaking 
regular check-ins 
 

37.91% 80% Local 
Measure 23.9% No Data 

Following changes in practice during the 
COVID pandemic we are relaunching 
our check-in process and ensuring these 
are recorded.   
As outlined above, considerable activity 
has taken place in Q3/Q4 to assess and 
redress this measure.  Managers tell us 
that they do regularly hold 
conversations with their team members 
and recording it may not always be at 
the forefront.  Work is continuing to 
develop this measure in 2023/24 to 
ensure we continue to improve and 
record. 
To demonstrate this, quarter 4 data 
(Dec-Mar) since the changes, is 50.52%, 
representing improvement.  
  

*Welsh Average Data provided if available on Data Cymru Benchmarking website. 

 

Page 57



 

 

www.newport.gov.uk 43 

Performance 
Measure 

22/23 
Actual 

22/23 
Target 

Welsh 
Average* 

2021/22 
Actual 

2020/21 
Actual Commentary 

(New) % of staff 
that are able to 
speak Welsh at 
least intermediate 
or above level. 

8.1% 

20% (to be 
amended 
to 7.5% 
23/24) 

Local 
Measure No Data No Data 

This performance measure is reliant 
upon staff members self-assessing 
their Welsh language skills within their 
Employee Self-Service account and 
therefore may not be accurate.  We are 
working to remind all staff to complete 
this section in their accounts.  
In addition, we are working with 
partners on a programme of Welsh 
Language training aimed at improving 
Welsh Language skills across our 
officers and in increasing confidence 
for people to use Welsh in the 
workplace. 
The target will be reviewed for 23/24 to 
reflect the language skills of our 
population, ensuring we continue to 
develop but reflecting our recruitment 
challenges.  7.5% is the percentage of 
people in Newport who said they could 
speak Welsh in the 2021 census.  

(New) Percentage 
of complaints to 
the PSOW 
intervention 

17.0% Less than 
14% 

Not 
Available 11% 11% 

This is a new measure which has 
missed the target for the full year, 
although following changes to 
processes and policy has improved and 
was within target for Quarter 4.   The 
overall number of upheld complaints is 
relatively low, at 8. 
During autumn 2022/23, the newly 
revised complaints policy and 
improved processes, are anticipated to 
result in improved future performance. 
In addition, there is a lag in the figures 
as they are based on when complaints 
referred to the Public Services 
Ombudsman for Wales (PSOW) are 
closed not when received. 
 

Number of 
Apprentices per 
1,000 employees 17 per 

1,000 
employees 

20 per 
1,000 

employees 

Not 
Available 

20 per 
1,000 

employees 

29 per 
1,000 

employees 

As budget pressures continue across 
the Council the ability to convert roles 
into apprentices or support workplace 
apprenticeships becomes more 
challenging.   Opportunities for further 
funding are being developed and 
apprentice pay is now being reviewed.  
 

Page 58

http://www.newport.gov.uk/


44 

 

 

Performance 
Measure 

22/23 
Actual 

22/23 
Target 

Welsh 
Average* 

2021/22 
Actual 

2020/21 
Actual Commentary 

Number of staff 
undertaken 
Equality, Diversity, 
and Inclusion 
training. 339 240 Local 

Measure 168 7 

High levels of engagement in equality 
and inclusion training during the year at 
all levels.  Plans for 2023-24 include 
building on the awareness raising 
training and adding more specific 
equality and inclusion related subjects. 
Updated FEIA to be launched in quarter 
1 of 2023-24 alongside associated 
training to aid awareness and 
understanding. 

(New) Number of 
Council staff 
completing Welsh 
language training. 194 180 Local 

Measure No Data No Data 

Engagement with Welsh Language 
training has been encouraging this year 
and has been supported by the new 
Welsh Language Policy Officer.  
Discussions with a 3rd party are 
continuing with plans to extend the 
offer of training in different ways to 
encourage further uptake in 2023-24. 

Percentage of 
customer 
transaction 
requests carried 
out Face to Face 

0.6% 30% or less Local 
Measure 

0.86% 
(1,459) 29% 

Over the past few years, there has been 
a decline in face-to-face transactions as 
a result of the Covid-19 pandemic and 
self-serve options. It is worth noting 
that our Face-to-Face Centre reopened 
properly in March this year, now 
located at Newport Central Library. 
Customers have become accustomed 
to our new central location, we have 
now observed an increase in footfall 
and a growing number of individuals 
returning to utilise our services. 

Customer Contact 
Centre average 
wait time- Council 
Tax enquiries 20 mins 

23 secs 25 minutes Local 
Measure 

22 minutes 
59 seconds 

14 
minutes 

29 
seconds 

Due to the financial hardships faced by 
many across the city, there has been a 
notable rise in the length of Council Tax 
calls, particularly regarding arrears. Due 
to this we have tried to allocate more 
staff resource onto the Council Tax line 
to assist these customers. 
 

Customer 
transaction 
requests made 
online using My 
Council Services 

78.4% 
(326,190) 

70% or 
more 

Local 
Measure 

76.5% 
(320,133) 

Not 
available 

Since April, we have made several 
forms exclusively available online, 
encouraging more customers to utilise 
self-service options. Additionally, we 
have provided self-serve PCs at 
Newport Central Library, enabling 
customers to conveniently access 
online services. 

Customer Contact 
Centre average 
wait time- main 
enquiry line. 4 mins 29 

secs 
5 minutes 

or less 
Local 

Measure 
8 minutes 
1 second 

4 minutes 
56 

seconds 

Our wait times have decreased due to a 
combination of factors. The 
introduction of our full face-to-face 
offering at Newport Central Library, 
alongside several services transitioning 
to online-only, has contributed to this 
improvement. 
 

Page 59



 

 

www.newport.gov.uk 45 

Performance 
Measure 

22/23 
Actual 

22/23 
Target 

Welsh 
Average* 

2021/22 
Actual 

2020/21 
Actual Commentary 

Customer Contact 
Centre average 
wait time- Welsh 
enquiry line 2 mins 17 

secs 
5 minutes 

or less 
Local 

Measure 
3 minutes 

44 seconds 

2 minutes 
26 

seconds 

To enhance our service delivery, we 
have recently recruited two additional 
Welsh speakers and introduced a call 
back option to avoid callers waiting on 
the line for a Welsh Speaker to become 
available. These changes have allowed 
us to achieve a reduction in the average 
wait time for customers. 
 

(New) No. of views 
of Scrutiny 
meetings including 
live and You Tube. 

593 

First year 
measure – 
monitoring 

data 

Local 
Measure 

Not 
Available 

Not 
Available 

First year of monitoring viewership of 
Council meetings and setting 
benchmarking.  

 

Well-being Objective 4 – 23/24 Key Deliverables 
Below is a summary of some of the key priorities and deliverables Newport City Council will be delivering / 
progressing in 2023/24: 

• Commence delivery of the Council’s Asset Rationalisation programme and review of the Council’s property 
services function. 

• Delivery of the Council’s updated website. 
• Development and approval of the Council’s new 4 year Strategic Equality Plan. 
• A review of customer experience across Council services. 
• Further implementation of the Council’s TOMs and regular reporting to the Council’s Cabinet. 
• Delivery of the Council’s Digital Strategy and Digital Transformation.  

Page 60

http://www.newport.gov.uk/


46 

 

 

Self-Assessment of Governance & Performance 
Arrangements 
 
This section of the report provides an overview of how Newport City Council meets the performance requirements 
under the Local Government and Elections Act to deliver its Corporate Plan, strategic priorities and statutory duties.  
To assess its effectiveness, we have included the outcomes of the Council’s Annual Governance Statement (AGS), 
external regulatory reviews, and Internal Audit’s overall assessment of the Council’s internal controls.  These support 
our assessment in determining the three key areas: How well are we doing? How do we know? And what and how can 
we do better? 
We have also included in this section of the report an overview of the Council’s internal governance arrangements and 
key policies in place for ensuring good governance is applied throughout the Council.  This section of the report 
provides an overview of how the Council has involved and engaged with key stakeholders throughout 2022/23.  Finally, 
we have concluded the effectiveness of the Council’s Governance and Performance arrangements and 
recommendations for improvement. 

Newport City Council Governance Arrangements 

Newport City Council consists of 51 elected members 
representing 21 Wards across Newport.  Local Councillors 
are elected by the community to decide how the council 
should carry out its various activities and represent public 
interest as well as individuals living within the ward.   
The Roles and responsibilities of the Council, its Cabinet and 
supporting committees are outlined in the Council’s 
Constitution which was last updated in July 2023. 
Officers (employees, staff inc. agency or other non-
employed situations) are responsible for carrying out the 
Council’s functions.   
 
The Cabinet carries out all the Council’s functions which are 
not the responsibility of any other part of the Council (whether by law or under the Council’s Constitution).  The Cabinet 
consists of the Leader with a maximum of 9 other Councillors appointed to the Cabinet to oversee the delivery of 
specific functions.   
 
The diagram above provides an overview of the key officer groups and democratic groups responsible for monitoring 
and reporting on the Council’s governance and performance arrangements.  At Newport City Council there are four 
Performance Scrutiny Committees (Overview Scrutiny Management Committee / Partnerships Scrutiny Committee / 
Place & Corporate Scrutiny Committee / People Scrutiny Committee) responsible for assessing the performance of key 
Council services.  The Governance & Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Council’s Governance, Internal 
Control and Risk Management arrangements including the activities of the Council’s external regulators, Internal Audit 
and its financial accounts. 
 
The Council’s Chief Executive is the Council’s primary policy advisor, works with elected members and lead the 
Council’s strategic management team to ensure that direct services to the public and support services are managed 
effectively and economically to provide best value.  To support the Chief Executive in carrying out her duties, the 
Council has three Strategic Directors and 11 Heads of Service including key roles of the Section 151 Officer and 
Monitoring Officer. The Chief Executive leads the Council’s Executive Board which oversees the delivery of the Council’s 
11 service areas and key functions.  The Council also has 4 Directorate Management Teams responsible for overseeing 
the delivery of the service area functions, performance, risk, finance and human resources.      

Page 61

https://democracy.newport.gov.uk/mgMemberIndex.aspx?FN=WARD&VW=LIST&PIC=0&LLL=0
https://democracy.newport.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=417&MId=7716&Ver=4&Info=1&LLL=0
https://democracy.newport.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=417&MId=7716&Ver=4&Info=1&LLL=0


 

 

www.newport.gov.uk 47 

Newport City Council Performance and Risk Management Arrangements  
 
As part of the Council’s Corporate Plan 2022-27 development, the Council undertook a review of its performance and 
strategic planning arrangements considering the feedback from the performance scrutiny committees, staff as well as 
the requirements of the new Local Government Act.  As a result, in 2022/23 the Council’s Performance and Planning 
policy was updated to reflect the feedback and changes of legislation.   
 
To support the delivery of the Corporate Plan and deliver continuous improvement, each service area has their own 
Service Plan which sets out their objectives, projects, actions, performance measures and risks which will monitor and 
report progress.  As identified in the diagram above, the Council’s Executive Board, Directorate Management Teams 
and service area management teams are responsible for monitoring and reporting progress against these plans.   
 
Considering feedback from the 2021/22 annual Well-being Self-Assessment report, improvements were made to align 
key actions, projects and performance measures to support the monitoring and reporting of the Council’s Corporate 
Plan.  Additionally, improvements have also been made internally to effectively challenge and assess service area 
delivery.  In June 2022, the Council’s Executive Board held their first Challenge reviews of the End of Year service area 
performance.  Feedback and recommendations to Heads of Service identified areas of improvement to service plans 
including: 
• Improvements to performance measures to demonstrate the impact of service delivery. 
• Review of targets to ensure targets are set to demonstrate continuous improvement, reflect resources required 

to achieve targets.   
• Requirement from the Executive Board for service areas to provide more data and supporting information to 

support narrative provided by service areas. 

A summary of Service Area End of Year performance in 2022/23 is highlighted below: 
 

Service Area (Directorate) 
Service Plan Objectives End of Year Status (Red / Amber / Green) 

Objective 1 Objective 2  Objective 3 Objective 4 Objective 5 
Adult Services (Social Services)     
Children Services (Social Services)      
Education (Chief Executive)      
Environment & Public Protection 
(Environment & Sustainability)      

Finance (Transformation & Corporate)      
Housing & Communities (Environment & 
Sustainability)     

Infrastructure (Environment & 
Sustainability)      

Law & Standards (Transformation & 
Corporate)     

People Policy & Transformation 
(Transformation & Corporate)      

Prevention & Inclusion (Social Services)      
Regeneration & Economic Development 
(Chief Executive)      

 
Service areas have considered the feedback from the Challenge reviews and Performance Scrutiny Committees to 
review and update their service plans for 2023/24 and will be used to support Mid-year and End of year performance 
reviews in 2023/24. From 2023/24, the Executive Board will be undertaking quarterly challenge reviews and will be 
using the Council’s Management Information (Mi) Hub to support the reviews. 
 
Towards the end of 2022/23 and into 2023/24, the Council’s People, Policy & Transformation service area also 
implemented improvements in the monitoring and reporting of performance and projects in the Council.  Continuous 
development of this work will be progressed in 23/24 and is also covered in the Council’s Annual Governance 
Statement and Action Plan later in the report.  

Page 62

http://www.newport.gov.uk/
https://democracy.newport.gov.uk/documents/s26156/03i%20DRAFT%20-%20Performance%20Planning%20Policy%20v0.8.pdf?LLL=0
https://democracy.newport.gov.uk/documents/s26156/03i%20DRAFT%20-%20Performance%20Planning%20Policy%20v0.8.pdf?LLL=0


48 

 

 

Newport City Council has an established risk management approach which monitors and reports Corporate and service 
area risk every quarter to the Council’s Cabinet, Governance & Audit Committee, Executive Board and Directorate 
Management Teams.  At the end of 2022/23 the Council had 45 risks across the 11 service areas.  Fourteen out of the 
45 risks were deemed to pose the most risk to the Council and were reported on the Corporate Risk Register.  

Risk Lead Directorate / Service Q1 Risk 
Score 

Q2 Risk 
Score 

Q3 Risk 
Score 

Q4 Risk 
Score 

Pressure on the delivery of Children 
Services. Social Services / Children Services 20 25 25 25 

Stability of Social Services Providers Social Services / Adult Services 25 25 25 20 
Pressure on Adult & Community 
Services Social Services / Adult Services 25 25 25 20 

Balancing the Council’s Medium-
Term budget Transformation & Corporate / Finance 12 20 20 20 

Highways Network / Infrastructure Environment & Sustainability / 
Infrastructure 20 20 20 20 

Pressure on Housing and 
Homelessness Service 

Environment & Sustainability / Housing 
& Communities 20 20 20 20 

Newport Council’s Property Estate Transformation & Corporate / People, 
Policy & Transformation 16 16 16 16 

Eliminate Profit from Social Care Social Services / Children Services - - 15 15 
Information and Cyber Security Transformation & Corporate / People, 

Policy & Transformation 16 12 12 12 

Schools Finance / Cost Pressures Chief Executive / Education Services 9 12 12 12 
Demand for ALN and SEN support Chief Executive / Education Services 12 12 12 12 
Educational Out of County 
Placements Chief Executive / Education Services 12 12 12 12 

Welsh Government’s Net Carbon 
Zero Target by 2030 

Environment & Sustainability /  
Environment & Public Protection 12 12 12 12 

City Centre Security and Safety Environment & Sustainability / 
Infrastructure 10 10 10 10 

 
A Summary of the quarterly risk reports presented to Cabinet and the Governance and Audit Committee in 2022/23 
are highlighted below: 
 

Quarter Cabinet Governance & Audit Committee 

Quarter 1 14th September 2022 29th September 2022 
Quarter 2 14th December 2022 26th January 2023 
Quarter 3 22nd March 2023 30th March 2023 
Quarter 4 12th July 2023 27th July 2023 

 
Last year we acknowledged that the current Risk Management policy needed to be updated and at the end of the 
2022/23 financial year, we were behind in this development.  However, the People, Policy & Transformation service 
area have scheduled for the policy to be approved by January 2024.  This has also been identified in the Council’s 
Annual Governance Statement and raised as an action for improvement. 
 
Newport City Council also has a statutory duty under the Civil Contingencies Act to provide local emergency planning 
and business continuity support to the Council and communities across Newport.  The Council’s Civil Contingencies 
team is responsible for supporting the Council’s services and emergency response team to manage and co-ordinate 
the Council’s joint service response.  National and community risks including the Council’s response are managed 
through the Civil Contingencies and Local Resilience Forum.  Further information can be accessed here.    
 

Page 63

https://democracy.newport.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=139&MId=8187&Ver=4&LLL=0
https://democracy.newport.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=145&MId=8257&Ver=4&LLL=0
https://democracy.newport.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=139&MId=8190&Ver=4&LLL=0
https://democracy.newport.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=145&MId=8259&Ver=4&LLL=0
https://democracy.newport.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=139&MId=8193&Ver=4&LLL=0
https://democracy.newport.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=145&MId=8260&Ver=4&LLL=0
https://democracy.newport.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=139&MId=8511&Ver=4&LLL=0
https://democracy.newport.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=145&MId=8429&Ver=4&LLL=0
https://www.newport.gov.uk/en/Council-Democracy/Civil-Contingencies.aspx


 

 

www.newport.gov.uk 49 

Newport City Council Annual Governance Statement 
 
The Council is required to undertake an Annual Governance Statement (AGS) as required by the Accounts and Audit 
(Wales) Regulations 2014.  The AGS provides an overview on the effectiveness of the Council’s governance 
arrangements including performance.  The AGS is assessed on the principles set out in the Chartered Institute of Public 
Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA) and the Society of Local Authority Chief Executives and Senior Managers (SOLACE).   
 

Principle Annual Governance Statement Principles RAG Assessment  No. of Actions  
A Behaving with integrity, demonstrating strong commitment to 

ethical values, and respecting the rule of law.  
 6 

B Ensuring openness and comprehensive stakeholder 
engagement.  

 3 

C Defining outcomes in terms of sustainable economic, social, and 
environmental benefits. 

 0 

D Determining the interventions necessary to optimise the 
achievement of intended outcomes. 

 4 

E Developing the Council's capacity, including the capability of its 
leadership and the individuals within it. 

 3 

F Managing risks and performance through robust internal 
control and strong public financial management. 

 2 

G Implementing good practices in transparency, reporting, and 
audit to deliver effective accountability. 

 1 

 
In summary, the AGS found that the Council’s overall governance and performance arrangements to be effective.  As 
noted in the table above 2 out 7 principles were assessed as Amber with the remaining 5 areas assessed as Green.  The 
assessment identified 19 actions for improvement across the 7 principles to improve its governance arrangements.  
Key areas for improvement included: 

• Improvement to the Council’s Counter fraud arrangements (see also External regulators assessment). 
• Review and update the Council’s Code of Corporate Governance. 
• Delivery of key Human Resources training and staffing policies around the People Plan, and staff values.  
• Development and understanding of the Council’s workforce capacity and capability to deliver its 

transformation plan and Corporate Plan.  
• Implementation of the Council’s TOMs (Procurement see Well-being Objective 4). 
• Improvements to Capital and grant governance / performance monitoring. 
• Finalising and implementing the Council’s Risk Management policy.   

 
A copy of the full AGS can be found as part of the Council’s Statement of Accounts.  The findings of the AGS were 
agreed by the Council’s senior officers and was presented to the Council’s Governance & Audit Committee for 
comment.  The final version of the AGS will be signed off by the Council’s Leader and Chief Executive before being 
included into the Council’s Statement of Accounts for 2022/23. The 2023/24 AGS actions have been included in this 
report as further action to improve its governance and performance arrangements and can be found at the end of this 
report.

Page 64

http://www.newport.gov.uk/


50 

 

 

Internal Audit and External Regulator Assessments  
 
Internal Audit is an independent, objective assurance and consulting activity designed to add value and improve the 
Council’s operations.  It provides a systematic, disciplined approach to evaluate and improve the effectiveness of risk 
management, control and governance processes.  It also objectively examines, evaluates and reports on the adequacy 
of internal control as a contribution to the economic, efficient and effective use of resources.  
 
The Council’s Internal Audit service gave an overall opinion of the Council’s 2022/23 internal controls as Reasonable 
based upon the completion of 77% (80% target) of the audit plan.  This means that they are adequately controlled 
although risks identified which may compromise the overall control environment; improvements are required; and 
reasonable level of assurance.  This was also included into the Council’s AGS covered in the section above.  The full 
Internal Audit annual report can be found here. 
  

Audit Rating 2021/22 2022/23 
Audits Completed % Audits Completed % 

Good 10 29 9 24 
Reasonable 23 66 25 66 
Unsatisfactory 2 5 3 8 
Unsound 0 0 1 2 
Total 35 100 38 100 
Overall Opinion Reasonable Reasonable 

 
In 2022/23 4 audit reviews were deemed Unsatisfactory (3) and Unsound (1).  These were reported to the Council’s 
Executive Board and to the Council’s Governance and Audit Committee.  These reports were related to: 

• Unsound – Safeguarding – Children’s Money, Children Services (Social Service Directorate) 
• Unsatisfactory - Purchasing Cards (Transactions), Finance (Transformation & Corporate) 
• Unsatisfactory - Adoption Allowances Follow Up 2, Children Services (Social Services Directorate) 
• Unsatisfactory - Passenger Transport Unit Contracts Follow Up Infrastructure (Environment & Sustainability) 

 
At the end of the financial year and into the first quarter of 2023/24, the Internal Audit team has been impacted by 
the loss of several key members of staff which will impact the delivery of the annual audit plan for 23/24.  Further 
updates on the delivery of the service will be provided separately to Governance & Audit Committee and escalated as 
a Corporate Risk at the time of this report.  
 
External Regulatory Reports - Audit Wales, Estyn and Care Inspectorate Wales 
 
The Council’s three External Regulators are responsible for providing assurances and assessments into the 
effectiveness of the Council’s services.  Estyn and Care Inspectorate Wales (CIW) are responsible for providing 
assurances in relation to the Council’s delivery of Education Services and Schools (Estyn) and Social Services including 
Residential settings (CIW). 
 
In July 2023 the Council reported to the Council’s Governance & Audit Committee an overview of the three external 
regulators.  A summary of the external regulator’s reports published is below.  In addition we have also included the 
Audit Wales reviews commenced in 2022/23 but at the time of this report have not been published.  These will be 
reported in 2023/24 as part of the 6 monthly updates to Governance and Audit Committee. 
 

Page 65

https://democracy.newport.gov.uk/documents/s25707/10%20-IA%20Annual%20Report%202022-23%20-%20Final%20For%20GAC.pdf?LLL=0
https://democracy.newport.gov.uk/documents/s26148/8-%20Regulatory%20Reports%2022-23%20Update%20v1.pdf?LLL=0


 

 

www.newport.gov.uk 51 

 

Audit Wales Estyn Care Inspectorate Wales* 

NCC Annual Audit Summary 2022 Thematic Review – Effective approaches to 
assessment that improve teaching and 
learning. 

Frailty Reablement Care 

National Report - Digital Inclusion in Wales Tredegar Park Primary School Childrens Provision A 
Poverty in Wales ‘Time for Change’ Jubilee Park Primary School Childrens Provision B 
Social Enterprises ‘A Missed Opportunity’ Milton Primary School Childrens Provision C 
Together We Can – Community Resilience and Self-
Reliance.   High Cross Primary School Childrens Provision D 

Flood Risk Management Langstone Primary School Childrens Provision E 
Assurance and Risk Assessment Review Caerleon Lodge Hill Primary School 

 

National Review – National Fraud Initiative 2020/21 Newport High School 
Springing Forward Workforce. Monnow Primary School 

Equality Impact Assessments ‘More than a tick box 
exercise’ Newport Nursery School 

Springing Forward, Strategic Asset Management Malpas Church in Wales Primary school 
(Special Measures Follow Up) 

Direct Payments for Adult Social Care St Patrick’s Roman Catholic Primary School 
NCC Counter-Fraud Arrangements Crindau Primary School 
Setting of Well-being Objectives  
(To be Published) Ysgol Gyfun Gwent Is Coed 

Digital Strategy (To be Published) 
 

Service user perspective Performance (To be Published) 
* Reports and details of Childrens Provision settings cannot be published as per Care Inspectorate Wales requirements  

As part of the Well-being of Future Generations Act and Audit Wales work programme, in 2022/23, Audit Wales 
undertook a review of the Council’s Corporate Plan and setting of Well-being Objectives.  At the time of the report, 
the Audit Wales findings have not been published (subject to change).  Overall, Audit Wales found that the Council had 
applied the sustainable development principle in setting its well-being Objectives but raised one recommendation for 
the Council to develop measures which enables it to monitor progress against its long and short term objectives and 
progress against objectives that cut across multiple of its own services and other organisations.  This recommendation 
has been captured in the action plan on page 67.  

 

Page 66

http://www.newport.gov.uk/


52 

 

 

Newport City Council’s Financial Outturn 2022/23 
 
The Council produces its annual Statement of Accounts.  This provides a detailed analysis of where the Council spent 
its money during the previous financial year.  It includes the Council’s income, revenue (money used to deliver services) 
and capital (money it uses to build assets like roads and buildings).  The full version of the Statement of Accounts can 
be found here.  The below is a summary of key areas covered in the report.  
 

Newport City Council’s net budget is funded primarily 
by the Welsh Government through an annual grant 
and also through Non Domestic Rates.  The remaining 
income comes from households through Council Tax. 
 
 
 
 

Revenue Outturn 2022/23 

In 2022/23, the Council’s revenue 
outturn produced a net underspend 
of £5.1m against the £343m budget.  
The underspend was because of the 
underspend against general and 
covid contingency budgets; and an 
underspend against the capital 
financing budget, partly due to 
capital programme slippage and 
higher than expected returns on 
investments because of rising 
interest rates.  

These underspends were partly 
offset by increase in demand / costs 
in delivering services and higher 
than anticipated pay award.   

 

Newport City Council monitors its revenue finances on a monthly basis with budget holders (Team / Service 
managers, Heads of Service) responsible for ensuring actual and forecasted spending are accurate. Service area 
management teams, Directorate Management Teams and Executive Board are provided monthly monitoring updates 
against their budgets.  The Council’s Executive Board also through its Challenge review and assess the service areas 
financial performance against their budget and MTFP savings targets.  

 

 

 

 

£265,617,000 
(Revenue Support Grant & Non 

Domestic Rates) 
£77,411,000 

(Council Tax) 

Page 67



 

 

www.newport.gov.uk 53 

Capital Outturn 2022/23 

The Council’s capital programme delivers large-
scale investment towards its assets and 
infrastructure such as schools, roads, 
regeneration projects e.g. Cardiff Capital Region.  
In 2022/23 the Council’s budget was £91.8m 
with £61.2m spent across service areas.  £30.6m 
has been ‘slipped’ into future years capital 
spending.  As identified in the Council’s AGS, 
improvements have been identified with the 
governance and monitoring capital spending.   
 

 

NCC Budget and Medium Term Revenue Plan 2023/24 

In February 2023, Council agreed the 2023/24 budget and a council tax increase of 8.5%. In addition the Council also 
agreed a £20.1m savings over the next three years with £19.5m to be achieved in 23/24.  The Council recognises the 
risk (see Corporate Risk Register) many services are under significant financial pressure to meet its statutory duties, 
deliver the goals of the Corporate Plan and to transform services.  For the preparation of the Council’s budget for 
2024/25 we will consider these pressures as well as any further announcements from Welsh Government following 
their own statement on budget pressures.  In December 2023 and January 2024 we will be consulting on future budget 
requirements.   
Finance – Performance Measures 

Performance 
Measure 

22/23 
Actual 

22/23 
Target 

Welsh 
Average* 

2021/22 
Actual 

2020/21 
Actual Commentary 

(New) Grant claims 
Percentage of 
grant claims 
submitted in line 
with awarding 
body deadlines. 

77% 95% Local 
Measure No Data No Data 

The percentage shown reflects the 
total performance for both Quarter 3 
and Quarter 4 in 2022/23. Across the 
period, a total of 114 grant claims 
were submitted, with 88 of those 
being submitted on time. Of those 
that were submitted late, in a number 
of cases the delay would have been 
only a small number of days and, in 
some of those, there may have been 
agreement with the funding body for 
a claim to be submitted late. Delays 
are often caused by delays in receiving 
information from either the funding 
body or service contacts. Going 
forward, relevant parties will be 
reminded of the need to provide 
information in a timely fashion and 
additional planning work will be 
undertaken to ensure that 
preparatory work is completed in 
advance of deadlines. 

Page 68

http://www.newport.gov.uk/


54 

 

 

Performance 
Measure 

22/23 
Actual 

22/23 
Target 

Welsh 
Average* 

2021/22 
Actual 

2020/21 
Actual Commentary 

(New) Budget 
monitoring – 
Budget Manager 
submissions 
Percentage of 
monthly forecasts 
submitted by 
budget managers. 

67.3% 80% Local 
Measure No Data No Data 

The percentage shown reflects 
the cumulative performance 
throughout the 2022/23 financial 
year, across the whole Council. 
The performance is inconsistent 
across service areas, with a 
number of services exceeding the 
target and others performing 
significantly under the target. 
Going forward, especially in light 
of revised budget monitoring 
arrangements for 2023/24, 
Finance Business Partners will 
work closely with budget 
managers (providing training 
where required) with the aim of 
increasing compliance. Heads of 
Service will also need to ensure 
that their budget managers 
prioritise the submission of 
forecasts on a monthly basis. 

Increased Council 
Tax paid by Direct 
Debit. 

66.7% 67% Local 
Measure 65.35% 62.4% 

The number of direct debit payers 
has increased overall, with a large 
increase early in the year to 
coincide with the cost-of-living 
payment scheme. However, as 
the year has progressed a larger 
than expected number have 
subsequently cancelled their 
direct debits possibly due to the 
cost of living crisis. 

Percentage 
Council Tax 
Collection 

96.1% 96% Local 
Measure 96.1% 95.4% 

Council tax in year collection 
target was met despite the cost-
of living crisis. Signposting help 
available and offering flexible 
payment options to those 
struggling financially prevented 
many council tax payers falling 
behind with their payments. 

Percentage Non-
Domestic Rates 
Collected. 

97.8% 96.5% Local 
Measure 96.3% 94.4% 

Collection target was comfortably 
met, the rate burden faced by 
business ratepayers has been 
eased by Welsh Government and 
Newport City Council relief 
schemes that have reduced the 
amount payable. 

Percentage total 
Council Tax 
Collected as a 
percentage of 
annual budgeted 
amount. 

100.3% 100% Local 
Measure 100.53% 101% 

Council tax overall collection 
target was met despite the cost-
of living crisis. Signposting help 
available and offering flexible 
payment options to those 
struggling financially prevented 
many council tax payers falling 
behind with their payments. 

Page 69



 

 

www.newport.gov.uk 55 

Performance 
Measure 

22/23 
Actual 

22/23 
Target 

Welsh 
Average* 

2021/22 
Actual 

2020/21 
Actual Commentary 

Percentage of 
Council Tax 
arrears collected 

30% 30% Local 
Measure 32.71% 25.4% 

The arrears collection target was 
met although slightly lower than 
in previous years. This was due to 
the need to allow longer 
repayment terms due to the cost-
of-living crisis and the squeeze on 
household budgets. 

Percentage of 
NDDR arrears 
collected 

50% 40% Local 
Measure 42.51% 22.8% 

A good result and the target was 
comfortably met. 

Percentage 
Payment of 
Invoices within 
timescales 90% 90% Local 

Measure 92.61% 91.9% 

An on-target performance, 
slightly lower than previous two 
years, mainly due to personnel 
changes and staff shortages. 
However, with all the resource 
issues, a positive on target 
performance. 

(New) Average 
time of processing 
new housing 
benefit claims 25.7 days 32 days Local 

Measure 33.19 days 34 days 

The team have been focussed on 
reducing the time to process 
housing benefit claims and a 
number of initiatives have 
enabled the target to be 
exceeded.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 

Page 70

http://www.newport.gov.uk/


56 

 

 

Performance 
Measure 

22/23 
Actual 

22/23 
Target 

Welsh 
Average* 

2021/22 
Actual 

2020/21 
Actual Commentary 

(New) Average 
time of processing 
change events. 

6.3 days 14 days Local 
Measure 7.9 days 9.32 days 

The use of some automation in the 
processing of changes in 
circumstance for benefit 
customers as well as removal of 
some of the covid support schemes 
has enabled the target to be 
exceeded. 

(New) The amount 
of housing benefit 
overpayments 
recovered during 
the quarter as a 
percentage of the 
total amount of 
housing benefit 
overpayments 
identified during 
the quarter 

115.1% Min 103% Local 
Measure 105.4% 102.02% 

The team’s proactive collection 
strategy has enabled the target to 
be exceeded. 

(New) The amount 
of housing benefit 
overpayments 
written off during 
the quarter as a 
percentage of the 
total amount of 
housing benefit 
overpayments 
outstanding 

0.49% 2% Local 
Measure 3.84% 0.01% 

Due to the improved collection of 
housing benefit overpayments a 
lower than anticipated write of 
percentage was achieved.  

(New) Budget 
monitoring – 
Forecast accuracy. 
Percentage 
variance between 
January forecast 
and final outturn 

0.1% 0.5% Local 
Measure No Data No Data 

The difference between the 
January forecast and final outturn 
was £304k, excluding the impact of 
transfers to risk reserves that were 
agreed by Cabinet as part of 
approving the outturn report. The 
difference of £304k represents 
0.1% of the Council’s net £343m 
budget.  

(New) Financial 
Training 
Satisfaction or 
better ratings from 
individuals 
participating in 
training provided 
by Finance service 

100% 80% Local 
Measure No Data No Data 

This PI is assessed via a feedback 
form completed by those who 
attend courses. However, 
completion of the form is not 
mandatory and, therefore, the 
view of all participants is not 
necessarily captured. Going 
forward, attempts will be made to 
obtain a complete picture of the 
views of participants. 

Page 71



 

 www.newport.gov.uk 57 

Involvement and Engagement with Citizens, Businesses 
and Trade Unions 
 
Newport City Council uses several mechanisms to engage and involve people in the development of policies, decision 
making and insight into perceptions of how we deliver our services.  The three main mechanisms which we use are the 
Online SNAP Surveys, Bus Wi-Fi (in collaboration with Newport Bus) and Newport Citizen Panel (circa 697 members). 
In 2022 the Council introduced the Participation Strategy that sets out the Council’s commitment to the principle of 
participative decision making, and supporting residents to be actively involved in the democratic process.    

Date Subject Service Area Consultation Source Responses 

May 2022 One Newport Climate Change Survey People, Policy & 
Transformation Online SNAP Survey 64 

Perception of Newport Survey and  People, Policy & 
Transformation Newport Citizen Panel 200 

Safety in Newport Survey 
Perception of Newport Survey People, Policy & 

Transformation Bus Wi-Fi Survey 2,354 

Parental Free School Meal survey Education Online SNAP Survey 856 
August 2022 One Newport Climate Change Survey People, Policy & 

Transformation Newport Citizen Panel 220 

City Centre Safety in Newport People, Policy & 
Transformation Bus Wi-Fi Survey 1,631 

September 2022 NCC Corporate Plan People, Policy & 
Transformation Online SNAP Survey 266 

School Category Survey Education Online SNAP Survey 33 
October 2022 Newport Food Festival 2022 and  

Newport Food Festival (Trader 
Survey) 

Regeneration & 
Economic Development Online SNAP Survey 110 

One Newport Climate Change Survey 
(Primary & Secondary) 

People, Policy & 
Transformation Online SNAP Survey 400 

November 2022 Shared Prosperity Fund Regeneration & 
Economic Development 

Bus Wi-fi Survey 1,352 
Online SNAP Survey 79 

Understanding our Audience People, Policy & 
Transformation 

Online SNAP Survey 308 
Newport Citizen Panel 144 

Safe Streets - CCTV People, Policy & 
Transformation Online SNAP Survey 84 

Education and Exploitation Survey Education 

Online SNAP Survey 

14 
Schools Active Travel Plan Survey 18 
Secondary ALN Provision (Llanwern 
High) 78 

December 2022 EU Citizen Survey Housing & Communities Online SNAP Survey 9 
One Newport Climate Change Survey People, Policy & 

Transformation Online SNAP Survey 1,444 

NCC Budget Consultation 2023-24 Finance Online SNAP Survey 820 
Bus Wi-fi Survey 653 

January 2023 Over 55s Accommodation Survey Environment & Public 
Protection Online SNAP Survey 176 

February 2023 Cost of Living Crisis Prevention & Inclusion 
Newport Citizens Panel 164 Perception of Newport Survey 

Safety in Newport Survey 
Perception of Newport People, Policy & 

Transformation Bus Wi-Fi Survey 2,180 

March 2023 Pill Parks Environment & Public 
Protection Online SNAP Survey 91 

Page 72

http://www.newport.gov.uk/


58 

 

 

NCC Corporate Compliments, Comments and Complaints 
 
The Council publishes its annual Corporate Compliments, Comments and Complaints report which is presented to the 
Council’s Governance and Audit Committee and Cabinet.  A copy of the full report can be accessed through the link 
here. Below is a summary of the key findings in relation to Compliments and Comments are below: 

• 106 Corporate Compliments recorded (39% decrease since 2021/22). 
• 1,168 comments recorded (73% decrease since 2021/22). 

 
For complaints received by the Council, the table below provides an overview of Stage 1, 2 and Ombudsman 
complaints received in 2022/23 and in comparison to the last 5 years. 
 

Year 
No. Stage 1 
Complaint 

No. Stage 2 
Complaint  

Stage 2 
Complaint % 

No. Ombudsman 
Complaints 

Ombudsman 
Complaints % 

2018/19 271 28 9.4% 38 14% 
2019/20 354 33 8.5% 31 8.8% 
2020/21 261 39 9.5% 14 7.7% 
2021/22 271 31 11.4% 24 8.6% 
2022/23 341 46 11.9% 47 12.14% 

 
A summary of progress against the action plan from 2021/22 annual report is highlighted in the action plan update 
where it reported 4 out of 7 actions were completed and 3 remained in progress and has been included in the 2023/24 
action plan.  
 
NCC Involvement and Engagement with Businesses in Newport 
 
The economy and businesses of Newport are a vital backbone to providing prosperity and opportunities for the 
communities of Newport. At Newport City Council we have continued to ensure the views and engagement of 
businesses are considered in the development and delivery of Council strategy and policies. Throughout 2021/22 the 
Council was represented at the Newport Now (Business Improvement District) and has continued to engage with 
businesses through the following mechanisms.  In 2022/23 Newport engaged and involved businesses through the 
following activities: 

• General responding to business enquiries from the NCC Business Services inbox, including: 
o Property enquiries 
o Funding enquiries 
o Signposting to general support 

• Hosting of business events (M4 Business Breakfast) 
• Engagement through business grants programme 
• 1:1 meetings with specific businesses 
• Newsletter 
• Chair and host the Newport Business Account Managers Meeting 
• Maintain sites and property register 
• Developed and managing new business directory, free to public access 
 
NCC Involvement and Engagement with Trade Unions and Staff 

Working in partnership with our Trade Unions and staff is critical to the successful delivery of a number of our 
workforce strategies. The Cabinet Member with responsibility for Human Resources continues to chair our Employee 
Partnership Forum (EPF) on a quarterly basis for strategic matters. EPF brings together all our Trade Unions colleagues 
in a consultative forum with officers from HR to engage in and help steer direction for workforce matters. Alongside 
EPF, some of our service areas, supported by HR, hold joint consultative committees (JCW’s) to discuss strategic issues 
affecting their areas. The EPF arrangements were again consulted our Trade Unions on restructuring proposals to meet 
our financial challenges as an organisation. 

Page 73



 

 

www.newport.gov.uk 59 

At an operational level regular dialogue continues with our internal and regional Trade Union representatives on 
employee relations issues, such as individual concerns around wellbeing and conduct. Our Trade Union colleagues 
continue to support their members through transformation across the Council.  Our Trade Unions have supported the 
development of enhancing working relationships by supporting action plans as appropriate.  

Partnership working with our Trade Unions is important to the Council. Trade Union colleagues bring our staff voice to 
discussions and supplement our staff forums and challenge the Council to do more for our staff, which in turn provides 
a more productive and engaged workforce and helps build employee relations.  

As also highlighted in Well-being Objective 4, the staff network groups and Newport Managers Network also engaged 
and involved with ongoing policy development, health and well-being support and staff development. 

Examples of our staff and Trade Union engagement is outlined below: 

New Normal Policies Flexible Working Policy 
Travel & Subsistence Working from Home 
Flexi Scheme Drug & Alcohol Policy 
Drug & Alcohol Testing Policy Annual Staff Conference 
Service Area & Directorate Meetings Newport Manager Network 
Chief Executive Focus Groups Staff Networks 
Changes to Pay and Terms and Conditions Pay Policy 

 

Page 74

http://www.newport.gov.uk/


60 

 

 

Key Newport Council Decisions & Achievements 2022/23  
 
The below table provides a summary of Newport City Council’s key strategic decisions and achievements in 2022/23.  
 

Month Decision / Achievement 

April 2022 The Council’s Cabinet agreed to sign the Joint Committee Agreement for the National Adoption Service for 
Wales to oversee the governance and delivery of Foster Wales.   
The Council’s Cabinet agreed the Transporter Bridge project funding uplift from the Heritage Lottery Fund.  

May 2022 Local Government Elections held and appointment of the Council’s Cabinet, Scrutiny and Regulatory 
Committees. 
Newport City Council’s received £78k from the Transformation Capital Grant 
Newport City Council approved and adopted the Public Participation Strategy and Petition Scheme. 
Newport City Council, Job Centre Plus and Restart hosted jobs fair in Newport Centre. 

June 2022 The Council’s Cabinet approved Newport’s Local Area Energy Plan to support the city to become net zero carbon 
by 2050. 
Cabinet Member for Education and Early Years approved the adoption for the agreed syllabus for Religion, 
Values and Ethics for implementation from 1st September 2022. 
Newport receives the official Purple Flag for its evening and night time economy. 

July 2022 Newport City Council agreed Dog Control Public Spaces Control Orders. 
The Council’s Cabinet endorsed Rhondda Cynon Taff County Borough Council as Lead local authority to oversee 
the delivery of the UK Shared Prosperity Fund and delegation of powers to Head of Law & Standards on behalf 
of the Council. 
Cabinet Member for Infrastructure and Assets approved the adoption of the Infrastructure Highways 
Maintenance manual as the new Code of Practice for Highways Maintenance delivery in Newport. 
Cabinet Member for Community Well-being approved Newport City Council to deliver a Community Food 
Organisation support fund to help support ongoing revenue costs of community food organisations in Newport. 
Green Flag awarded to Beechwood Park and Belle Vue Park.  

August 2022 Joint Cabinet Member decision between the Leader of the Council and Cabinet Member for Community and 
Well-being to support the allocation of cost of living payments from Welsh Government to households. 
Cabinet Member for Organisational Transformation approved the updates to the Council’s Human Resources 
policies for Flexible Working, Homeworking and Travel and Subsistence. 
Work commenced on site at the Transporter Bridge Centre. 
Adult Services achieves Carer Friendly accreditation. 
Welsh in Education Strategic Plan was approved by Welsh Government to increase the number of Welsh-
medium places in Newport. 

September 
2022 

Newport City Council hosted a recruitment and jobs fair hosted at Newport Market with over 40 employers 
offering opportunities for prospective residents.  
Newport City Council in collaboration with GAVO launched a £100k grant fund to support community food 
groups. 
Flying Start expansion launched offering support to children and families for those in part time, parenting 
support, enhanced health visitor support and speech, language and communication skills. 

October 2022 
 
 

The Leader of the Council approved 18 month pilot ‘International Sort Landing Programme’ aimed at increasing 
the presence of international businesses in the city centre.  
Newport City Council’s Dogs Home won gold in two categories at the 2022 RSPCA Cymru PawPrint Awards.  
Newport hosted the Knife Angel event as part of the national anti-violence tour with a giant angel sculpture 
made from over 100,000 knives.  
Return of Newport Food Festival to the city centre.  

 

Page 75



 

 

www.newport.gov.uk 61 

 

Month Decision / Achievement 

November 2022 Newport City Council approved the Council’s Corporate Plan 2022-27. 
The Council’s Cabinet approved to enter into a cost sharing arrangement with Coleg Gwent as part of the 
development of the city centre Knowledge Quarter.  
Cabinet Member for Education & Early Years approved the establishment of a 20 place specialist base for pupils 
with Autistic Spectrum Disorder at Llanwern High School. 
Cost of Living support event delivered by Newport City Council and other partners providing advice, guidance 
and support to households and individuals struggling with the cost of living.  
New cycle storage unit opened in Newport City Centre offering 24/7 access to store their bikes securely when 
visiting the city centre.  

December 2022 The Leader of the Council approved the Council’s Business Development Fund for 2022/23 to 2025/26. 
Joint Cabinet Member decision between the Leader of the Council and Cabinet Member for Community and 
Well-being to support the allocation of second and final cost of living payments from Welsh Government to 
households. 
Cabinet Member for Strategic Planning, Regulation & Housing approved the planned public consultation on a 
Public Spaces Protection order within Maesglas. 
Newport Market receives an award at the Ystadau Cymru Awards 2022. 
Newport City Council, religious groups, and community organisations offer ‘Warm Places’ for households and 
individuals struggling with the cost of living crisis. 
Jubilee Park Primary School receives an outstanding report from Estyn. 

January 2023 Newport City Council approved the Council Tax Reduction Scheme for 2023/24. 
Cabinet Member for Strategic Planning, Regulation and Housing approved the Pavement Café Licensing Policy 
to allow businesses to apply to the Council for a licence to place tables and chairs on the highway. 
Conservation of the Medieval Ship timbers was completed. 

February 2023 Newport City Council approved the Council’s 2023/24 budget, Medium Term Financial Plan and national Non-
Domestic Rates: Discretionary Rate Relief Schemes 2023/24. 
Newport City Council approved the Gwent Well-being Plan 2023-28. 
Cabinet Members approve 11 service area plans 2022-24 to support the delivery of the Council’s Corporate 
Plan 2022-27. 
Ysgol Gyfun Gwent Is Coed new teaching block was completed providing new classrooms and facilities for 
learners. 

March 2023 The Council’s Cabinet approved the Council’s core Themes, Outcomes and Measures (TOMs) for measuring 
Social Value in future contract and procurement arrangements. 
The Council’s Cabinet approved the Council’s updated Compliments, Comments and Complaints Policy. 
Cabinet Member for Education & Early Years to set the Council’s admission arrangements for the academic year 
commencing September 2024 as consulted upon without amendment. 
Newport schools, Newport High School and Malpas Church in Wales removed from Special Measures.  
Gender Pay Gap for the year one of the smallest in Wales 

Page 76

http://www.newport.gov.uk/


62 

 

 

Self-Assessment Actions Update 2021/22 
 
The table below provides an update on the actions raised in the 2021/22 Well-being Self-Assessment Report.  Where 
actions remain in progress, these will be carried forward into 2023/24 Action Plan.  
 

Recommendation / 
Issue(s) Action Lead Service 

Area 

Anticipation 
Completion 

Date 
2022/23 Progress Update 

Improve the reporting 
and presentation of the 
Council’s performance 
and Annual Well-being 
Self- Assessment Report 
in line with the newly 
developed Corporate 
Plan and considering 
feedback from the 
Council’s Scrutiny and 
Governance and Audit 
Committee. 

• Consider how best to 
self-assess performance 
against the Corporate 
Plan and Well-being 
Objectives. 

• Evaluate the impact 
which key decisions and 
activities have had on 
service users and 
communities. 

• Ensure the Council’s 
service plans align to 
strategic priorities. 

People, Policy & 
Transformation 31st March 2023 

Complete 
Following the approval of the 
Council’s Corporate Plan, 
service areas updated their 
Service Plans 2022-24 to align 
with the Corporate Plan.  
Actions across all of the service 
plans have been aligned to the 
Corporate Plan Well-being 
Objectives and strategic 
priorities.   
This year’s annual report now 
shows the progress against 
each strategic priority.  The 
Council is developing 
mechanisms to assess the 
impact of key decisions and 
activities in the published 
Participation Strategy.  
The FEIA process supports key 
decisions and impact on 
communities. 

Review the Council’s 
Planning, Performance 
and Risk Policies to align 
with the Local 
Government Act and to 
support the Council to 
deliver its new Corporate 
Plan. 

Review and update the 
Strategic Planning, 
Performance and Risk 
Management Framework 
considering feedback 
from key stakeholders to 
support the delivery of the 
new Corporate Plan. 

People, Policy & 
Transformation 31st March 2023 

In Progress 
The Performance & Planning 
policy was approved July 2023 
and is aligned to the new 
legislation. 
The Risk Management Policy 
review is ongoing and a new 
action will be taken forward in 
this year’s annual report.   

Page 77



 

 
www.newport.gov.uk 63 

Recommendation / 
Issue(s) Action Lead Service 

Area 

Anticipation 
Completion 

Date 
2022/23 Progress Update 

The Council needs to 
deliver the priorities 
identified in its 
Participatory Strategy to 
strengthen the 
arrangements to involve 
and engage its key 
stakeholders in the 
democratic process and 
decision making. 

Deliver the actions from 
the Council’s 
Participatory Strategy to 
improve involvement 
across Council activities 
including their role with 
the Council’s 
performance and 
meeting with the 
requirements of the Local 
Government Act. 

Law & Standards 31st March 2024 

In Progress 
The Participation Strategy was 
approved by Council in May 
2022.   Since that time feedback 
from Scrutiny Committees and 
public is being reviewed by 
Democratic Services to develop 
ways of improving 
engagement.  The 
reintroduction of Ward 
meetings has been approved, 
and these have commenced, 
with a view to engaging the 
public in budgetary and service 
performance related issues. 

A review of the 
governance 
arrangements around the 
development, delivery 
and monitoring of the 
Council’s future 
Transformation Plan is 
currently underway and 
will also include clear 
responsibilities and 
arrangements for other 
key areas, such as 
financial management, 
capital programme, 
major projects etc. 

To conclude the review 
and ensure arrangements 
are in place. 

People, Policy & 
Transformation 31st March 2023 

In Progress 
Transformation approach 
under development June 2023.  
The first programmes have 
commenced and new project 
management documentation is 
being reviewed.  Clear owners 
(SROs) are established for the 
programme, and the escalation 
is to Executive Board. 
Included in Planning and 
Performance Policy update as 
above.  

New Members have the 
appropriate skills to 
effectively undertake 
their roles. 

Training and Induction for 
new Members will be 
reviewed and updated 
following Local 
Government elections in 
May 2022. 

Law & Standards 31st March 2023 

In Progress 
Following the elections in May 
2022, a full programme for 
members has been 
implemented.  All members 
have received induction 
training and Code of Conduct 
training.  Carbon Literacy has 
been introduced and take up 
has been positive.  Full member 
training plans are being 
developed. A survey of 
members will inform the 
second year of training and 
capture feedback on topics / 
methods most valued by 
members. 

Ensure key decisions 
within NCC support the 
principles of equalities 
and Welsh Language 

To deliver the actions 
identified in the Council’s 
Annual Report 2021/22 
against the Strategic 
Equalities Plan. People, Policy and 

Transformation 31st March 2024 

In progress 
The strategic equalities plan is 
in its penultimate year and will 
be updated during 2024-25.  
The latest annual Welsh 
language and Strategic 
Equalities Report for 22-23 
demonstrate progress to date 
and key actions for 23-34. 

Page 78

http://www.newport.gov.uk/


64 

 

 

Recommendation / 
Issue(s) Action Lead Service 

Area 

Anticipation 
Completion 

Date 
2022/23 Progress Update 

Development of the 
engagement and 
participation strategy. 

Ideally there should be a 
formal policy for the type 
of issues that the Council 
will meaningfully consult 
with or involve individual 
citizens, service users and 
other stakeholders to 
ensure that service 
provision is contributing 
towards the achievement 
of intended outcomes 
needs to be developed. 
Consideration to be given 
to developing a formal 
policy and communicating 
it to all relevant 
stakeholders. 

Law & Standards 
/ People, Policy & 
Transformation 

31st March 2023 

Complete 
The Public Participation 
Strategy was agreed by full 
Council in May 2022. 
Participation Strategy Final 
Format (newport.gov.uk) 
Engagement in the Strategy  
will be considered by 
Democratic Services 
Committee and performance 
scrutiny committees as part of 
their terms of reference. 

The Council’s 
Constitution is kept up to 
date following recent 
legislation. 

The Council’s Constitution 
is kept up to date following 
recent legislation. 
Consideration needs to be 
given to further update 
the Council’s Constitution 
to reflect the Local 
Government and Elections 
(Wales) Act 2021. 

Law & Standards 31st March 2023 

Complete 
This is an ongoing process.  
Council Constitution last 
updated in March 2023 and 
includes Local Government and 
Elections (Wales) Act.   

Revised decision making 
and review/reporting 
arrangement. 

Following the new 
structure, the interim 
decision making 
arrangements which have 
been in place should be 
formally updated and 
implemented. 

Law & Standards 31st March 2023 

Complete 
The Scheme of Delegation has 
been updated and 
implemented following the 
restructure in September 2022.  
This is reflected in the 
constitution. 

The Council will continue 
to improve safeguarding 
arrangements 

To deliver the actions 
identified in the Corporate 
Safeguarding Annual 
Report 2021/22.   

Children Services 
(Safeguarding 

Team) 
31st March 2024 

In Progress 
As reported in the annual 
Safeguarding report 2022/23, 
two actions relating to Member 
and staff training and external 
communications have been 
carried forward into 2023/24.  
Additionally, three new actions 
have been raised to improve 
audit cycles, regional self-
assessment tool, and training. 

Page 79

https://www.newport.gov.uk/documents/Council-and-Democracy/Participation-Strategy-Final-Format.pdf
https://www.newport.gov.uk/documents/Council-and-Democracy/Participation-Strategy-Final-Format.pdf


 

 

www.newport.gov.uk 65 

Recommendation / 
Issue(s) Action Lead Service 

Area 

Anticipation 
Completion 

Date 
2022/23 Progress Update 

The Council should 
demonstrate longer-
term considerations for 
its property portfolio 
strategic planning and 
associated decision-
making processes. 

Following the pandemic 
and the introduction of 
our ‘New Normal’ working 
policies and the 
development of our new 
Corporate Plan we will 
review our Strategic Asset 
Management Plan, and 
Disposal and Asset 
transfer strategies.  This 
will be supported by an 
asset rationalisation 
programme in our 
Transformation Plan. 

People, Policy & 
Transformation 

31st August 
2023 

Complete 
The Council has commenced its 
Asset Rationalisation 
Programme which is now 
examining the long term 
strategy in use of the Council’s 
estate to meet the needs of its 
citizens and users.  In the 
delivery of this programme, the 
Council is ensuring evidence 
based cases are considered to 
support strategic decision 
making.  
The delivery of this work is 
monitored and reported 
through the People, Policy & 
Transformation service plan.    

Engage with public sector 
partners across Gwent to 
realise the potential 
benefits arising from a 
strategic approach to a 
single public estate. 

The asset rationalisation 
programme in our 
Transformation Plan will 
also consider 
opportunities for working 
with partners, which may 
be within a Gwent or 
local/Newport context. People, Policy & 

Transformation 
31st December 

2023 

Complete 
The Council is delivering its 
Assets Rationalisation 
programme.  The Council will 
be considering all viable 
avenues as part of evidence 
based cases which its estate 
have can be effectively used by 
other partners including public, 
charity, not for profit and 
private organisations.   
The delivery of this work will be 
monitored and reported 
through the People, Policy & 
Transformation service plan.    

Implement the actions 
identified through 
Information Risk Report 
and Digital Report to 
improve the Council’s 
Information and digital 
governance and 
processes. 

Deliver the actions 
identified through the 
Council’s Information Risk 
Report 2021/22 and 
Digital Report 2021/22. People, Policy 

and 
Transformation 

31st March 2023 

Complete 
Full action plan monitoring is 
outlined in the Annual 
Information Risk Report 2022-
23 and Annual Digital Reports.  
And the service plan.   
Main achievements – 
accreditations achieved, and 
Digital Strategy developed and 
published. 

 

Page 80

http://www.newport.gov.uk/


66 

 

 

Recommendation / 
Issue(s) Action Lead Service 

Area 

Anticipation 
Completion 

Date 
2022/23 Progress Update 

Implement the ‘Actions 
for improvement’ from 
the Compliments, 
Comments and 
Complaints Annual 
Report 2021/22. 

Deliver the seven ‘Actions 
for Improvement’ 
identified in the 
Compliments, Comments 
and Complaints Annual 
Report 2021/22: 
Roll out of hybrid training 
to service areas. 
Review ‘My Council’ 
services and improve data 
capture in the Contact 
Centre. 
Analyse complaint 
demographics and 
improve recording of data. 
Standardise digital 
complaints process. 
Improve compliance with 
the Compliments, 
Comments and 
Complaints Policy across 
service areas. 
Review and update the 
Unacceptable Actions 
Policy. 
Improve accessibility for 
disadvantaged and 
vulnerable customers. 

People, Policy 
and 

Transformation 
31st March 2023 

In Progress 
At the end of March 2023, 4 out 
of 7 were completed and 3 
actions remained in progress 
and continuing into 2023/24.  
The actions continuing into 
2023/24 are: 
• Analyse complaint 

demographics and improve 
recording of data. 

• Review and update the 
Unacceptable Actions Policy. 

• Improve accessibility for 
disadvantaged and 
vulnerable customers. 

 
A full report on the progress 
against the actions will be 
presented separately to the 
Council’s Governance & Audit 
Committee in September 2023 
and Cabinet in November 2023. 
 
 

Page 81



 

 

www.newport.gov.uk 67 

Overall Conclusion and Self-Assessment of NCC 
Governance and Performance Arrangements 2022/23 
At the end of the last financial year the Council has made an encouraging start to the delivery of the new Corporate 
Plan 2022-27.  As the report highlights good (Green) progress has been made in two of the four Well-being objectives 
(Objective 2 and 4).  But challenges remain across our Social Services, Housing, Infrastructure and Education services 
on the long term sustainability to meet the demands of residents in Newport within the financial and legislative 
pressures which the Council is needing to make.  The Council has started to deliver several programmes to meet these 
challenges but we recognise further work will be needed to transform the way which we deliver our services over the 
next 5 years.   

Since the last annual report, we have considered the feedback of the Council’s Governance & Audit Committee and 
Oversight Management Scrutiny Committee to improve how we monitor and report progress against the Corporate 
Plan and our other strategic priorities across the Council.  As the Annual Governance Statement report 2022/23 
highlights, the governance and performance arrangements have overall remained effective, but we acknowledge that 
further actions are needed to improve existing arrangements and ensure the Council’s governance arrangements 
continue to improve to support the delivery of its services and ensure stakeholders are involved in decision making.  
The actions for 2023/24 will support this work and progress will be reported through the Council’s service plans and 
next year’s annual report.      

Looking ahead at 2023/24 and beyond the Council will need to make challenging and difficult decisions not only to 
ensure our statutory services remain sustainable but also to ensure that we will have a balanced budget for 2024/25 
and in our medium term financial plan.  As part of our ongoing monitoring and assessment against the Council’s 
Corporate Plan we will continue to assess and evaluate our Well-being Objectives and strategic priorities to ensure 
that they remain achievable and will benefit Newport’s communities, economy and long term sustainability of Newport 
City Council.      
 
 

Page 82

http://www.newport.gov.uk/


68 

 

 

Actions for Improvement 2023/24 
Action 

No. 
Recommendation / 

Issue(s) Action 
Lead Service 

Area 
Anticipation 

Completion Date 

1 

Carried Forward (Annual 
Report 21/22) and AGS 
 
Review the Council’s 
Planning, Performance and 
Risk Policies to align with the 
Local Government Act and 
to support the Council to 
deliver its new Corporate 
Plan. 

Review and update the 
Strategic Planning, 
Performance and Risk 
Management Framework 
considering feedback from 
key stakeholders to support 
the delivery of the new 
Corporate Plan. 

People, Policy & 
Transformation 30th January 2024 

2 

Carried Forward (Annual 
Report 21/22) 
 
The Council needs to deliver 
the priorities identified in its 
Participatory Strategy to 
strengthen the 
arrangements to involve and 
engage its key stakeholders 
in the democratic process 
and decision making. 

Deliver the actions from the 
Council’s Participatory 
Strategy to improve 
involvement across Council 
activities including their role 
with the Council’s 
performance and meeting 
with the requirements of the 
Local Government Act. 

Law & Standards 31st March 2024 

3 

Carried Forward (Annual 
Report 21/22) and AGS 
 
A review of the governance 
arrangements around the 
development, delivery and 
monitoring of the Council’s 
future ‘Transformation Plan’ 
is currently underway and 
will also include clear 
responsibilities and 
arrangements for other key 
areas, such as financial 
management, capital 
programme, major projects 
etc. 

To conclude the review and 
ensure arrangements are in 
place. 

People, Policy & 
Transformation 31st March 2024 

4 

Carried Forward (Annual 
Report 21/22) 
 
New Members have the 
appropriate skills to 
effectively undertake their 
roles. 

Training and Induction for 
new Members will be 
reviewed and updated 
following Local Government 
elections in May 2022. 

Law & Standards 31st March 2023 

Page 83



 

 

www.newport.gov.uk 69 

Action 
No. 

Recommendation / 
Issue(s) Action 

Lead Service 
Area 

Anticipation 
Completion Date 

5 

Carried Forward from 
Annual Report 21/22 
 
Ensure key decisions within 
NCC support the principles 
of equalities and Welsh 
Language 

To deliver the actions 
identified in the Council’s 
Annual Report 2021/22 
against the Strategic 
Equalities Plan and draft the 
future Strategic Equalities 
Plan 

People, Policy and 
Transformation 31st March 2024 

6 

Carried Forward from 
Annual Report 21/22 
 
The Council will continue to 
improve safeguarding 
arrangements 

To deliver the actions 
identified in the Corporate 
Safeguarding Annual Report 
2021/22.   

Children Services 
(Safeguarding Team) 31st March 2024 

7 

Carried Forward from 
Annual Report 21/22 
 
Implement the ‘Actions for 
improvement’ from the 
Compliments, Comments 
and Complaints Annual 
Report 2021/22. 

Deliver the seven ‘Actions for 
Improvement’ identified in 
the Compliments, Comments 
and Complaints Annual 
Report 2021/22: 
Roll out of hybrid training to 
service areas. 
Review ‘My Council’ services 
and improve data capture in 
the Contact Centre. 
Analyse complaint 
demographics and improve 
recording of data. 
Standardise digital complaints 
process. 
Improve compliance with the 
Compliments, Comments and 
Complaints Policy across 
service areas. 
Review and update the 
Unacceptable Actions Policy. 
Improve accessibility for 
disadvantaged and vulnerable 
customers. 

People, Policy and 
Transformation 31st March 2024 

8 

Annual Governance 
Statement 2022/23 
 
Implementation of the 19 
actions identified in the 
Council’s Annual 
Governance Statement 
2022/23 

Deliver the 19 actions 
identified in the Council’s 
Annual Governance 
Statement 2022/23 and to 
report progress to the 
Council’s Governance & Audit 
Committee.  

Transformation & 
Corporate 

Directorate 
(Finance, Law & 
Standards and 

People, Policy & 
Transformation) 

31st March 2024 

 

Page 84

http://www.newport.gov.uk/


70 

 

 

Action 
No. 

Recommendation / 
Issue(s) Action 

Lead Service 
Area 

Anticipation 
Completion Date 

9 

Audit Wales – Setting of 
Well-being Objectives 
Report 2022/23 
As the Council develops the 
measures it will use to 
monitor progress against its 
Well-being objectives, it 
should ensure they reflect 
the sustainable 
development principle – for 
example enabling it to 
monitor: 
• Progress against long and 

short-term objectives and 
• Progress against 

objectives that cut across 
multiple of its own 
services and other 
organisations. 

 

The Council will examine the 
performance measures 
available and assess these 
alongside the Welsh 
Government’s National 
performance indicators and 
Milestones. 
 
These will enable the Council 
to provide an assessment of 
progress between the short 
term delivery /service plans 
and the longer term work 
which it is undertaking 
through other programmes 
such as the Gwent Public 
Services Board, Cardiff Capital 
Region.   

People, Policy & 
Transformation 31st March 2024 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

Page 85



 

 

www.newport.gov.uk 71 

Glossary 
  
The table below provides an explanation of the acronyms and terms used throughout the report:   

Acronym Description 

AT Active Travel 
ALN Additional Learning Needs 

AQMA Air Quality Management Areas 
CCR Cardiff Capital Region 
CLA Children Looked After 

NEET Not in Education, Employment or Training 
TFW Transport for Wales 
UASC Unaccompanied Asylum Seeker Children 
WG Welsh Government 

 

Corporate Plan / Service Area Plan Red / Amber / Green Assessment 

RAG 
Assessment 

Description 

 The delivery against the strategic priority or objective is not on track.  Immediate management 
intervention is required to improve performance and escalation to relevant senior officer group(s). 

 The delivery against the strategic priority or objective is mainly on track with some areas requiring 
management intervention to improve performance and escalation to relevant senior officer group(s) 

 The delivery against the strategic priority or objective is achieving and/or succeeding against its agreed 
targets. 

 

Performance Measure Monitoring and Tolerance Assessment 

Newport City Council has an agreed 15% tolerance against targets set in service plans. 

RAG 
Assessment 

Description 

=> 15% Performance is under achieving against target or previous year’s performance.  Immediate management 
intervention and escalation to relevant senior officer group(s) is required. 

< 15% Performance is off target or previous year’s performance but within the agreed 15% tolerance.  
Management intervention and close monitoring by the service area and Directorate is required.  

 Performance measure is achieving or succeeding against its agree target or previous year’s performance.  
Commentary provided is at the discretion of the service area.  

 

 

 

Page 86

http://www.newport.gov.uk/


72 

 

 

Have Your Say 
We welcome your views on this report, the council’s plans for the future and how it did last year. We would also like 
to know how you; your family and your community have been affected by our work to improve the services that we 
deliver.  

Ways to get in touch: 

Newport City Council Website: www.newport.gov.uk 

Download the My Newport App to your Smartphone device. 

Available on Apple and Android devices. 

 

   Twitter - @NewportCouncil 

  Facebook – www.facebook.com/NewportCityCouncil 

 
Email: info@newportcouncil.gov.uk 

 
Telephone – (01633) 656 656 between 8.00am and 6.00pm Monday to Friday 

 
Text – NCC followed by your message to 60777 

 
Minicom – (01633) 656 657 

 
Write to –  

Newport City Council 
Civic Centre 
Godfrey Road 
Newport 
NP20 4UR 
 

 
 
 
  

Page 87

https://twitter.com/newportcouncil
http://www.facebook.com/NewportCityCouncil
mailto:info@newportcouncil.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



Scrutiny Report 
Overview and Scrutiny Management 
Committee 
 
Part 1  
 
Date:  September 2023 
 
Subject Strategic Equalities Plan Annual Report 2022-23 
 
Author  Scrutiny Advisor 
 
The following people have been invited to attend for this item: 
 

Invitee: Area / Role / Subject 
 

Rhys Cornwall   Strategic Director for Corporate and 
Transformation 

Tracy McKim  Head of People, Policy & Transformation 
 

Janice Dent  
 

Policy and Partnership Manager 
 

Donald Mutale  Senior Equalities Officer 

Cllr D Batrouni  Cabinet Member for Organisational 
Transformation 

 

Section A – Committee Guidance and Recommendations 

 

1 Recommendations to the Committee

The Committee is asked 

1. Whether the Annual Report reflects a true and fair account of the council’s progress 
towards achieving the objectives defined in the Strategic Equality Plan 2020-24 for the 
period in question – 2022 – 2023.

2. Whether the Annual Report highlights the ongoing commitment to Equalities effectively 
and focuses on appropriate successes and highlights successes and good work

3. Whether the Annual Report highlights the ongoing commitment to equalities effectively 
and focuses on appropriate areas for development

4. Whether it wishes to provide comment and recommendations on the Annual Report to 
Cabinet

Page 89

Agenda Item 5



2 Context 
 

Background  
 
2.1 The Annual Report on the Strategic Equality Plan demonstrates the progress made against the  

Equality Objectives identified in the Council’s Strategic Equality Plan 2020-2024 (SEP).   
 
2.2 The SEP sets out six Strategic Equality Objectives to support the council’s duty to pay due regard 

to the need to promote equality of opportunity, foster positive relationships between community 
groups, and eliminate discrimination, as contained within the Equality Act 2010. 

 
2.3 The six Strategic Equality Objectives are: 
 

1. Leadership, Governance, and Involvement - Newport City Council has strong leadership 
and clear governance around equality, ensuring robust monitoring processes and regular 
meaningful stakeholder engagement 

2. Customer Service and Access - Newport City Council’s services are accessible to 
everyone in Newport, providing services that are both inclusive and considerate of 
individual need 

3. Representative Workforce - Newport City Council has a workforce that represents the city 
and is a workplace with an inclusive culture which recruits, develops and retains staff 

4. Community Cohesion - Newport City Council promotes positive relationships between 
different communities, supporting integration and effectively identifying emerging 
community tensions 

5. Learn Well - Newport City Council supports the well-being and attainment of the city’s 
pupils, and actively looks to address any disparity in achievement of vulnerable learners 

6. Independent Living - Newport City Council contributes to the city being a great place to 
live, to grow older and live independently, and has in place a range of services that 
accommodates people in different situations 

 
2.4 As part of our duties under the Equality Act (2010), Newport City Council is required to produce  

and publish an Annual Report outlining the progress that we have made against our Strategic  
Equality Objectives which are set out in our Strategic Equality Plan (SEP) 2020-24. This Annual  
Report sets out a summary of key achievements against our identified Objectives and outcomes,  
a detailed update on work to meet each Objective and finally, our workforce equality data which  
is also a publishing requirement under the Equality Act (2010) 
 

2.5 The statutory deadline for publishing the annual report is the end of the year, on the council’s 
website, with relevant notification and advertising of publication via relevant channels, including 
social media. 
 

2.6 This report relates to the second year of delivery of our 2020-2024 SEP. During the year,  
progress against our Strategic Equality Objectives is monitored and supported by the council’s  
Strategic Equalities Group (SEG). This group is chaired by the Cabinet Member for  
Organisational Transformation, and membership includes representation from Newport’s  
Fairness Commission, Trade Unions, Elected Member Equality Champions, Staff Support  
Networks Chairs, and service area lead officers.   
 

2.7 The SEP Annual Report is presented to the Overview and Scrutiny Management Committee for a 
strategic overview to work alongside the performance monitoring completed by other 
Committees. 
 

 Previous Consideration of this item 
 
2.8 The Committee previously considered this item during the 23rd September 2022 meeting. 

 

Page 90

https://www.newport.gov.uk/documents/Council-and-Democracy/Equalities-and-Welsh-language-/Strategic-Equality-Plan-2020-2024.pdf
https://democracy.newport.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=446&MId=8313&Ver=4&LLL=0


3 Information Submitted to the Committee 
 
3.1 Attached at Appendix 1 is the Strategic Equality Plan Annual Report 2022/23. 
 
3.2 This report contains:  
 

• An introduction  
• A summary of achievements  
• Updates on each Equality Objective 1-6 
• Equalities monitoring and capturing data 
• Workforce data  
• Workforce statistics data 
• Supporting documents and information  

 

4. Suggested Areas of Focus 
 
4.1  

  
 
4.2 Wellbeing of Future Generation (Wales) Act  
 

5 Ways of Working Types of Questions to consider: 

What consideration have you given to the long term 
trends that could affect your proposal or; how could 
your proposal impact these trends? 

Long-term 
The importance of balancing short-term 
needs with the need to safeguard the 
ability to also meet long-term needs. 

 
How will the needs of your service users potentially 
change in the future? 

What is the objective (or the desired outcome) of this 
proposal? 

Prevention  
Prevent problems occurring or getting 

worse. How are you addressing these issues to prevent a 
future problem? 

The role of the Committee in considering the report is to:

• Consider and make comment on the content of the Annual Report and key 
achievements as outlined 

• Determine whether the content of the report is a true reflection of the council’s 
Strategic Equalities performance in 2021-2022

• Conclusions:
o What was the overall conclusion on the information contained within the report?
o Is the Committee satisfied that it has had all of the relevant information to base a 

conclusion on the quality of the Annual Report? 
o Do any areas require a more in-depth review by the Committee?
o Do the Committee wish to make any Comments / Recommendations to the 

Cabinet?

Page 91



How have the decisions, so far, come about? What 
alternatives were considered? 

Are there any other organisations providing similar / 
complementary services? 

Have you consulted with the health board, third 
sector, emergency services, businesses and anyone 
else you think might be impacted? 

Integration 
Considering how public bodies’ wellbeing 
objectives may impact upon each of the 

well-being goals, on their other 
objectives, or on the objectives of other 

public bodies. 

What practical steps will you take to integrate your 
project with existing plans and strategies of other 
public organisations to help us all contribute fully to 
the seven national well-being goals? 

Who have you been working with? Why? Who have 
you collaborated with in finding out more about this 
problem and potential solutions? 

How are you co-working with other sectors?  

Collaboration  
Acting in collaboration with any other 

person (or different parts of the 
organisation itself). 

How are you using the knowledge / information / 
good practice of others to inform / influence the 
Council’s work? 

How have you involved the people who are being 
impacted by this decision?  

How have you taken into account the diverse 
communities in your decision making?  

How have you used different / alternative methods to 
reach people and involve them?  

Involvement 
The importance of involving people with 
an interest in achieving the well-being 
goals, and ensuring that those people 
reflect the diversity of the area which the 
body serves. 

How will you communicate the outcome of your 
decision?  

 
 
4.3 Suggested Lines of Enquiry 
 
 The Committee may wish to consider: 
 

• How progress of compliance against the Strategic Equalities Plan is monitored   
• Is the report a fair and honest reflection of current performance   
• Whether all staff members, senior management and relevant stakeholders are effectively 

engaged effectively to deliver against the Plan 
 

 
Section B – Supporting Information 
 
5  Links to Council Policies and Priorities  
 

Page 92



Well-being 
Objective 

1 – Economy, 
Education and 
Skills 

2 – Newport’s 
Environment and 
Infrastructure  

3 – Preventative 
and Equitable 
Community and 
Social Care 

4 – An Inclusive, 
Fair and 
Sustainable 
Council 

Aims:  Newport is a 
thriving and 
growing city that 
offers excellent 
education and 
aspires to provide 
opportunities for 
all. 

A city that seeks 
to protect and 
enhance our 
environment 
whilst reducing 
our carbon 
footprint and 
preparing for a 
sustainable and 
digital future. 

Newport is a 
supportive city 
where 
communities and 
care are at the 
heart of what we 
do. 

Newport City 
Council is an 
inclusive 
organisation that 
places social 
value, fairness 
and sustainability 
at its core. 

 
 
6 Wellbeing of Future Generations (Wales) Act  
 

Activities in relation to delivery of the Plan will support the Five Ways of Working under the 
Wellbeing of Future Generations (Wales) Act. 
 
Highlighting the key achievements, development of new policies and monitoring performances 
across the council will help the achieve a number of goals and targets and will contribute to the 
Wellbeing Goals of a prosperous Wales, a more equal Wales, a Wales of cohesive communities 
and a Wales of vibrant culture and thriving Welsh language 
 
The report covers the work undertaken with strategic groups including the Strategic equality 
Group, stakeholders, and partners to achieve the strategic objectives. The key themes and 
actions in the report underpin them and balance short term needs with the delivery of medium to 
long-term solutions. 
 
It identifies key successes towards the plan and shows how the council has worked towards each 
of the strategic objectives and how this is steering the work of the council, partners, and 
communities across Newport.  

 
8. Background Papers 
 

 
• The Essentials - Wellbeing of Future Generation Act (Wales)  
• Corporate Plan 2022-27 
• Strategic Equality Plan 2020-24 
• Socio-economic Duty Guidance 
• Public Sector Equality Duty 

 
Report Completed: September 2023 

Page 93

http://gov.wales/docs/dsjlg/publications/150623-guide-to-the-fg-act-en.pdf
https://www.newport.gov.uk/documents/Council-and-Democracy/About-the-council/Corporate-Plan-2022-27-FINAL.pdf
https://www.newport.gov.uk/documents/Council-and-Democracy/Equalities-and-Welsh-language-/Strategic-Equality-Plan-2020-2024.pdf
https://www.gov.wales/sites/default/files/publications/2021-03/a-more-equal-wales.pdf
https://www.equalityhumanrights.com/sites/default/files/assessing_impact_and_the_equality_duty_wales_0.pdf


This page is intentionally left blank



 

1 
 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 

Strategic Equality Plan 
2020 - 2024 
ANNUAL REPORT 2022-2023  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Mae’r ddogfen hefyd ar gael yn Gymraeg. 
This document is also available in Welsh. 
 

 

Page 95



 

2 
 

 
 
Contents  
Foreword by Cabinet Member for Organisational Transformation 
(to be added after Cabinet) 

 

Introduction 2 
Summary of Achievements 4 
Equality Objective 1: Leadership, Governance and Involvement 7 
Equality Objective 2: Customer Service 10 
Equality Objective 3: Representative Workforce 12 
Equality Objective 4: Community Cohesion 14 
Equality Objective 5: Learn Well 16 
Equality Objective 6: Independent Living 21 
Equality Monitoring and Capturing Data 23 
1. Collecting Data 23 

A. Systems 23 
              B. Consultations 23 
2. Evaluating data 24 

     A. Fairness and Equality Impact Assessments 24 
     B. Service Area Plans 24 

Workforce Data 25 
Workforce Statistics Data 26 
Supporting Documents and Information 33 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 96



 

3 
 

 
Introduction 
 

In April 2020, Newport City Council published its Strategic Equality Plan (SEP) 2020-24, identifying six 
Equality Objectives that the Council will measure itself against over the next four years. Our Equality 
Objectives built on work delivered in previous SEPs and were developed following a programme of 
consultation and engagement events held with residents and representatives from protected 
characteristic groups. 

Our six Equality Objectives are: 

• Equality Objective 1 (Leadership, Governance & Involvement) - Newport City Council has 
strong leadership and clear governance around equality, ensuring robust monitoring 
processes and regular meaningful stakeholder engagement. 

• Equality Objective 2 (Customer Service and Access) - Newport City Council’s services are 
accessible to everyone in Newport, providing services that are both inclusive and 
considerate of individual need. 

• Equality Objective 3 (Representative Workforce) - Newport City Council has a workforce 
that represents the city and is a workplace with an inclusive culture which recruits, develops 
and retains staff. 

• Equality Objective 4 (Community Cohesion) - Newport City Council promotes positive 
relationships between different communities, supporting integration and effectively 
identifying emerging community tensions. 

• Equality Objective 5 (Learn Well) - Newport City Council supports the well-being and 
attainment of the city’s pupils, and actively looks to address any disparity in achievement of 
vulnerable learners. 

• Equality Objective 6 (Independent Living) - Newport City Council contributes to the city 
being a great place to live, to grow older and live independently, and has in place a range of 
services that accommodates people in different situations. 

As part of our duties under the Equality Act (2010), the Council is required to produce and publish an 
Annual Report outlining the progress we have made against the Equality Objectives set out in our 
SEP. This Annual Report sets out a summary of key achievements against our identified objectives 
and outcomes, a detailed update on work to meet each objective and finally, our workforce equality 
data which is also a publishing requirement under the Equality Act (2010).  

This report relates to the third year of delivery of our 2020-2024 SEP. During the year, progress 
against our Strategic Equality Objectives is monitored and supported by the Council’s Strategic 
Equalities Group (SEG). This group is chaired by the Cabinet Member for Organisational 
Transformation, and membership includes representation from Newport’s Fairness Commission, 
Trade Unions, Elected Member Equality Champions, Staff Support Network Chairs, and service area 
lead officers.  

 
 

 

Page 97

https://www.newport.gov.uk/documents/Council-and-Democracy/Equalities-and-Welsh-language-/Strategic-Equality-Plan-2020-2024.pdf


 

4 
 

Summary of Achievements 
The table below sets out a summary of key achievements during this reporting period against each of our Strategic Equality Objectives and 
outcomes. Further details on activities can be found in the relevant sections of the report.  

 
Strategic Equality 
Objective  

Outcome  Achievements  

Newport City Council shows clear and consistent 
leadership in promoting equality and diversity across 
the city. 

• Anti-Racism training completed by Elected Members, Senior Leaders, 
Mangers, and wider staff. 

• Significant dates, including Eid al-Fitr, Black History Wales, UN Anti-
Racism Day and Pride in the Port, Newport’s first community Pride Event, 
have been recognised and promoted across the city. 

Newport City Council has a clear governance 
structure in place to monitor equality performance 
across the organisation. 

• Senior Leaders, including Strategic Directors and Heads of Service 
received Fairness and Equality Impact Assessment training. 

• Fairness and Equality Impact Assessments including the Socio-economic 
Duty are embedded across the council and have been used as 
consideration for policy/decision making, 

Leadership, 
Governance, and 
Involvement 

Newport City Council will improve how it 
understands the impact of changing services by 
engaging residents and relevant groups in the 
decision-making process. 

• Updated Community Well-being profiles, which are used as evidence in 
decision making and in the design of services. 

• £300,000 of funding has been distributed to 44 community projects, 
overseen by a representative community steering group, working closely 
with Newport’s Fairness Commission. 

We have a better understanding of the demographics 
of our service users, and reflect these in service 
design, removing barriers to access. 

• Face to Face services reopened at Newport Central Library with 
improvements to accessibility. 

Complaints relating to discrimination are managed in 
a way that ensures organisational learning. 

• Compliments, Comments and Complaints Policy has been updated 
simplify complaints procedure and improve organisational learning 

Customer Service 
and Access  

Through close partnership working with Newport 
Live, barriers to accessing sports and leisure provision 
in the city will be reduced, 

• Completed Diversity and inclusion review of Arts and Culture provision 
and developed improvement plan.  

P
age 98



 

5 
 

• Continued development of Newport Live programmes to ensure 
opportunities for as wide a range of people as possible.  

• Continued progress on the Disability Sport Wales insport Gold kitemark 
scheme.  
 

Staff with protected characteristics are better 
represented at all levels throughout the organisation. 

• Updated internal demographic monitoring categories based on census 
categories to better reflect local communities. 

• Increased female representation in upper pay quartiles. 
• Gender Pay Gap closed from 2.0% to -0.4%. 

Diverse staff have a voice within the organisation and 
are listened to. 

• Staff networks for disabled, LGBTQ+ and ethnic minority staff continue to 
provide a platform for under-represented groups to influence our 
workplace policy, service delivery and strategic decision making 

Representative 
Workforce  

The potential for unconscious bias in recruitment 
processes is recognised, and minimised. 

• Recruiting managers and staff within HR attended Anti-Racism 
professional learning and development workshops  

Everyone living in Newport feels welcomed, and 
integration is supported by local communities. 

• Significant support provided to EU citizens in Newport to make late 
applications to the EU Settlement Scheme and access services. 

• Supported Ukrainian Super Sponsorship Scheme and established two 
initial accommodation centres for individuals and groups displaced from 
Ukraine. 

• Supported over 200 individuals and groups displaced from Ukraine to 
resettle in Newport, including those who’ve arrived via all schemes 

Community 
Cohesion  

Community tensions are monitored and mitigated 
effectively. 

• Fortnightly community tensions meeting and weekly community dial in 
established in partnership with Gwent Police have continued. 

Learn Well  There is greater parity in attendance and exclusion 
rates for all pupils in Newport. 

• The Education Welfare and Inclusion Service tailored programmes to 
address the specific and growing needs of learners and schools. 

• The continued provision supporting learners, who are vulnerable to not 
having an educational pathway, including those who are Electively Home 
Educated (EHE), not attending due to Emotional Based School Avoidance 
(EBSA) and at risk of not being in education, training, or employment 
(NEET). 

P
age 99



 

6 
 

We have a better understanding of the challenges 
faced by potentially marginalised pupils. 

• Further supported schools to embed the ‘whole -school approach to 
emotional and mental well-being’ set out in the Welsh Government’s 
Framework (2021). 

• Provided support to schools based on the recording and reporting of 
incidents against Protected Characteristics. 

People are empowered to live in their own 
accommodation for longer. 

• Rapid Rehousing Transition Plan developed to align with Housing Support 
Programme Strategy priorities. 

• During the year, over 2,800 people were supported by all floating support 
schemes to access and maintain their accommodation. 

• Over 430 homeless households at any one time were accommodated in 
temporary accommodation units. 

• Developed of a range supported housing schemes, including specific 
provision for young people, people with mental health condition and 
Care Leavers. 

• The number of affordable housing units developed in Newport in this 
period was 220, a mix of 1,2 and 3-bed properties. 

• 38 void properties were brought back into use for homeless households 
under the Welsh Government’s Transitional Accommodation Capital 
Programme (TACP). 

• Creation of a homeless prevention team to upstream services 
People are empowered to play an active role in their 
local communities 

• Community Connectors supported 222 people to connect with, and be 
involved with, their local communities 

Independent 
Living  

The city is responsive to the accommodation needs 
of victims of domestic abuse 

• Housing Support Grant continues to fund six projects for people escaping 
domestic abuse, including specific provision for people from an ethnic 
minority background. 

• Over 370 women supported by DAFS floating support to remain in their 
own homes.  

• Funding secured to change one refuge into a ‘safe house’ for five women 
subject to sexual and financial exploitation. 

P
age 100



 

7 
 

Equality Objective 1: Leadership, Governance, and 
Involvement 

“Newport City Council has strong leadership and clear governance around 
equality, ensuring robust monitoring processes and regular meaningful 
stakeholder engagement”. 

Governance 

To deliver on the objectives we set out in our Strategic Equality Plan, we must lead by 
demonstrating our commitment to equality and being an example of good practice. Since 
publishing our Strategic Equality Plan, we have worked hard to ensure that our equality 
objectives will be delivered effectively over the lifetime of the Plan.  

In the last reporting period, we reviewed the membership and Terms of Reference of our 
Strategic Equalities Group (SEG). Throughout this period, this group, chaired by the Cabinet 
Member for Organisational Transformation, has continued to meet to support the Council's 
progress in achieving the objectives in our SEP and overcoming any barriers we encounter. 
The attendance of Staff Support Network Chairs has further enabled us to ensure the lived 
experiences of people who share a range of protected characteristics is heard and acted 
upon. 

This year, to successfully implement the Socio-Economic Duty (SED), we have continued our 
work to increase understanding of the SED and maximise opportunities to achieve its overall 
goal of improving the lives of people and communities experiencing socio-economic 
disadvantage. SED assessments are embedded within the Council's strategic decision-making 
process, and the Duty has been considered against a range of decisions to ensure we reduce 
inequality of outcome. Building on progress made to provide a more streamlined, integrated 
assessment tool for decision-makers, we updated the Community Well-being profiles, which 
are used as evidence in decision-making and service design. During this reporting period, we 
also provided training to Senior Leaders, including Strategic Directors and Heads of Service, 
on the updated Fairness and Equality Impact Assessment process to further embed thinking 
about the impact of decisions on this group into strategic decision-making and change how 
we deliver services to the most deprived groups. 

We continue to publish all FEIAs on our website to ensure we publicly share information 
about our decision-making process and how FEIAs have enabled us to make fair decisions, 
take relevant evidence into account, and seek to secure the best outcomes for our 
communities. We were cited as an example of good practice in an Audit Wales Report for 
publishing our FEIAs in a central and easily accessible location on our website. 

 

 

 

 

Page 101

https://www.newport.gov.uk/documents/One-Newport/Profiles/Community-Wellbeing-Profile-Newport-2021-Appendix.pdf
https://www.audit.wales/sites/default/files/publications/Equality_impact_assessment-english_0.pdf


 

8 
 

Corporate Plan 2022-27  

In November 2022, Newport City Council approved its new Corporate 
Plan 2022-27 to deliver ‘an Ambitious, Fairer and Greener Newport 
for everyone’. In line with the overarching aims of the Public Sector 
Equality Duty (PSED), Newport City Council's Corporate Plan 
recognises the role of the Council in advancing equity internally and in 
local communities over the next five years. The delivery of this plan 
will contribute to Wales's Well-being Goal of "A More Equal Wales" 
set in the Well-being of Future Generations Act (Wales) 2015. 

In the development of the Corporate Plan, we also aligned the 
Corporate Plan with the Equality Objectives within our Strategic 
Equality Plan. More specifically, this plain includes the following 
objectives and sub-objectives: 

• Well-being Objective 1 (Economy, Education, Skills) 
- Work towards eliminating education inequality faced by young learners 

that are from disadvantaged, Black, Asian, and Minority Ethnic 
backgrounds, low-income households, and/or have additional learning 
needs. 

• Well-being Objective 2 (Environment and Infrastructure)  
- Collaborate and support investment into a digital infrastructure which will 

provide equitable access for residents and businesses across Newport. 
• Well-being Objective 2 (Quality Social Care and Community Services) 

- Newport will be a City of Sanctuary which supports asylum seekers, 
refugees and our global community to settle and become part of our 
community. 

- Promote positive community inclusion and culture by engaging with key 
stakeholders and communities to address issues of anti-social behaviour 
and crime. 

• Well-being Objective 4 (an Inclusive, Fair and Sustainable Council)  
- Become an inclusive organisation that represents the citizens of Newport, 

providing equitable opportunity for people to succeed and places the 
citizen at the centre of decision making. 

- Provide fair access to the council’s in-person and digital services, including 
digital skills training and support. 

- Promote and improve the way in which residents and businesses can 
interact with the council’s democratic process and decision making. 

- Generate opportunities to build wealth across Newport’s communities 
through progressive procurement of goods and services and other 
initiatives such as participatory budgeting. 

 

 

Page 102

https://www.newport.gov.uk/documents/Council-and-Democracy/About-the-council/Corporate-Plan-2022-27-FINAL.pdf
https://www.newport.gov.uk/documents/Council-and-Democracy/About-the-council/Corporate-Plan-2022-27-FINAL.pdf


 

9 
 

 

Leadership 

In June 2022, the Welsh Government published the Anti-
Racist Wales Action Plan (ARWAP). This plan signalled a 
new approach in Wales to tackling race inequality and 
racism, including actions for public bodies to tackle racism 
and make meaningful and measurable changes to the lives 
of Black, Asian, and minority ethnic people. As a Council, we 
acknowledge that racism exists in our society and continue 
to take action to address the negative impacts it can have 
on ourselves, our colleagues, and the communities we 
support. In 2020, we signed up to Race Council 
Cymru's Zero Tolerance to Racism policy for Wales and as 

highlighted in previous reports have taken consistent action to promoting a zero-tolerance 
approach to racism throughout the Council and within local communities. 
 
As part of our work to support the achievement of the Welsh Government's vision of an Anti-
Racist Wales, we have worked with Elected Members, Staff at all levels across the 
organisation, the Welsh Government, Welsh Local Government Association (WLGA) and 
members of the wider community to deliver on recommendations outlined in the ARWARP. 
Two core principles identified in the ARWRAP include leading from the front in terms of anti-
racist values and behaviours and ensuring our decision-making process or senior leadership 
groups allow the lived experiences of ethnic minority people to be heard. This year to mark 
the International Day for the Elimination of Racial Discrimination (also known as UN Anti-
Racism Day), we introduced a programme of anti-racism training for Elected members and all 
staff, including the Leader, Cabinet Members, senior leaders and managers to embed anti-
racist values and promote anti-racist behaviours across the organisation starting at the 
highest level. This progress has also been mirrored in schools, where Diversity and Anti-Racist 
Professional Learning has been launched to support school governors and all staff within 
education, including senior leaders on their anti-racist journey. 
 
Listening and learning from staff and residents from Black, Asian and minority ethnic 
communities with lived experience of racism has also allowed us to review and improve our 
policies, practices, and procedures. Our Diversity staff network have worked with us to 
review key policies such as our Bullying and Harassment Policy, update our Employee Exit 
process and with ongoing work to create a more inclusive work environment for all staff.  
 
Involvement 

Over the past four years, the Council has significantly invested in Participatory Budgeting (PB) 
as a way of involving communities in improving well-being and actively participating in 
decision-making. This year’s programme was the second round of funding allocated to tackle 
the impacts of COVID-19 on local people, particularly to reduce inequalities, tackle 
disadvantage and support those from disproportionately impacted groups. 

PB funding is supporting new projects to start up and is helping to sustain some of the 
important activities and groups that emerged during the pandemic. 530 residents attended a 

Page 103

https://gov.wales/sites/default/files/publications/2022-06/anti-racist-wales-action-plan_0.pdf
https://gov.wales/sites/default/files/publications/2022-06/anti-racist-wales-action-plan_0.pdf
https://zeroracismwales.co.uk/pledge/race-council-cymru/


 

10 
 

series of voting events in Newport Centre and voted for the initiatives that were most likely 
to benefit local communities. 80 projects from across Newport applied for funding and 
presented their ideas to voters. 44 projects secured funding to the value of £300k, taking the 
total now allocated PB in Newport to over £750,000. 

The successful projects will bring wide ranging well-being opportunities, activities and 
services for our communities and were particularly strong in support for: 

• Children & Young People - Bundles Baby Clothing Bank & Birth Support, Newport Aces 
Basketball Club, St Giles Trust, Sparkle 

• Older People’s Services – Alzheimer’s Society, Forget-me-not Chorus, Creative Spaces 
for Women 

• Mental Health, Disabilities & Loneliness - Women of Newport, WALK Newport, 
Kidscape, Multisport Social Health & Wellbeing C.I.C 

• Black, Asian, and Minority Ethnic communities - Pill Millennium Centre, IQRA Youth 
Club, Operasonic Gypsy Stars Choir, Welsh Sisters Circle, Age Alive 

 

Newport City Council is proud that Newport is a diverse city where people and residents from 
all backgrounds are valued and respected. We believe it is important to celebrate diversity 
and demonstrate our commitment to equality, as this will contribute to cultural awareness, 
encourage unity, eliminate discrimination, and overcome stereotypes. To ensure its 
continued visibility to staff and communities, we have worked hard to communicate our 
plans, raise the profile of our work, and promote key dates and celebrations. These included: 

April – June 2022 
• Ramadan 
• Eid al-Fitr 
• Pride month 
• Carers Week 
• Refugee Week 
• Disability Pride Month 
 
 
 
July – September 2022 
 
• International Non-Binary People's Day 
• Pride in the Port, Newport’s first 

community pride event 
• Pride Cymru Parade 
• International Day of Sign Languages  
 

Page 104



 

11 
 

October – December 2022 
• Black History Wales/ Black History 365 
• Hate Crime Awareness Week 
• World Aids Day 
• St. Nicholas Day 

 
 
 
 

January – March 2023 
 
• Lunar New Year 
• Holocaust Memorial Day 
• LGBT+ History Month 
• International Women’s Day 
• Anti-Racism and Intercultural Week 
• UN Anti-Racism Day 
 

Focus on the future. 

Priorities for the next year include:  

• Working in partnership with Welsh Government and the WLGA to deliver on 
recommendations made in the Welsh Government’s strategic documents, such as Anti-
Racism Wales Action and LGBTQ+ Action Plan. 

• Further developing our Fairness and Equality Impact Assessment processes and deliver 
training to staff on its use.  

• Deliver bespoke equalities training to all staff across the organisation, supported in 
consultation with our Staff Networks to share the value of lived experience. 

 

 

Page 105



 

12 
 

Equality Objective 2: Customer Service and Access  

“Newport City Council’s services are accessible to everyone in Newport, 
providing services that are both inclusive and considerate of individual need” 

Customer Service and Access 
The COVID-19 pandemic required all services, particularly Customer Services, to adapt to 
protect staff and residents. Service adjustments led to increased service requests online and 
through the Contact Centre. Newport’s digital infrastructure is vital 
to enable residents, businesses and visitors being able to access 
services online. In 2022/23 the Council commenced the re-
development of the website including the review of customer 
contact and processes to ensure our website can meet user needs 
and support the wider transformation of services. To support the 
digital transformation, the Council launched its new Digital 
Strategy 2022-2027 towards the end of 2022/23. One of its themes 
‘Digital Skills and Inclusion’ focuses on providing fair access to the 
council’s in-person and digital services, including digital skills 
training and support.  

As restrictions have eased and we've adjusted to the new normal, we have worked towards 
reopening Face-to-Face facilities for high-priority services. Last year, we set up a temporary 
dedicated service and commenced work on a relocation project to permanently move 
services. This year, we relocated and reopened Face-to-Face services to the public in 
Newport Central Library Museum and Art Gallery. As part of this process, we consulted key 
stakeholders such as the Accessibility Stakeholder Group to improve accessibility for all 
residents, particularly disabled people. In addition, we reviewed existing customer data such 
as BrowseAloud and Language Line data to ensure services were equitable and culturally 
appropriate to resident’s needs. 

These activities have allowed us to understand accessibility issues better and ensure we 
deliver services in a form, language, and manner accessible to people from diverse 
backgrounds. We implemented several adjustments to improve access, including but not 
limited to prioritising accessibility in reception design, installing hearing loops at reception, 
providing accessible computer facilities and training staff on how to support the public with 
the assistive technology provided. To ensure our services meet residents' cultural and 
linguistic needs, we are committed to offering interpreting or translation services when 
required. We have also recruited staff proficient in various community languages to improve 
our ability to provide comprehensive and inclusive support to all customers. The customer 
service team now includes staff who are fluent in a range of community languages, including 
Bengali, Arabic, Urdu, Hindi, Punjabi, German, French, and Welsh. 

In this period, we've also revised and updated our Compliments, Comments and Complaints 
Policy to ensure the complaints procedure was easier understood by the public when 
accessing services. 

Page 106

https://www.newport.gov.uk/en/Council-Democracy/Digital-Strategy/Digital-Strategy.aspx#:~:text=This%20Digital%20Strategy%20sets%20out,businesses%20to%20thrive%20in%20Newport.
https://www.newport.gov.uk/en/Council-Democracy/Digital-Strategy/Digital-Strategy.aspx#:~:text=This%20Digital%20Strategy%20sets%20out,businesses%20to%20thrive%20in%20Newport.


 

13 
 

Engagement in Sports, Leisure, Art, and Culture 

Over the past year, we have worked with Newport Live to improve and further develop 
programmes that reduce barriers to accessing sport, leisure, and cultural provision within the 
city. 

We have continued to support Newport Live to work towards Newport becoming the first 
local authority in Wales to achieve the Disability Wales insport Gold award. Partnership work 
with staff in Education, including Additional Learning Needs (ALN) staff has led to increased 
confidence and support for schools with developing solutions to perceived barriers to 
participation for pupils. The aim of this work is to ensure sport and physical activity in school 
is inclusive, whether in PE, wake and shake, daily mile, school teams, or as part of the new 
health and wellbeing areas of learning and experience (AoLE), ensuring all children have 
opportunity to participate and to be active.  

The ongoing collaboration between our Parks & 
Recreation team and Newport Live to deliver the 
"Wheels for All" scheme has continued to reduce 
barriers to residents accessing public sports and leisure 
services within the city. In this period, this inclusive 
cycling programme has provided over seven hundred 
rides with tandems and wheelchair accessible bikes to 
people of all abilities and ages. 

Our partners, Newport Live have also completed a review of Arts and Cultural provision at 
the Riverfront, which highlighted some positive activity, shows, performances, and 
engagement and led to the development of an improvement plan to support the organisation 
to develop. An Equality and Diversity Mentor was appointed to work with staff at all levels on 
training identification, community engagement, workforce representation, policy 
development, and recruitment.   

Focus on the future: 

Priorities for the next year include:  

• Continued provision of an accessible and varied programme/timetable of sport and 
physical activity opportunities for children and families in partnership with Social 
Services Childrens Disability Team, and Disability Sport Wales. 

• Identify, train, and support the development of Maes Ebbw pupils to become peer 
leaders/coaches in sport and physical activity.  

• Work with ethnically diverse community groups and partners to support further 
access to sport and physical activity opportunities; ensure local people are identified, 
trained, and supported to become peer leaders/coaches. 

• Assessment for Disability Wales insport Gold kitemark accreditation 

 

 

Page 107



 

14 
 

 

Equality Objective 3: Representative Workforce 

“Newport City Council has a workforce that represents the city, and is a 
workplace with an inclusive culture, which recruits, develops, and retains staff” 

Becoming a more representative organisation is key to achieving our vision of a more equal 
Newport. Diverse lived experiences, thoughts, and skills will support us in meeting Newport's 
needs and ensuring residents have trust in us. We have continued to make progress toward 
meeting our Strategic Equality Objectives despite the unprecedented workforce disruption 
and challenges caused by the COVID-19 pandemic.  

As we've continued to adapt to the new normal, we've remained committed to delivering a 
representative workforce. We have aligned objectives in key strategic documents, such as the 
Corporate Plan and as part of developing our new People Plan. We have also taken further 
steps to improve our policies, practices, and procedures to create an inclusive culture where 
all staff are treated with dignity and respect. 

Representation and Gender Pay Gap 

Working towards a more representative workforce and advancing equality of opportunity 
internally as well as within the communities we serve remains a priority for Newport City 
Council. Women have long represented a high percentage of our workforce. However, 
changes in policies and organisational culture have allowed the Council to further gender 
equality. In this period, we closed the gender pay 
gap from 2.0% to -0.4% and increased female 
representation in upper pay quartiles. Women 
now earn £1 for every £1 that men earn when 
comparing median hourly pay and represent the 
majority share at the most senior levels. The 
table below displays the differences in the 
average pay between men and women. 

Table 1: Gender Pay Gap 

 2021/2022 2022/2023 
 Mean Hour Rate Median Hour Rate Mean Hour Rate Median Hour Rate 
Male £14.82 £13.01 £16.10 £14.15 
Female £14.91 £12.95 £15.92 £14.17 
Pay Gap 1.5% 2.0% 0.6% -0.4% 

 

While we have made positive strides, we remain committed to advancing equity for people 
from all backgrounds and working towards increasing representation of minority ethnic 
people, disabled people and people who identify as LGBTQ+ as part of our commitment to 
address under-representation across all levels of the organisation. We recently started 
featuring dedicated Equality, Diversity and Inclusion (EDI) content, including information on 
staff networks, an anti-racism statement and links to our Strategic Equality Plan as part of 

Page 108



 

15 
 

recruitment campaigns. This has received a positive response from applicants and contributed 
to an increased number of applicants from underrepresented communities. 

Staff Networks 

Newport City Council has three staff equality networks for minority ethnic, LGBTQ+ and 
disabled staff. These groups are a powerful agent for organisational change that support us to 
foster an inclusive culture and in the delivery of our equality priorities, internally and across 
our communities. The Council’s work to attract, recruit, retain and develop staff from 
underrepresented backgrounds has also been supported by staff equality networks, who have 
continued to play a pivotal role in ensuring the voices of under-represented groups were 
heard, listened to, and influenced policy and process. In this period, Networks supported the 
review and development of key strategic documents, policies, and procedures, such as the new 
Corporate Plan, People Plan, Wellness at Work Policy and Employee Exit Process, as identified 
as a key priority in last year’s report. 

Workplace Culture  

Similar to last year, we have continued to work to increase the amount of content relating to 
equality and diversity visible to staff on our internal communications platforms. This has 
included working with staff networks to mark significant dates throughout the year, topical 
updates or raising awareness on key issues, including Anti-Racism, Hate Crime, Gender 
Identity, and the Social Model of Disability. We have also offered a range of professional 
development and learning opportunities for elected members and staff at all levels, including 
Anti-Racism sessions in line with the ARWAP.  

Focus on the future 

Priorities for the next year include:  

• Review and update of Bullying and Harassment Policy 
• Improving our collection of staff data, increasing completion rates, and aligning with 

census categories to allow effective comparison.  
• Developing a range of entry routes to the organisation and promoting these to under-

represented groups   
• Embedding anti-racism principles within our workplace culture   
• Developing Gender Identity and Dignity in the Workplace Policies 
• Development of the new People Plan 2023 -2027, including work to align themes with 

Strategic Equality Objectives, particularly objective 3 (Representative Workforce) 
 

 

 

 

 

Page 109



 

16 
 

 

Equality Objective 4: Community Cohesion 

“Newport City Council promotes positive relationships between different 
communities, supporting integration and effectively identifying emerging 
community tensions” 

As a local authority, community cohesion is a central theme within our equality related work 
plans, and our priorities in this area are informed by the delivery of the Welsh Government’s 
community cohesion work plan for local authorities. The ongoing implications of Brexit, the 
wider migration crisis, and the disproportionate impact of the pandemic on minority 
communities have continued to present additional challenges to community cohesion. 

Most of our cohesion work has been reactive, supporting communities to access information 
in their main languages, developing online communications channels to share important 
updates and responding to the Ukraine Crisis. 

EU Settlement Scheme and Resettlement Schemes 

As a result of the EU referendum and Britain’s exit from the European Union, EU, EEA or 
Swiss nationals and their family members were required to apply to the EU Settlement 
Scheme (EUSS) to secure their rights to live, work and study in the UK. As of the end of the 
EUSS deadline, 10990 applications had been made to the EUSS by Newport residents. 

From July 2021, people who failed to make an in-time or late application to the EUSS no 
longer had legal status in the UK. Similar to last year, our teams have worked hard to 
promote awareness of the EUSS, including the deadline, late applications, and status 
entitlements. Our EU Citizens Forum continued to meet virtually, bringing together 
community members and third-sector services to effectively address issues affecting EU 
citizens in Newport. We continued hosting awareness events for professionals on post-Brexit 
rights and coordinating a weekly multi-agency drop-in for EU citizens to access immigration 
advice, EUSS application assistance, or other practical support. 

In response to the Ukraine Crisis, we signed up for the Ukraine Supersponser Scheme this 
year and supported displaced Ukrainian nationals and their family members to resettle in the 
Newport. We established two initial accommodation centres for new arrivals and the 
Vulnerable Person Relocation Scheme (VPRS) team supported over 200 individuals and 
families (via all schemes) displaced from Ukrainian to resettle in Newport and lead 
independent, safe, and productive lives. 

Hardship Group 

The impact of the end of free movement from the EU and the Nationality and Borders Act 
2022, combined with the effects of the ongoing economic downturn, has resulted in the 
continued increased demand for hardship support within Newport, particularly for migrants 
with an Insecure immigration status. Insecure immigration status can result in significant 

Page 110



 

17 
 

consequences and hardship for migrants. For example, people may have limited or no access 
to welfare benefits, housing, employment, education, and health services.  

Last year, we established a Hardship Group and a referral pathway to manage complex 
hardship cases arising from insecure migration status. Representation includes Social 
Services, Housing, Connected Communities, and external partners such as Health Services 
and third-sector organisations. During this period, this group coordinated support and 
explored sustainable solutions for 32 individuals and families experiencing hardship. 

Focus on the future 

Priorities for the next year include:  

• Developing a council Hate Crime Policy  
• Working with partners on an inclusive ‘safe house’ network with venues in Newport for 

LGBTQ+ People to feel safe in the city 
• Developing a ‘Welcome to Newport’ app for newcomers to the city  

 

 

 

 

  

Page 111



 

18 
 

Equality Objective 5: Learn Well 
“Newport City Council supports the wellbeing and attainment of the city’s pupils 
and actively looks to address any disparity in achievement, of vulnerable 
learners” 

Following the COVID-19 pandemic, schools and education settings have remained committed 
to working proactively to support the changing needs of their learners and addressing the 
negative impact caused by disruptions to education. Schools have continued to deliver their 
Curriculum for Wales, including the new Relationship and Sexuality Education (RSE) 
requirements, the new Additional Learning Needs Act and the Whole School Approach to 
Emotional and Mental Health Statutory document. However, some learners have been 
reluctant or unable to return to school and settings. As a result, this has put huge demands 
upon both the Educational Welfare and Inclusion Service. Various programmes have been 
tailored to meet the emotional needs of learners presenting as Emotional Based School 
Avoidance (EBSA) Students. 

Attendance 

As a result of schools closing in March 2020 due to COVID-19, Welsh Government made the 
decision not to collect attendance data for all academic years between 2019 and 2023. After 
improving rates of pre-Covid attendance in both primary and secondary sectors to a position 
above the Welsh average, our attendance data now highlights the negative impact of the 
pandemic on rates of school attendance. 

Even though schools returned to their pre-Covid-19 practices, rates of attendance remained 
affected by several factors attributed to the pandemic. These included: 

• Ongoing positive cases of Covid-19 affecting both staff and pupils. 
• Asymptomatic pupils being kept at home when parents, siblings or anther close contact 

has a confirmed case of Covid-19 
• Parents not wanting to send their children to school because of concerns about Covid-19  
• Higher levels of other illnesses 
• Changes around the habit of attending school. 
• Increased rate of absence from school because of mental health and wellbeing issues. 
• The current cost of living crisis is placing pressure on many families not only those who 

have previously been considered as facing disadvantage.  These families may find that 
holidays are only affordable when they are booked during term time.   

• Increase in persistent absenteeism.  Persistent absentees are pupils who are absent for at 
least 20% of the number of half-day sessions that schools are open to pupils. 

• Students who are presenting as EBSA.  

In recognition of the need to support schools to improve rates of learner attendance we 
introduced a broad range of activities, intervention and support which were utilised.  These 
included: 

• Ongoing monitoring and sharing of school attendance data amongst schools, 
• Annual internal attendance targets (all schools set these), 
• Increased support from the Education Welfare Service, 

Page 112



 

19 
 

• All schools had a designated Education Welfare Officer (EWO), 
• Reintroduction of Fixed Penalty Notices for persistent absenteeism and holidays during 

term time, 
• Cluster attendance policies, 
• Attendance clinics, 
• Attendance at several partnership panels; Managed Move panel, SPACE panel, EBSA clinic 

and relevant Social Services meetings, 
• Reintroduction of Attendance and Exclusions meetings with Headteacher and Chair of 

Governor’s,  
• Additional funding for school specific activities. 
 
Exclusions 

Recent exclusion data for Newport continues to highlight the increased challenges caused by 
the impact of the pandemic on rates of exclusion within schools. We responded to the rise in 
the number of incidents and days lost to exclusion with several newly developed approaches 
that aim to provide additional support to schools in relation to ongoing and increased 
complexities relating to pupil behaviour. Some of these initiatives include: 

• Updating of NCC’s ‘Violence Reduction Protocol’ (first introduced in September 2021). 
This protocol will be renamed and relaunched as the ‘Reduction of Harmful Behaviours 
Protocol’ by end of spring term 2023.  

• Expansion of the weekly ‘virtual inclusion helpline’ for all school-based staff. 
• The Inclusion Advisory Service collaboratively working with all schools across Newport 

with the aim of effectively supporting schools to reduce the number of incidents and 
days lost each academic year to exclusion.  

• Training and CPD opportunities coordinated and delivered by the Inclusion Advisory 
Service.  

• Support from the LA has moved from specific behaviour management policies to 
ensuring school policies focus more on building and sustaining effective relationships 
within schools (particularly between staff / pupils) and have a strong emphasis on de-
escalation strategies as well as a clear graduated response in terms of escalating 
behaviour concerns.  

• Weekly and monthly school exclusion data continues to be provided and analysed by 
the LA for exclusions to be tracked and monitored in a timely manner.  

• All secondary schools have been re-issued with new targets for the academic year 
2022-23 and progress against these are tracked and monitored by the Inclusion Adviser 
monthly. 

• Attendance and Exclusions meetings with all Secondary Head teacher’s and their 
Chair of Governor’s have been reintroduced. Qualitative feedback has been gained 
after each meeting and this has been largely positive.  

 

 
 
 

Page 113



 

20 
 

Not in Education, Employment or Training (NEET) 

The Youth Engagement and Progression Framework (YEPF) has continued to be supported by 
all key partners.  The Framework is strongly held to account by the strategic Youth Support 
Services Board (YSSB).  The Pre 16 NEET group, the 16-18 practitioner group and the Learning 
Provider Network are the working groups that support the YSSB operationally and have 
reduced the numbers of young people not in education, employment, or training (NEET). 
 
Newport has a robust process for managing the early identification of young people needing 
support in all secondary schools and the Bridge Achievement Centre (BAC). The Youth 
Engagement and Progression Coordinator, based in Education Services, oversees this activity. 
Newport secondary schools assisted in the development of the Early Identification Toolkit (EIT), 
and this profile draws information from SIMS and supports the identification of pupils who are 
vulnerable and, long term, at risk of becoming NEET. The data set contained in the Early 
Identification Toolkit supports schools by acting as a Risk Assessment Profile to be used from 
Key Stage 2 upwards. The Early Identification Toolkit has fostered significantly better working 
relationships between schools and the local authority, ensuring robust plans are implemented 
for these young people.   
 
The focus of the Youth Engagement and Progression Framework Coordinator is as follows: 
 

• Coordinating and reporting to the Pre 16 NEET subgroup 
• Key Stage 4 early identification meetings with all secondary schools and the Bridge 

Achievement Centre 
• Key Stage 5 early identification meetings with all secondary schools and the Bridge 

Achievement Centre 
• Early identification meetings with the Youth Justice Service 
• Early Identification meetings with the Looked After Children Education (LACE) 

coordinators.  
• Quality Assurance responsibility for alternative education provision 
• Engagement with young people attending the alternative quality provision to obtain 

their views. 
• Chairing of the Learning Coach forum 
• Liaising with Careers Wales 
• Help individuals identify and explore career options, make informed decisions about 

their future, and develop strategies to achieve their goals. 
• Transition meetings held with all secondary schools, Coleg Gwent and Careers Wales 
• Working with all Post 16 providers to ensure successful transition. 
• Coordinating and reporting to the strategic Youth Support Services Board 

 

Partnership work has significantly reduced Newport's NEET figures and ensured young people 
make successful, meaningful transitions. The relationship between secondary schools and the 

Page 114



 

21 
 

BAC has proved crucial to securing positive outcomes for young people. It has enabled more 
collaboration when offering advice or practical solutions and ensured shared accountability 
regarding the number of young people who are NEET.   
 

Our collaborative and cross-service approach has proved effective with the NEET figures 
reducing year on year with Newport performing joint 2nd position in Wales in 2022 for Year 11 
leavers. 

Emotionally Based School Avoidance 

In response to schools reporting a significant issue in the number of learners identified at risk 
of or currently not attending school due to emotional needs (EBSA), Newport Education 
developed a partnership with Newport Mind with an aim of providing the following support 
package: 
 
➢ To provide 1:1 support for young people 

➢ To educate and support parents and caregivers. 

➢ To deliver training to schools and provide access to a consultation service. 

➢ To raise the profile of the issue within the Local Authority, in schools and within families.  

While some progress has been made and engagement rates amongst pupils, parents and 
caregivers were good, impact is still being determined. We hope to include detail in future 
reports. 

Whole School Approach to Emotional and Mental Wellbeing and Recording and Reporting 
Incidents against Protected Characteristics. 

The Welsh Government introduced new Anti-Bullying statutory guidance, Rights Respect 
Equality (RRE) in November 2019. This sets out a series of requirements that local authorities 
must regard when exercising their educational functions. The guidance includes prescriptive 
actions that local authorities need to adhere to.  The local authority has required schools to 
record and report all incidents of bullying related to a protected characteristic for several years. 
In addition to recording incidents related to protected characteristics, Newport requires 
schools to record against other bullying related incidents that have a high prevalence for young 
people. The analysis of this data enables the local authority to understand the prevalence of 
bullying in schools and provide support for individual schools through training and 
interventions. The data on incidents of bullying related to a protected characteristic is shared 
with Headteachers and Wellbeing Leads. This element of existing practice is now a statutory 
requirement for all schools in Wales. We support schools to respond to RRE in several different 
ways, including supporting the links between this statutory guidance and other relevant 
statutory guidance, in particular the Relationships and Sexuality Statutory Guidance and Code. 
 
Responding to the data, the following actions were put in place: 

 

Page 115



 

22 
 

• Guidance, training and a model policy for Rights, Respect, Equality bullying 
prevention and Relationships and Sexuality Education provided to nearly all schools.  

• Headteachers supported in different ways such as LA developed parental leaflets, 
discussions with individual parents where resources and activities had been shared, 
a parental presentation delivered by Teacher Advisors on both anti-bullying and 
Relationships and sexuality education. 

• Relationships and Sexuality curriculum training delivered to primary and secondary 
phases. 

• LGBTQ+ training developed and delivered widely across schools within the 
authority. 

• Training around peer-on-peer Harmful Sexual Behaviour developed and delivered 
widely within the authority.  

• Curriculum guidance and resources shared with all primary schools. 
 

  

Page 116



 

23 
 

Equality Objective 6: Independent Living 

“Newport City Council contributes to the city being a great place to live, to grow 
older and live independently, and has in place a range of housing related 
services, which accommodates people in different situations” 

Our housing services have continued to experience an unprecedented increase in demand 
during this period with the supply of new properties in all sectors not able to meet this demand. 
At the beginning of the pandemic, the UK and Welsh governments expanded the definition of 
vulnerability and the statutory housing duties of local authorities in recognition of the potential 
impact that Covid-19 could have on people who were homeless. This has seen a large rise in 
the number of people sleeping rough who have been assisted by the Council. 

Housing Support Grant and Homelessness Prevention Grant projects, including floating 
support, mediation, and housing options staff, continue to support people to maintain their 
accommodation and prevent homelessness. In addition to over 80 units of supported 
accommodation, Housing Support Grant also funds 20 units in four refuges, including one 
specifically for Black, Asian, and Minority Ethnic women and two as part of a regional scheme 
for women with more complex needs.  

Also, our Domestic Abuse Floating Support, crisis and advice scheme supports a minimum of 
380 women in their current temporary or permanent accommodation. It includes a dedicated 
post working with minority ethnic women. Responsive to changing local needs, an existing 
refuge has been re-configured into a ‘safe house’ for financially and sexually exploited women 
in the City. 

We have continued to consolidate and remodel our support services to ensure they meet the 
needs of marginalised groups. Our work with the Gwent Gypsy and Traveller Support Service, 
Light House Project Refugee Service, and European Economic Area (EEA) Housing Service 
continues, with dedicated support workers providing support and advice to proactively address 
the disadvantages and inequalities that result in barriers to accessing housing. A Hoarding 
Project has been developed as a pilot and quickly went to full capacity. 

The Housing Support Team has started a three-year programme of re-tendering most of its 
floating support services. This will focus services more on homeless prevention and tenancy 
sustainment to align with the Housing Support Programme Strategy priorities and Rapid 
Rehousing Transition Plan’ Action Plan. 

Partnership working is essential in addressing the issues in housing, homelessness and housing 
support services in the City and regular meetings are held with key partners. Multi-agency 
groups have also been established to address the long-term and complex needs of some of our 
most vulnerable citizens, with health services providing a crucial role.   

Our Community Connectors for minority ethnic communities offers support to people who 
may be socially isolated to improve their well-being based on what matters to them. During 
2022/23, they supported 222 people with information, advice and assistance and signposting 
to local services. Connectors continue to map community activity provision, work with groups 

Page 117



 

24 
 

at a grassroots level to re-build their capacity and signpost to funding sources to ensure 
sustainability. 

Focus on the future 

Priorities for the next year include:  

• Development of two supported housing schemes for 18+ care leavers. 
• Focus services more on the prevention of homelessness and tenancy sustainment.  
• Year 2 of a three-year programme of re-tendering floating support services in the city 

including schemes for people sleeping rough, refugees & migrants and a generic scheme 
to include a hospital support worker and two homelessness team support workers. 

• Mid-term review of the Housing Support Programme Strategy’s (2022-2026) nine 
strategic priorities. 

• Re-configuring floating support for the dispersed supported housing scheme. 
• On-going review of the Rapid Re-housing Transition Plan (2022-2027). 
• Continue the financial and digital inclusion offer for support workers via up-skilling 

support staff and increased training opportunities e.g. The Department of Work and 
Pension’s Money Guiders Programme. 

• Provide additional units of a range of social housing to address the high demand by 
maximising capital funding opportunities e.g. Welsh Government’s Social Housing Grant, 
Housing with Care Fund and Transitional Accommodation Capital Fund. 

• Work with landlords in the Private Rented Sector to keep existing provision and acquire 
more properties to assist with the local housing demand.  

• Be responsive to changing demand, legislation and circumstances. 

 

  

Page 118



 

25 
 

Equality Monitoring and Capturing Data 
Equality data is used by the council to inform our decision-making, help us understand where 
we have gaps, and support effective impact assessments.  

This section of the report will consider:   

• Collecting data; how we collate information related to protected characteristics.    
• Evaluating data; how we use this data to inform our practice.  

 
1. Collecting Data 

Collecting accurate information about our employees and the public is key to delivering 
services which are inclusive, and responsive to individual need. We collect and monitor 
equality data in a number of ways.  

A. Systems 
The council has a range of systems which collect data, for example, through our Customer 
Relationship Management (CRM) system, other databases linked to individual services, and 
through our internal HR system. These allow service areas to build a picture and profile of 
their customers or staff. Customer data is utilised in developing service area plans and work 
programmes and allows service areas to amend existing services and delivery where needed. 
We use our internal data to assist with workforce planning and inform our representative 
workforce work.  

B. Consultations 
The council regularly consults and engages with a variety of community groups, citizen panels 
and the public in general. We develop surveys and consultations based on needs for service 
changes, improvements or strategies that will affect the community. This year we have 
consulted on topics such as the setting of our budget, the new Leisure Centre provision and 
facilities and residents parking. Consultation methods have included online surveys, sharing 
of consultation opportunities on our website and social media platforms and Bus Wi-Fi 
surveys. Using demographic monitoring for all surveys and consultation exercises means we 
can now better understand the needs of people in Newport that share protected 
characteristics, and the differential impact of our proposals.  

C. Community Well-being profiles 
In line with the Well-being of Future Generations Wales Act (2015), the council published our 
Community Well-being Profiles in 2022. The profiles are available on our website for the 
public, as well as internally on our intranet system for staff. These profiles provide a source of 
data across different areas, including data on ethnicity and are often used by the council to 
inform equality impact assessments.   
 
D. National Census 

 
We continually review and update our standard equalities monitoring forms and are working 
to ensure that the data we capture aligns with the categories within the recent Census. This 
will allow us to better understand our resident population, any under or over-representation 

Page 119

https://www.futuregenerations.wales/about-us/future-generations-act/
https://www.newport.gov.uk/atlas/en/Profiles/Newport-community-wellbeing-profiles.aspx


 

26 
 

of communities accessing our services, and inform our workforce representation strategies 
and planning.  
 

2. Evaluating data 
The council uses a range of processes which ensure that we use the data that we collect in a 
way that informs our planning, decision and policy making.  

A. Fairness and Equality Impact Assessments 
The completion of Fairness and Equality Impact Assessments at the outset of decision or 
policy making process, assists the council in evidencing that we are meeting our Equality 
duties, and, more importantly, using relevant equality data to ensure that any 
disproportionate impact is mitigated at an early stage, and the best decisions for the public 
are made. The council has an integrated model of equality impact assessment, combining 
considerations around Equalities, including the Socio-economic Duty, Welsh Language, Well-
being of Future Generations, and the parameters of fairness set out by our Fairness 
Commission within a single process.. FEIAs should be evidence based, drawing on internal 
and external data to support any findings.  

B. Service Area Plans 
Annual plans are produced by each of the council’s service areas, and act as a key reporting 
mechanism for the delivery of our Corporate Plan, as well as our Wellbeing Objectives. Each 
Service area has performance indicators relating to priority actions, as well as areas of risk 
which are updated on a quarterly basis. Risks are currently identified in relation to non-
compliance with the Equality Act 2010.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 120



 

27 
 

Workforce Data  
The following workforce data shows information about the protected characteristics of our 
employees between April 2022 and March 2023. The data shows that at the time of reporting 
there were 5941 staff employed by Newport City Council which is a decrease from 5982 in 
the last reporting period.  

Comparing workforce data against national statistics remains challenging due to differences 
in how employee systems collect data compared to the Census of England and Wales. Work 
continues to align our systems to ensure comparative data can be analysed effectively, 
information is managed securely, and we instil confidence that our monitoring is inclusive. 

During this reporting period, we continued to make changes to the recording options that we 
offer potential and existing staff to better align with the 2021 Census and as part of our 
ongoing commitment to continuously improve how we capture data. While the latest UK 
censuses were conducted in 2021, some topic summaries, area profiles and intersectional 
data are currently unavailable. We hope to include this data and further analysis in future 
Annual Reports. 

In recent years, we have seen an increase in people providing their personal information 
across several categories, with fewer people opting not to provide information or leaving 
categories blank. Several factors have influenced this change, including an increased 
awareness of the importance of monitoring data due to the national census campaign and 
our efforts to move towards a culture that normalises the capture of demographic 
information and is clear about its role and purpose. This year, we have continued to reinforce 
the importance of updating personal information, update staff on new recording categories 
available and prompted colleagues to update their information when they log on to our 
employee self-service system. 

In our first report period (2020-21), we started to capture data relating to Armed Forces 
connections, Care Leavers, gender identity, and gender reassignment for applicants and 
existing staff. This data can currently only be reported on in low numbers. However, we hope 
to include further detail in future reports. 

As an indication of applicant data, we can report that out of 5459 applicants: 

• 70 disabled applicants were eligible for a guaranteed interview under our ‘Disability 
Confident Scheme’. 

• 44 applicants from the Armed Forces Community were eligible for a guaranteed 
interview under our ‘Defence Employer Recognition Scheme’. 

• 30 Care Leavers were eligible for a guaranteed interview under our ‘Care Leavers’ 
agreement. 

• From the ‘Gender Identity’ question, 40.37% identified as female, 14.03% as male, 
0.15% selected ‘other’ and 42.02% of respondents left the question blank. 

• 23 applicants disclosed that they have had gender reassignment.   

  

Page 121

https://www.newport.gov.uk/en/About-Newport/Armed-forces/Armed-forces.aspx


 

28 
 

Data Analysis 

At the time of data capture, we had 5941 staff employed, 933 leavers and 5459 applicants. 
Anomalies in data (numerical statistics in ‘pay band by sex’, ‘contract type by sex’, ‘working 
pattern by sex’) are due to the time that reports were run/requested but were analysed from 
a date correct at 31/03/2023 and the percentages displayed are reflective of the correct 
data. Intersectional data was analysed from a master spreadsheet that allowed all categories 
to be filtered and defined simultaneously.  

Ethnicity 

Table 2: Employees, Leavers, and Job Applicants by Ethnicity 

Ethnic Origin Employees              
(as of 31st 

March) 

% Leavers % Job 
Applicants 

% 

Arab 2 0 1 0.1 8 0.15 
Asian or Asian British - Bangladeshi 37 0.6 5 0.5 119 2.18 
Asian or Asian British - Indian 20 0.3 6 0.6 75 1.37 
Asian or Asian British - Other 28 0.5 5 0.5 98 1.80 
Asian or Asian British - Pakistani 42 0.7 7 0.8 131 2.40 
Black or Black British - African 30 0.5 10 1.1 133 2.44 
Black or Black British - Caribbean 17 0.3 2 0.2 11 0.20 
Black or Black British - Other 8 0.1 1 0.1 8 0.15 
Chinese  11 0.2 2 0.2 50 0.92 
Other Ethnic Group 11 0.2 1 0.1 43 0.79 
Gypsy/Traveller 0 0 0 0  0 0.00 
Mixed - Black African 2 0 1 0.1 22 0.40 
Mixed - Other 28 0.5 8 0.9 40 0.73 
Mixed - White & Asian 21 0.4 3 0.3 17 0.31 
Mixed - White & Black African 9 0.2 4 0.4 12 0.22 
Mixed - White & Black Caribbean 29 0.5 5 0.5 35 0.64 
Roma 1 0 0 0 1 0.02 
White - British 3727 62.7 522 55.9 2648 48.51 
White - English 114 1.9 22 24 119 2.18 
White - Irish 33 0.6 5 0.5 17 0.31 
White - Other 93 1.6 19 2 129 2.36 
White - Other European 55 0.9 11 1.2 106 1.94 
White - Scottish 10 0.2 3 0.3 7 0.13 
White - Welsh 1413 23.8 253 27.1 1314 24.07 
Not Stated 14 0.2 2 0.2 12 0.22 
Prefer not to say 20 0.3 2 0.2 28 0.51 
(blank) 166 2.8 33 3.5 83 1.52 
Redacted (GDPR) 0 0 0 0 187 3.43 
Total 5941 100 933 100 5459 100.00 

Page 122



 

29 
 

Key findings: 

• 92% of staff identify their ethnicity as white; this includes White – British, Welsh, 
English Scottish, Irish, European, Other White.  

• 2.14% of staff identify their ethnicity as Asian British or Asian Welsh - Other, Pakistani, 
Bangladeshi, Indian. 

• 0.37% of staff identify their ethnicity as Chinese or Other – Chinese, Chinese or Other 
Ethnic Group  

• 0.96% of staff identify their ethnicity as Black British or Welsh, African, Other, 
Caribbean, or Mixed Black African. 

• 1.46% of staff identify their ethnicity as Mixed – Other, Mixed White & Black African, 
Mixed White & Black Caribbean, Mixed White & Asian  

• The UK Census sub-category ‘White – Roma’ was adopted in 2021. In this reporting 
period, 1 member of staff came from a Roma background. 

• 0.5% of staff were ‘not stated’, ‘unknown’, or ‘Prefer Not To Say (PNTS)’  
• 2.8% of staff left their ethnicity blank compared to the previous reporting period of 

2.71% 
• 19% of applications were from Black, Asian and minority ethnic backgrounds. 
• Black (all categories), Asian (all categories), Chinese (all categories) and Mixed 

ethnicity (all categories) staff made up 6.13% of leavers, an increase from 4.15% in 
the previous period. 

Age  

Table 3: Employees, Leavers, and Job Applicants by Age 

Age Group Employees                      
(as of 31st 

March) 

% Leavers % Job 
Applicants 

% 

16-24 308 5.2 102 10.9 1032 18.9 
25-34 1210 20.4 252 27.0 1601 29.3 
35-44 1579 26.6 233 25.0 1452 26.6 
45-49 758 12.8 83 8.9 470 8.6 
50-54 751 12.6 81 8.7 325 6.0 
55-59 687 11.6 87 9.3 227 4.2 
60-64 424 7.1 55 5.9 85 1.6 
65-69 160 2.7 30 3.2 14 0.3 
70-74 39 0.7 9 1.0 1 0 
75+ 25 0.4 1 0.1 0 0 
Prefer not to say 0 0 0 0 65 1.2 
Redacted (GDPR) 0 0 0 0 187 3.4 
Total 5941 100 933 100 5459 100 

 

Key findings: 

• 64.9% of the workforce is aged 16-49 and over 50s make up 35.1% - similar figures as 
the previous year. 

• We have an increase in our 16-24 age category of current staff from last year. Now 
5.2 of our staff are aged between 16-24. 

Page 123



 

30 
 

• 25–34-year-olds made up 27% of leavers, which was the highest percentage - same 
category as last year 

• 71.8% of job applicants were under 45 years old, the majority (29.3%) were aged 25 – 
34 years. 

• In our last annual report 17.54% of applicants were aged 16-24; this report shows 
that 18.90% in this age bracket applied for jobs with us, an increase in younger 
applicants of 1.36% 

• 1.2% of applicants preferred not to disclose their age. 
 

Sex profile (biological sex assigned at birth, not gender identity) 

Table 4: Employees, Leavers, and Job Applicants by Sex 

Sex Employees             
(as of 31st 

March) 

% Leavers % Job 
Applicants 

% 

Female 4570 76.9 720 77.2 4218 77.3 
Male 1371 23.1 213 22.8 1195 21.9 
Unknown 0 0 0 0 46 0.8 
Total 5941 100 933 100 5459 100 

 

Table 5: Pay band by sex 

 2021/222 2022/23 
Pay Band (£) Female 

% 
Male 

% 
Female 

% 
Male 

% 
10,000-14,999 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 
15,000-19,999 22.4 18.6 0.1 0.2 
20,000-24,999 31.5 29.2 46.3 44.9 
25,000-29,999 11.5 12.9 14.5 11.3 
30,000-34,999 4.5 6.0 8.7 11.1 
35,000-39,999 8.0 9.3 3.3 5.1 
40,000-44,999 15.2 12.8 8.2 9.2 
45,000-49,999 1.5 2.1 13.9 11.5 
50,000-54,999 0.5 0.5 0.9 1.6 
55,000-59,999 1.0 1.3 0.9 0.8 
60,000-64,999 0.3 0.6 0.6 0.8 
65,000-69,999 0.2 0.7 0.2 0.5 
70,000+ 1.0 1.1 1.2 1.8 
Not known 2.1 4.6 1.0 0.7 
Total 100 100 100 100 

 

Table 6: Contract type by sex 

 2021/22 2022/23 
Contract Type Female 

% 
Male 
% 

Female 
% 

Male 
% 

Page 124



 

31 
 

Permanent 68.0 68.2 68.2 73.7 
Acting Up 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 
Casual 7.8 9.7 8.0 10 
Fixed Term 20.4 16.2 20.7 14.2 
Long Term Sickness cover 0.1 0.3 0.1 0.1 
Mat Cover 1.0 0.9 0.8 0.6 
Seasonal 0.5 0.1 0.7 0.5 
Secondment 0.2 0.4 0.1 0.1 
Sessional 1.6 3.8 0.8 0.5 
Supply 0.0 0.0 0 0 
Temporary 0.2 0.1 0.4 0 
Total 100 100 100 100 

 

Table 7: Working pattern by sex 

  2021/2022 2022/2023 
Working Pattern Female 

% 
Male 
 % 

Female 
% 

Male 
% 

Full time 33.7 64.7 33.2 64.7 
Job share 1.2 0.3 1.2 0.3 
Part time 65.1 35.0 65.6 34.8 
Grand Total 100 100 100 100 

 

Key findings: 

• 76.9% of the workforce are female and 23.1% are male. 
• In this period, Newport City Council closed the gender pay gap from 2.0% to -0.4%. 

Women earn £1 for every £1 that men earn when comparing median hourly pay. 
Their median hourly pay is 0.4% higher than men’s. 

• In this period, Newport City Council’s gender pay gap was 0.6% (mean) and -0.4% 
median. 

• In this period, the percentage of women in upper pay quartiles increased. Women 
occupy 69% of the upper quartile/highest paid jobs and 71% of the upper middle 
quartile. 

Marital status 

Table 8: Employees, Leavers, and Job Applicants by Marital Status 

Marital Status Employees                 
(as of 31st 

March) 

% Leavers % Job 
Applicants 

% 

Civil Partnership 26 0.4 3 0.3 55 1 
Divorced 277 4.7 39 4.2 176 3.2 
Living with Partner 622 10.5 129 13.8 722 13.2 
Married 2727 45.9 354 37.9 2037 37.3 
Separated 106 1.8 22 2.4 75 1.4 
Single 1784 30 316 33.9 1966 36 
Widowed 50 0.8 3 0.3 16 0.3 
Would prefer not to specify 66 1.1 15 1.6 93 1.7 

Page 125



 

32 
 

(blank) 283 4.8 52 5.6 82 1.5 
Redacted (GDPR) 0 0 0 0 187 3.4 
Total 5941 100 933 100 5459 100 

 

Key findings: 

• Married people (45.9%) and single people (30%) make up most of the workforce. The 
number of married staff has slightly increased since last year. 

• 0.4% of the current workforce are in a civil partnership, 4.7% are divorced and 10.5% 
are living with a partner. 

• The highest proportion of leavers are married people at 37.9% 
• The lowest proportion of leavers are those in civil partnerships, or who are widowed. 
• The largest percentage of applicants are married people at 37.3% followed by single 

people at 36%. 

Disability  

Table 9: Employees, Leavers, and Job Applicants by Disability 

Disability Employees                 
(as of 31st 

March) 

% Leavers % Job 
Applicants 

% 

Disabled 149 2.51 34 3.6 246 4.5 
Not disabled 5504 92.6 837 89.7 4749 87 
Not known 288 4.8 62 6.6 92 1.7 
(blank) 0 0 0 0 185 3.4 
Redacted (GDPR) 0 0 0 0 187 3.4 
Total 5941 100 933 100 5459 100 

  

Key findings: 

• 2.51% of the workforce are disabled, a slight decrease from 2.52% last year. 
• The approximate global (and local) percentage of disabled people is 15%. 
• 3.6% of the leavers were disabled, a decrease of 0.8% from 4.4% last year. 
• ‘Not known’ or left ‘blank’ accounts for 4.8% of staff, 6.6% of leavers, and 1.7% of 

applicants. 
• The number of disabled applicants has increased from 4.48% to 4.51% 
• Applicants selecting ‘not disabled’ has increased from 75.52% last year to 86.99% 

Sexual Orientation 

Table 10: Employees, Leavers, and Job Applicants by Sexual Orientation 

Sexual Orientation Employees                   
(as of 31st 

March) 

% Leavers % Job 
Applicants  

% 

Heterosexual 3281 55.2 596 63.9 4521 82.8 
Homosexual/Gay Man 41 0.7 13 1.4 68 1.2 
Bisexual 34 0.6 13 1.4 134 2.5 
Lesbian/Gay Woman 33 0.6 10 1.1 66 1.2 
Other 8 0.1 1 0.1 39 0.7 

Page 126



 

33 
 

Declined to specify 267 4.5 40 4.3 241 4.4 
(blank) 2277 38.3 260 27.9 203 3.7 
Redacted (GDPR) 0 0 0 0 187 3.4 
Total 5941 100 933 100 5459 100 

 

Key findings: 

• 1.95% of the workforce identified as gay, lesbian, bisexual or another minority sexual 
orientation, an increase from last year of 0.13%. 

• Of those who identified with an LGB+ orientation, 0.7% described themselves as 
homosexual (or gay man), 0.6% as lesbian (or gay woman), 0.6% as bisexual and 0.1% 
selected “Other sexual orientation”. 

• 4.49% of employees and 4. of applicants declined to specify their current sexual 
orientation. 

• The number of people choosing to leave this question blank has decreased from 
42.08% last year to 38.3%  

• We have had an increase in applicants who identify as gay, lesbian, bisexual or 
another minority sexual orientation rising from 4.41% to 5.62% 

• Just over one third of leavers left this question blank, compared to just under half of 
all staff and only 3.7% of applicants. 

Religion or belief 

Table 11: Employees, Leavers, and Job Applicants by Religion 

Religion Employees              
(as of 31st 

March) 

% Leavers % Job 
Applicants 

% 

Agnostic 334 5.6 78 8.4 453 8.3 
Atheist 583 9.8 139 14.9 1017 18.6 
Buddhist - Hinayana 0 0 0 0 0 0 
Buddhist - Mahayana 7 0.1 0 0 4 0.1 

 

Key findings: 

• Just under half of our staff chose to leave this blank. 
• Christian (all categories) and ‘Not Specified’ were the largest groups, with 24.98% and 

12.40% respectively, following blank. 
• The majority (24.98%) of staff identified as Christian (all categories), with 12.4% 

identifying as Protestant, 7.4% as Roman Catholic and 5.2% as Orthodox. 
• 1.46% of staff identified as Muslim (Sunni and Shiite), an increase from 1.25% in the 

previous reporting period. 
• Those identifying as Buddhist, Jewish or Taoist has increased from 0.12%, to 0.22% 
• 1.70% of leavers were Muslim, an increase from 1.41% in the previous reporting 

period. 
• The largest group identity specified for applicants was Atheist with 18.63%. 
• 7.84% applicants stated their religion or belief as ‘other’. 

 

Page 127



 

34 
 

Actions to address under-representation. 

We are committed to advancing equity for people from all backgrounds and working towards 
increasing the representation of minority ethnic people, disabled people and people who 
identify as LGBTQ+ as part of our commitment to address under-representation across all 
levels of the organisation. We've continued to take steps to address under-representation 
within our workforce, including working to identify and remove any barriers to recruitment 
and retention. Key activity in this period has included: 

• Undertaking a comprehensive review of the inclusivity of our recruitment practices 
and workplace policies to ensure equality of opportunity irrespective of protected 
characteristics, caring responsibilities, social or educational background, language 
preference or any other factor. 

• The continued delivery of unconscious bias training, including bespoke training on 
recruitment and selection for recruitment panels. 

• Undertaking outreach activities within underrepresented communities and 
encouraging applications from diverse talent pools. 

• Reviewing our advertising approach to promote Newport Council as an inclusive 
employer, including adding more Equality, Diversity and Inclusion (EDI) content, which 
has received a positive response from applicants and contributed to an increase in 
applications from underrepresented groups. 

• Working with our Staff Equality Networks to develop internal policies, such as the 
Wellness at Work Policy, which a range of staff, particularly disabled staff, have 
reported was a positive change and beneficial. 

• Working with our Staff Equality Networks to undertake a comprehensive review of 
our Employee Exit Process, which has led to the development of a new Leavers 
Questionnaire, including more questions related to inclusion as well as other changes. 
 

In this period, we also began the development of our new People Plan 2023-27. To ensure 
increasing the representation of under-represented groups remains a priority for Newport 
City Council for the immediate future and the next few years, in developing this plan, we 
have aligned themes with our Equality Objectives, particularly Equality Objective 3 to ensure 
“Newport City Council has a workforce that represents the city, and is a workplace with an 
inclusive culture, which recruits, develops, and retains staff”. 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 128



 

35 
 

Supporting Documents 
Newport City Council: Strategic Equality Plan and Equality Objectives 2020-2024 (2020). Available at: 
https://www.newport.gov.uk/documents/Council-and-Democracy/Equalities-and-Welsh-language-
/Strategic-Equality-Plan-2020-2024.pdf  

Newport City Council Strategic Equality Plan: Annual Report 2021-2022 (2022). Available at: 
https://www.newport.gov.uk/documents/Council-and-Democracy/Equalities-and-Welsh-language-
/Strategic-Equality-Plan-2019-20.pdf  

Newport City Corporate Plan 2022-2027 (2022). Available at: Corporate Plan 2022-27 FINAL 
(newport.gov.uk) 

Newport’s Well-being Plan 2018-2023 Local Well-being Plan 2018-23 (English Final) (newport.gov.uk) 

Fairness Commission http://www.newport.gov.uk/fairnessCommission/en/Full-Report/Full-
Report.aspx  

Stats Wales https://statswales.gov.wales/Catalogue/Business-Economy-and-Labour-Market/People-
and-Work/Earnings/genderpaydifferenceinwales-by-year  

Newport’s Well-being Plan 2018-2023 Local Well-being Plan 2018-23 (English Final) (newport.gov.uk) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 129

https://www.newport.gov.uk/documents/Council-and-Democracy/Equalities-and-Welsh-language-/Strategic-Equality-Plan-2020-2024.pdf
https://www.newport.gov.uk/documents/Council-and-Democracy/Equalities-and-Welsh-language-/Strategic-Equality-Plan-2020-2024.pdf
https://www.newport.gov.uk/documents/Council-and-Democracy/Equalities-and-Welsh-language-/Strategic-Equality-Plan-2019-20.pdf
https://www.newport.gov.uk/documents/Council-and-Democracy/Equalities-and-Welsh-language-/Strategic-Equality-Plan-2019-20.pdf
https://www.newport.gov.uk/documents/Council-and-Democracy/About-the-council/Corporate-Plan-2022-27-FINAL.pdf
https://www.newport.gov.uk/documents/Council-and-Democracy/About-the-council/Corporate-Plan-2022-27-FINAL.pdf
https://www.newport.gov.uk/documents/One-Newport/Local-Well-being-Plan-2018-23-English-Final.pdf
http://www.newport.gov.uk/fairnessCommission/en/Full-Report/Full-Report.aspx
http://www.newport.gov.uk/fairnessCommission/en/Full-Report/Full-Report.aspx
https://statswales.gov.wales/Catalogue/Business-Economy-and-Labour-Market/People-and-Work/Earnings/genderpaydifferenceinwales-by-year
https://statswales.gov.wales/Catalogue/Business-Economy-and-Labour-Market/People-and-Work/Earnings/genderpaydifferenceinwales-by-year
https://www.newport.gov.uk/documents/One-Newport/Local-Well-being-Plan-2018-23-English-Final.pdf


This page is intentionally left blank



Scrutiny Report 
Overview and Scrutiny Management 
Committee 
 
Part 1  
 
Date:  September 2023 
 
Subject Scrutiny Adviser Report 
 
Author  Scrutiny Advisor 
 
The following people have been invited to attend for this item: 
 

Invitee: Role 
 

Samantha Schanzer (Scrutiny 
Adviser) 

Present the Committee with the Scrutiny Adviser Report for 
discussion and update the Committee on any changes. 

Section A – Committee Guidance and Recommendations 
 

 
 
2 Context 
 

Background  
 
Action Sheet 
 
2.1 Attached at Appendix 1 is the Action Sheet from the Committee meetings.  The updated 

completed actions are included in the table.   

Recommendations to the Committee

The Committee is asked to:

1. Action Plan
Consider the Actions from previous meetings (Appendix 1):

• Note the responses for the actions;
• Determine if any further information / action is required;
• Agree to receive an update on outstanding issues at the next meeting.

2. Committee’s Work Programme:
Consider the Committee’s Forward Work Programme Update (Appendix 2):

• Are there any amendments to the topics scheduled to be considered at the next 
Committee meeting?

• Are there any additional invitees that the Committee requires to fully consider the topics?
• Is there any additional information that the Committee would like to request?

Page 131

Agenda Item 7



 
2.2 Any actions that do not have a response will be included on the Action Sheet at the next meeting 

to ensure that the Committee can keep track of outstanding actions.  
 
Forward Work Programme 
 
2.3 Attached at Appendix 2 is the Draft Forward Work Programme for the year 2023-24.  
 
2.4 The purpose of a Forward Work Programme is to help ensure Councillors achieve organisation 

and focus in the undertaking of enquiries through the Overview and Scrutiny function.  Effective 
work programming is essential to ensure that the work of Overview and Scrutiny makes a positive 
impact upon the Council’s delivery of services. 

 
2.4 Further information about the work programming process, including the procedures for referring 

new business to the programme, can be found in our Scrutiny Handbook on the Council’s 
Scrutiny webpages (www.newport.gov.uk/scrutiny). 

 
2.5 The Centre for Public Scrutiny’s Good Scrutiny Guide recognises the importance of the forward 

work programme.  In order to ‘lead and own the process’, it states that Councillors should have 
ownership of their Committee’s work programme, and be involved in developing, monitoring and 
evaluating it.  The Good Scrutiny Guide also states that, in order to make an impact, the scrutiny 
workload should be co-ordinated and integrated into corporate processes, to ensure that it 
contributes to the delivery of corporate objectives, and that work can be undertaken in a timely 
and well-planned manner. 

 
 
3 Information Submitted to the Committee 
 
3.1 The following information is attached: 
 
 Appendix 1: Action Sheet from Previous Meetings; 
  Appendix 2: Draft Forward Work Programme 
  
 
4. Suggested Areas of Focus 
 
 Role of the Committee 
  

Page 132

http://www.newport.gov.uk/scrutiny


 
 
 
Section B – Supporting Information 
5 Supporting Information 
 
5.1 The Corporate Assessment, and the subsequent follow up assessment provide background 

information on the importance of good work programming. Specific reference is made to the need 
to align the Cabinet and Scrutiny work programmes to ensure the value of the Scrutiny Function 
is maximised. 

 
5.2 The latest Cabinet work programme was approved by the Cabinet on a monthly basis for the next 

12 months and includes the list of reports scheduled for consideration.  Effective forward planning 
by both Cabinet and Scrutiny needs to be coordinated and integrated in relation to certain reports 
to ensure proper consultation takes place before a decision is taken.  A link to the Cabinet work 
programme is provided here to the Committee as part of this report, to enable the Committee to 
ensure that the work programmes continue to reflect key decisions being made by the Cabinet.   

6. Links to Council Policies and Priorities  
 
  6.1 Having proper work programming procedures in place ensures that the work of Overview and 

Scrutiny makes a positive impact upon the Council’s delivery of services, contributes to the delivery 
of corporate objectives, and ensures that work can be undertaken in a timely and well-planned 
manner.   

 
6.2 This report relates to the Actions from Committee’s which support the achievement of the Scrutiny 

Committee, in accordance with the Law and Regulation Service Plan, Objectives, Actions and 
Measures and the Wellbeing objectives:  
 

 
Well-being 
Objective 

1 – Economy, 
Education and 
Skills 

2 – Newport’s 
Environment and 
Infrastructure  

3 – Preventative 
and Equitable 
Community and 
Social Care 

4 – An Inclusive, 
Fair and 
Sustainable 
Council 

Aims:  Newport is a 
thriving and 

A city that seeks 
to protect and 

Newport is a 
supportive city 

Newport City 
Council is an 

The role of the Committee in considering the report is to:

• Action Sheet from Previous Meetings - Appendix 1
o Consider the responses to the actions from the meeting;
o Are you satisfied that you have received the necessary information?
o Are there any further issues arising from the responses that you would like to 

raise?
o For the actions that do not have responses – these actions will be rolled over 

to the next meeting and reported back to the Committee. 

• Draft Forward Work Programme - Appendix 2
Consider:

o Are there any amendments to the topics scheduled to be considered at the 
next Committee meeting?

o Are there any additional invitees that the Committee requires to fully consider 
the topics?

o Is there any additional information that the Committee would like to request?

Page 133

https://democracy.newport.gov.uk/documents/s6711/06%20Corporate%20Aassessment%20appendix.pdf
https://democracy.newport.gov.uk/documents/s21700/2022-23%20CABINET%20WORK%20PROGRAMME.pdf?LLL=0


growing city that 
offers excellent 
education and 
aspires to provide 
opportunities for 
all. 

enhance our 
environment 
whilst reducing 
our carbon 
footprint and 
preparing for a 
sustainable and 
digital future. 

where 
communities and 
care are at the 
heart of what we 
do. 

inclusive 
organisation that 
places social 
value, fairness 
and sustainability 
at its core. 

 
 
7 Wellbeing of Future Generation (Wales) Act  
 
7.1 The Wellbeing of Future Generations Act 2015 which came into force in April 2016 sets the 

context for the move towards long term planning of services.   
 

7.2 General questions 
• How is this area / policy affected by the new legislation?   
• How will this decision / policy / proposal impact upon future generations?  What is the long 

term impact?   
• What evidence is provided to demonstrate WFGA has been / is being considered?   
• Evidence from Community Profiles / other data?  
• Evidence of links to Wellbeing Assessment / Objectives / Plan? 

 
7.3 Wellbeing Goals 

• How are the Wellbeing goals reflected in the policy / proposal / action? 
o A prosperous Wales 
o A resilient Wales 
o A healthier Wales 
o A more equal Wales 
o A Wales of cohesive communities 
o A Wales of vibrant culture and thriving Welsh language 
o A globally responsible Wales 

 
7.4 Sustainable Development Principles 

• Does the report / proposal demonstrate how as an authority we are working in accordance 
with the sustainable development principles from the act when planning services? 
o Long Term 

The importance of balancing short-term needs with the need to safeguard the ability to 
also meet long-term needs 

o Prevention 
How acting to prevent problems occurring or getting worse may help public bodies meet 
their objectives 

o Integration 
Considering how the public body’s well-being objectives may impact upon each of the 
well-being goals, on their other objectives, or on the objectives of other public bodies 

o Collaboration 
Acting in collaboration with any other person (or different parts of the body itself) that 
could help the body to meet its well-being objectives 

o Involvement 
The importance of involving people with an interest in achieving the well-being goals, 
and ensuring that those people reflect the diversity of the area which the body serves. 

 
8 Background Papers 
 

Page 134



• The Essentials - Wellbeing of Future Generation Act (Wales)  
• Corporate Plan 2022-2027 
• The Corporate Assessment and follow up assessment.  

 
 
Report Completed: September 2023 

Page 135

http://gov.wales/docs/dsjlg/publications/150623-guide-to-the-fg-act-en.pdf
https://democracy.newport.gov.uk/documents/s23056/08ii%20Draft%20-%20Corporate%20Plan%202022-27%20v1.4.pdf?LLL=0
https://democracy.newport.gov.uk/documents/s6711/06%20Corporate%20Aassessment%20appendix.pdf


This page is intentionally left blank



  

 
 

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE 
ACTION SHEET  

 

 Agenda Item Action Responsibility Outcome 

1 Conclusion of 
Committee reports 

 

 

Send comments and 
recommendations to 
officers 

Samantha 
Schanzer 

COMPLETE 

2 Minutes of the 
Previous Meeting 

Chase a response from the 
University 

Samantha 
Schanzer 

COMPLETE 

3 Annual Digital 
Report 

Provide examples of 
websites 

Tracy 
McKim/Mark 

Bleazard 

COMPLETE 

4 Annual Digital 
Report 

Provide materials for digital 
skills and inclusion 
signposting to Committee 

Tracy 
McKim/Mark 

Bleazard 

 

5 Climate Change 
Report 

Provide more information 
regarding the increase of 
both homeworking figures 
and commuting figures  

Paul 
Jones/Silvia 
Gonzales 

Lopez/ Ross 
Cudlipp 

CHASED 

6 Climate Change 
Report 

Complete an exercise 
wherein the new changes to 
the measurement of 
supplier emissions be 
applied to previous years’ 
data to better understand 
trends and changes. 

Paul 
Jones/Silvia 
Gonzales 

Lopez/ Ross 
Cudlipp 

CHASED 

7 Climate Change 
Report 

Provide more information 
on the threshold of Green 
actions, especially in 
regards to illegal parking. 

Paul 
Jones/Silvia 
Gonzales 

Lopez/ Ross 
Cudlipp 

CHASED 

8 Climate Change 
Report 

Provide the date on which 
the city wide bike scheme 
would be rolled out 

Paul 
Jones/Silvia 
Gonzales 
Lopez/Ross 
Cudlipp 

CHASED 

Page 137



  

 
 

9 Climate Change 
Report 

Provide the percentage of 
new taxi licenced drivers 
with ULEV cars 

Paul 
Jones/Silvia 
Gonzales 

Lopez/ Ross 
Cudlipp 

CHASED 

10 Climate Change 
Report 

Provide further explanation 
regarding the improvement 
in public transport and why 
that action was marked as 
green 

Paul 
Jones/Silvia 
Gonzales 

Lopez/Ross 
Cudlipp 

CHASED 

11 Climate Change 
Report 

Provide a response on how 
the Council is ensuring that 
work is being carried out to 
encourage ethical 
investments by the staff 
pension fund 

Paul 
Jones/Silvia 
Gonzales 

Lopez/Ross 
Cudlipp 

CHASED 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Page 138



Scrutiny 
Overview and Scrutiny Management Committee  
Draft Work Programme: June 2023 to May 2024 
Meeting  Agenda Items 
02/06/2023 • Corporate Safeguarding Annual Report 

 
• EV Charging Strategy 

 
• Consultation Update (Information only) 

 
 

23/06/2023 • Welsh Language Annual Report 
 

28/07/2023 • Information Risk Report 
 
 

 
• Climate Change Annual Report 
 

08/09/2023  
• Annual Digital Strategy Report 

09/10/2023  
1pm  

▪ Annual Corporate Wellbeing Self Assessment  
▪ Strategic Equalities Plan Annual Report 

 
27/10/2023 ▪ Transformation Plan / Budget Consultation Plans / 

Development of MTFP 
▪ Air Quality Action Plan 

 

01/12/2023 • Scrutiny Annual Report  
• People and Culture Plan 

 
19/01/2024 
 

• MTFP and Revenue Budget – Consultee Meeting  

08/03/2024 • Asset Plan 
26/04/2024 • TBD 

 

Page 139



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the previous meeting held on 8th September 2023
	4 Annual Corporate Plan Self-Assessment Report 2022/23
	Overview and Scrutiny Management Committee
	Subject	Annual Corporate Plan Self-Assessment Report 2022/23

	Section A – Committee Guidance and Recommendations
	2	Context
	3	Information Submitted to the Committee
	4.	Suggested Areas of Focus
	5	Links to Council Policies and Priorities
	6.	Corporate Plan / Service Area Plan – Red / Amber / Green Assessment
	7.	Background Papers

	Item 4.1 - DRAFT Annual CP Self-Assessment Report 2022-23 v0.9

	5 Strategic Equalities Plan Annual Report 2022-23
	Overview and Scrutiny Management Committee
	Subject	Strategic Equalities Plan Annual Report 2022-23

	Section A – Committee Guidance and Recommendations
	2	Context
	3	Information Submitted to the Committee
	4.	Suggested Areas of Focus
	5		Links to Council Policies and Priorities
	6	Wellbeing of Future Generations (Wales) Act
	8.	Background Papers

	Item 5.1 - SEP AR 22-23 v.3
	1.	Collecting Data
	A.	Systems
	B.	Consultations
	2.	Evaluating data
	A.	Fairness and Equality Impact Assessments
	B.	Service Area Plans

	Supporting Documents


	7 Scrutiny Adviser Reports
	Overview and Scrutiny Management Committee
	Subject	Scrutiny Adviser Report

	Section A – Committee Guidance and Recommendations
	3	Information Submitted to the Committee
	5	Supporting Information
	6.	Links to Council Policies and Priorities
	7	Wellbeing of Future Generation (Wales) Act
	8	Background Papers

	Item 7.1 - Action Sheet
	Item 7.2 - FWP


